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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) (the “Director(s)”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the Company’s website at http.//www.aplushk.com/clients/8166chinaeco-farming/
index.html and the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM website for at least 7 days from the date
of its posting.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. So David Tat Man (“Mr. So”) (BRZEX%4%), aged
34, is an executive Director. Mr. So holds a bachelor degree
in surveying from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
is @ member of The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. So started his
career in the investment department of Savills (Hong Kong)
Limited and then worked in a company that specialized in
China property investment prior to joining the Company. He
has extensive experience in investment in China and Hong
Kong. Mr. So was a non-executive director of Chinese Food
and Beverage Group Limited (stock code: 8272), a company
listed on the GEM on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) from 1 April 2014 to 31
December 2016. Mr. So joined the Group in January 2014.

Mr. Lai Yick Fung (“Mr. Lai") (BBz= 8 % 4£), aged 48,
was an executive Director and the company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Lai obtained a Master of Science Degree
in Financial Management in the University of London and
a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy in The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. He is an associate member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
in the United Kingdom, The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Lai had worked for an international accounting
firm and a number of listed companies in Hong Kong and
the United States as senior management and has over 20
years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management. Mr. Lai joined the Group in April 2015 and
resigned in March 2018.
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith (“Mr. Ng”) (RE AL %4 ) , aged
57, is an executive Director and Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Ng graduated from the University of Alberta,
Canada, with a Bachelor’'s degree in Commerce, majoring
in Accounting. He also obtained a Master of Commerce
degree in Professional Accounting from the University of New
South Wales, Australia and is a Certified Public Accountant
in Australia and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ng has over 20 years of
management and accounting experience.

Mr. Ng was an executive director of U-RIGHT International
Holdings Limited (“U-RIGHT") from July 2011 to December
2017 (stock code: 627), a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, which received petitions from the Hong Kong
Court against the company and its wholly owned subsidiary,
Uni-Capital Limited filed by Detusche Bank A.G., Hong
Kong Branch on 6 October 2008, before Mr. Ng's tenure
of office. The winding-up petition against U-RIGHT was
subsequently dismissed pursuant to the order of the Hong
Kong Court dated 16 September 2013. Mr. Ng was also an
executive director of China Fortune Financial Group Limited
(stock code: 290), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange from December 2007 to July 2016. Mr.
Ng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in September 2014 redesignated as an executive Director in
September 2016 and was appointed as Company Secretary in
March 2018.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey (“Mr. Yick”) (5 EEE4%),
aged 34, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Yick
is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and
members of the audit committee and nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Yick graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Science degree. He
subsequently obtained the Juris Doctor degree as well as the
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Yick was admitted to practice
law as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 2012. He has been a
member of The Law Society of Hong Kong since then. Mr.
Yick worked in both international and reputable local law
firms and is currently working as a solicitor with emphasis
on corporate finance practice at a local law firm. Mr. Yick
principally engages in Hong Kong listing projects and assists
in legal compliance of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr. Yick is currently an independent non-executive director
of Mengke Holdings Limited (stock code: 1629), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yick
joined the Group in September 2014.

Mr. Zhang Min (“Mr. Zhang”) ((REE%&4) , aged 61, is an
independent non-executive Director. He is also the chairman
of the nomination committee, members of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhang holds a Bachelor of Philosophy Degree from the
Beijing Normal College and a Master of Laws Degree from
the Renmin University of China.

Mr. Zhang is currently an executive director of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (Stock code: 821) appointed in
June 2018, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Zhang was the chief executive officer and an executive
director of Junefield Department Store Group Limited (stock
code: 758) from June 2016 to August 2018, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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PROFILE OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Mr. Zhang was appointed as a non-executive director
of China Fortune Financial Group Limited (stock code:
290) (“China Fortune”) on 8 December 2010. He was
re-designated and appointed as chairman of the board,
executive director and a member of the remuneration
committee of China Fortune from 12 April 2011 to 30 June
2014. In addition, Mr. Zhang was an independent non-
executive director of Silver Base Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 886), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from 28 January 2011 to 1 April 2014. He
was also the chief marketing officer of the China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd from 28 April 2011 to 31 August 2013
and was the chief executive of China Construction Bank
Corporation, Hong Kong Branch, from September 2006 to
March 2011 and a director of CCB International (Holdings)
Limited and China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation
Limited from August 2006 to March 2011. Both CCB
International (Holdings) Limited and China Construction Bank
(Asia) Corporation Limited are wholly-owned subsidiaries
of China Construction Bank Corporation (stock code: 939)
(together with its subsidiaries referred to as the “"CCBC
Group”), a joint stock company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China with limited liability, whose issued shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was
the president of the Beijing Banking Association from 2003
to 2005 and the Beijing Investment Institution from 2001 to
2006. Mr. Zhang possesses over 20 years' experience in the
banking industry through his work with the CCBC Group. Mr.
Zhang joined the Group in March 2015.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (“Ms. Yuen”) (RE8 & +), aged
47, is appointed as an independent non-executive Director.
Ms. Yuen is also the chairman of the audit committee and
members of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee. Ms. Yuen graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a degree in Business Administration in
1994. She is the fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, fellow member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
overseas member of The Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Yuen has worked in accounting
and auditing area for over 23 years. Ms. Yuen is currently
an independent non-executive director of Chinese Strategic
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8089), a company listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Yuen was also an
independent non-executive director of The Hong Kong
Building and Loan Agency Limited (stock code: 145), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
from November 2011 to November 2017. Ms Yuen joined the
Group in September 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) was principally
engaged in the business of one-stop value chain services,
property investment, trading of grocery food products,
trading of consumables and agricultural products, provision
of money lending services and provision of financial services.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$51,417,000 (2017:
HK$63,028,000), representing a decrease of approximately
18.4% as compared to that of last year. Loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$68,428,000 (2017: HK$71,648,000).
The basic loss per share of the Company was approximately
HK9.63 cents (2017: HK11.83 cents).

Property Investment

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the property
investment segment reported revenue of approximately
HK$5,153,000 (2017: HK$3,919,000), representing an
increase of approximately 31.5%, as compared to the last
year. At 31 December 2018, the Group held properties in
the People’s Republic of China (PRC), Taiwan and Hong
Kong for investment purpose amounted to approximately
HK$169,800,000 (2017: HK$169,173,000). The portfolio’s
rental yield was shown in the table below.

Key performance - data of property investment
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Average occupancy level 45 A K 66.6% 67.2%
Average monthly rental income BEFK(FFKIE

per square metre (sg.m) AHEERA HK$1293% Tt HK$997% 7T

Definition and calculation: Average occupancy level, being
percentage of floor area occupied by tenant. Average
monthly rental income per sq.m. being average rental income
charged to tenant per sq.m. of floor area leased.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

One-stop Value Chain Services

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the one-
stop value chain services segment reported a revenue of
approximately HK$28,880,000 (2017: HK$16,177,000),
representing an increase of approximately 78.5%, as
compared to the last year. The increase was due to more
resources was allocated to this segment.

Key performance - data of one-stop value chain
services

R

Gross profit margin

Definition and calculation: Gross profit margin, being
percentage of gross profit to segment turnover.

Trading of Consumables and Agricultural Products
During the year ended 31 December 2018, this business
segment reported a revenue of approximately HK$6,045,000
(2017: HK$5,870,000). The increase in revenue was mainly
due to widen customer base for reusable bags trading
business.

Key performance - data of trading of consumables and
agricultural products
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Gross profit margin

Definition and calculation: Gross profit margin, being
percentage of gross profit to segment turnover.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Trading of Grocery Food Products

The Group’s trading of grocery food products segment
consists of distribution (i) in the catering channel in Hong
Kong for “Mengniu” liquid milk and pasteurized dairy
products, under the “Mengniu” brand; and (ii) in peanut
oil, corn oil and canola oil under the “Jinlongyu” brand via
supermarkets, convenience stores and small-scale stores
in Hong Kong. In addition, the Group is also the sole and
exclusive distributor for the sale and distribution of ramen
and udon products under the brand of “Nittin”( BT ) in
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. During the year ended
31 December 2018, this segment reported a revenue of
approximately HK$5,769,000 (2017: HK$29,902,000).

Key performance - data of trading of grocery food
products

£ F%

Gross profit margin

Definition and calculation: Gross profit margin, being
percentage of gross profit to segment turnover.

Performance guarantee - Mengniu and Jinlongyu
Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 28
October 2015 entered into between Hexin Limited (“Hexin"),
Fantastic Alliance Investments Limited and the Company,
Hexin will be entitled to obtain 118,320,000 new shares to
be issued by the Company if YIHE Enterprise Holding Limited
("YIHE") successfully meet the target profit of HK$7,000,000
for the year ended 31 December 2018. Since YIHE recorded
a loss of approximately HK$146,000 instead, no shares of
the Company will be issued to Hexin. Goodwill arising from
acquisition of YIHE was fully impaired whereas contingent
consideration was written back to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in previous
financial years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Trading of Grocery Food Products (continued)
Performance guarantee — Mengniu and Jinlongyu
(continued)

After a series of discussion and careful consideration, the
Group decided to not to renew the sole distributorship
agreements with respective principals of Mengniu and
Jinlongyu products. The Group is unable to come up with
a satisfactory turnaround plan with the management of
Huge Famous Corporation Limited due to the tough trading
environment resulting in the products’ low gross margin. The
Group will focus on Nittin brand of ramen and udon products
within this segment.

Provision of money lending services

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's
money lending services segment reported a revenue of
approximately HK$1,568,000 (2017: HK$5,750,000). With
majority of the loans secured by properties or company
shares, we demonstrated our strategy of balanced approach
between protecting the Group's position yet allowing certain
flexibility to cater for customer needs.

Key performance - loan interest data

B BREUH8

Interest rate earned

Definition and calculation: Interest rate earned, being
percentage of interest income divided by loan amount.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Provision of financial services

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
two operating subsidiaries, China AF Asset Management
Limited, a company holding Type 9 (asset management)
licence under Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC"),
and China AF Corporate Finance Limited, a company holding
Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) licence under the
SFC. This segment reported a revenue for the year ended 31
December of 2018 of HK$4,002,000 (contribution to revenue
for the year ended 31 December of 2017 of HK$1,410,000).

Securities investments

The Group had equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss in aggregate of approximately
HK$52,346,000 as at 31 December 2018, representing
approximately 11.58% of the Company’s total assets (31
December 2017: approximately HK$99,508,000, representing
approximately 20.27% of the Company's total assets).

The Company’s investment strategy is to invest in securities
that have growth potential, with the aims to capture capital
appreciation and diversify the Company’s investment
portfolio (as detailed below) in order to reduce concentration
of investment risks in one industry and maximise value
for the Shareholders. The composition of the investment
portfolio may change from time to time during the coming
year. In order to mitigate the possible financial risks related
to the equities, the investment portfolio will be monitored
regularly and appropriate actions would be taken whenever
necessary in a prudent manner in response to changes in
market situation. Below is additional information in relation
to the significant investments with market value exceeding
HK$10,000,000 as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNmR DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 and year ended
31 December 2017 (continued)

Notes:

China Fortune Financial Group Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, together
with its subsidiaries are principally engaged in securities
and insurance brokerage, margin financing, provision of
corporate finance services and money lending services.

Madison Holdings Group Limited, a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange, together with its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in (i) the retail sales and wholesales
of a wide spectrum of wine products and other alcoholic
beverages in Hong Kong with a focus on red wine; and (ii)
the provision of financial services.

These are all listed companies on the Stock Exchange for
the year ended 31 December 2018, together with their
subsidiaries are mainly engaged in provision of financial
services such as securities and brokerage trading as well
as provision of loans and financing services. There are also
companies engaging in printing and packaging industry,
equine services, building fire safety services, and asphalt
plants industry.

China Industrial Securities International Financial Group
Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, together with its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the provision of brokerage services, loans
and financing services, investment banking services,
asset management services and financial products and
investments.

Anhui Damingyuan Tourism Development Company
Limited* (2B KR REZRBMDABMRAR]), a company
listed on Shanghai Equity Exchange in the PRC until 28
February 2018, which is principally engaged in development
of tourism resources business. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 19 July 2016 and 31
August 2016.

This is another listed company on Shanghai Equity Exchange
in the PRC which is principally engaged in selling comfort
shoes and insoles, as well as foot related products.

These are all listed companies on the Stock Exchange for
the year ended 31 December 2018, together with their
subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the financial industry such
as securities trading, provision of financial guarantee services
and loans financing business. There are also companies
engaging in properties investments, motor trading industry
and internet technology related service industry.

*  For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Board admits the responsibility to environmental
protection. Over the years, the Group has committed to
reduce waste and pollution with a view of effective and
efficient resources utilisation in the office spaces. Staff are
reminded from time to time the Group's direction in this
respect.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
The Group's main business and operation work within
common trade practice environment and the Group
endeavours to comply with all legal and regulatory
requirements. In relation to the human resources, the
Group is committed to comply with the requirements of the
applicable laws and regulations, such as the Employment
Ordinance, ordinances in relation to discrimination, the
Privacy Ordinance and the Minimum Wage Ordinance.
The Group also values good conduct of the employees
and has set out clear guidelines to prevent bribery and to
regulate the acceptance of benefits by the employees. On
the corporate level, the Group continuously complies with
the requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM (“GEM Listing Rules”) of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), such as
disclosure of interests, corporate governance, Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers
and “Inside Information” disclosure. The Group employs legal
and financial advisers when undergoing acquisitions or other
corporate exercises. During the year ended 31 December
2018, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and rules by the Group.

EEENWRE DM

REHE (&)

BRBERRRR
EXeARAELRERE - RARLBRI
ERPRGANER AEESFR-EAGH
BORBEM R GH - B TN REIRBEAR KB E 1L
JTERY JT §

BrHEEEARER
AEEFEEKREETER —MAEREE
T AAREESHEBRABEEMEEHRT -
ERANERAE  ANEEAHETERBED
KOEHEETE - R EIER - B BB R e g -
FLER GG R E T EGH - NEBITERE T
M RITIESE WE B EBEM S| - LAB LEBRES
EREEEESNEZ -ROEXER L A5H
SEETEBBAERFFERARF ([HAM])
GEM#EA F TR A ([GEM LR AN A K &
HREE GG ([FEHRBAEEG]) WHRT - a0
BT PEES LWEITAEFETE
HFRXPRIRETAR [REHEE ] HE -AEE
EITWIE R MR SEAAERM
KER -BE - N\F+-A=+—HLHF
B AEBEWHESEKNERSTETERE R
FAo

Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ FE &£}

17



18

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (continued)

Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
The Group recognises importance of retaining talents to
ensure the ongoing execution of business plans. The Group
has established all-rounded staff policy and guidelines for
staff welfare, provide a safe workplace, and support the
development of talent. The Group provides incentives to
its employees based on their performance. The Group
encouraged employees to update their work-related
knowledge, skill by providing training offered by external
organisations. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the employee voluntary turnover rate of the Group was kept
at a low level. During the year, no violation of labour law
was recorded. The key customers of the Group include the
long term trading customers and tenants of the investment
properties. The key suppliers of the Group are the suppliers
of the trading business. The Group has established long
term and solid business relationship with the suppliers which
ensures stable supply and quality products which meet
customers’ demand. During the year, there was no material
dispute between the Group and the customers/suppliers.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$51,417,000 (2017:
HK$63.028.000), representing a decrease of approximately
18.4% as compared to that of last year. The decrease was
mainly due to the Group has ceased the trading business of
“Mengniu” and “Jinlongyu”.

Cost of sales for the year under review was approximately
HK$37,798,000 (2017: HK$47,716,000), representing a
decrease of approximately 20.8% as compared to that of last
year. The decrease of cost of sales was in line with the drop
in revenue. The decrease in absolute amount of gross profit
was due to decrease interest income from provision of money
lending services.

Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

REHE (&)

HES BEERHEBNRERZ
AEERRABEBATNEEN  AEREB
EUBE-ARECEHRBETIRANELE2E
MBTHRMIES - WEHZ 2/ TRREY
XPBATHER AEBRBEXRBREER
HER AEEZBRMEBINBEBERN
Hal - SE B B B S B T EARRE A AN
REE-RBE-_T-/\F+_A=1+—HBLLF
B AREERE T BB R R IMEKF -
FA-BEBERS TEPINRLE AEEN T
REFPERERHESIRFPAREMENEL -
AEENTEZHEBRE S EHHHEER A
SEEZFHENDELRALRBENEEE
& R ERFLAREP ERXNIBEHRER
BEER-FR AEEETF MERHILE
EMERFEH-

Bt 7% 2] 8
HE-_ZT-N\F+_A=+—HLEE K&
E 815 W 25 4951,417,0008 T (ZE— L4
63,028,000 7T ) - MEAF R 418.4% %%
BODEEARAREDRIE R4 R [E58
BINESHER-

B EEFE ZHEK AL A37,798,000% T (=
T —+4F:47,716,0008 7)) ' REF THKLH
20.8%  SHEM A TEK T ERA TREBE —
B EFBEEERR DT BERRERERS
B FI B U A BRIE TR o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Administrative expenses for the year under review was
approximately HK$63,626,000 (2017: HK$58,635,000),
representing a increase of approximately 8.5% as compared
to that of last year. The increase was mainly attributable to
increase in written off the other receivables of approximately
HK$13,300,000, which was partially offset by decrease
in share option expense of approximately HK$6,300,000,
decrease in amortisation of intangible assets of approximately
HK$1,600,000, and decrease in legal and professional fees of
approximately HK$1,900,000.

Finance costs for the year under review was approximately
HK$9,251,000 (2017: HK$10,873,000), representing an
decrease of approximately 14.9% as compared to that of last
year. The decrease was mainly due to decrease in effective
interest expense on convertible bonds of approximately
HK$2,755,000.

The Group recorded a loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company in the amount of approximately
HK$68,428,000 (2017: HK$71,648,000). Basic loss per share
of the Company decreased from HK11.83 cents for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to HK9.63 cents for the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its business operations mainly with its
internally generated resources and borrowings during the
year under review. At 31 December 2018, the bank balances
and cash of the Group was approximately HK$17,870,000
(2017: HK$5,111,000).

At 31 December 2018, the net assets of the Group was
approximately HK$336,973,000 (2017: HK$320,233,000)
and the net current assets was approximately HK$38,100,000
(2017: HK$3,669,000).

Gearing Ratio

At 31 December 2018, the total liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$112,446,000 (2017:
HK$170,648,000), which mainly comprised of trade and
other payables, contract liabilities, borrowings, margin loans
payable, other loan payable, amount due to non-controlling
interests, income tax payable and deferred tax liabilities.
These liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi and New Taiwan Dollars.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$449,419,000 (2017: HK$490,881,000).
The gearing ratio of the Group, expressed as the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets, turned to 0.25 as at 31 December
2018 (2017: 0.35).

Segmental Information

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended
31 December 2018 by business segment is set out in note 6
to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 45 (2017: 44)
total number of full-time employees. Staff costs, including
directors’ emoluments of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018 were approximately HK$20,213,000 in
total (2017: HK$24,023,000). The Group determines the
remuneration and compensation payable to its staff based
on individual performance and expertise. Apart from basic
remuneration, share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well
as individual contribution.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's issued
ordinary share capital was HK$7,771,324.30 divided into
777,132,430 shares of HK$0.01 each (“Shares”) (2017:
HK$122,071,049.76 divided into 6,103,552,488 shares of
HK$0.02 each).

Fund Raising Activities

Issue of Convertible Bonds Il as a consideration of an
acquisition

On 13 December 2013, Skyline Top Limited (“Skyline Top”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and Mr. So Pan
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which (i) Mr. So Pan has agreed to sell to Skyline Top, and
Skyline Top has agreed to purchase from Mr. So Pan the sale
shares of Konson Global Investments Limited; and (i) Mr.
So Pan has agreed to assign to Skyline Top, and Skyline Top
has agreed to accept the assignment of, the sale loan at an
aggregated consideration of HK$40,000,000, of which: (i)
HK$20,000,000 shall be satisfied by Skyline Top by cheque or
cashier order upon the completion; and (ii) HK$20,000,000
shall be satisfied by the Skyline Top’s procuring of the issue
of the convertible bonds (“Convertible Bonds II”) at the
conversion price of HK$0.17 (note) per conversion share by
the Company to Mr. So Pan upon completion.

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching to the
Convertible Bonds Il, 117,647,058 (note) new shares shall be
issued.

The completion of the acquisition involving the issue of
convertible bonds as a consideration took place on 31 March
2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Issue of Convertible Bonds Il as a consideration of an
acquisition (continued)

Included in the audited financial statements of the Property
Investment Subsidiary (as defined in the Company’s circular
dated 19 February 2014) dated 28 April 2017 was the profit
before tax of the Property Investment Subsidiary for the
period commencing from the Placing Completion Date (as
defined in the Company's circular dated 19 February 2014)
up to 31 December 2016 of HK$46,541,792 which was
audited by the auditor of the Company. As a result, principal
portion of Convertible Bond Il amounted to HK$8,364,552
was cancelled by the Company pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the Convertible Bond Il. On 23 May 2017,
68,443,811 new shares of the Company were issued to Mr.
So Pan upon his exercise in full of the remaining portion of
Convertible Bond Il.

Further details of the issue of convertible bonds as
a consideration of an acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 13 December 2013,
7 March 2014 and 31 March 2014 and the circular of the
Company dated 19 February 2014.

Note: On 2 July 2015, a placing of 629,000,000 new shares of the
Company was completed and pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the bond instruments of the Convertible Bonds,
the conversion price was revised from HK$0.188 to HK$0.17.
As a result, number of new shares to be issued upon exercise
of conversion attaching to the Convertible Bonds was revised
from 106,382,978 to 117,647,058.

Placing of new shares

On 20 February 2018, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with a placing agent, it is propose that the
placing agent would propose to offer for subscription of
1,200,000,000 placing shares at HK$0.08334 per placing
shares (“Placing 1”), and the placing agent has agreed to
procure subscriptions for the placing shares. The maximum
gross proceeds from the Placing | will be approximately
HK$100,008,000. Details are set out in the announcement
issued by the Company dated 20 February 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Placing of new shares (continued)

On 9 March 2018, the Company announced to terminate
Placing | and will be replaced by a new placing agreement
with a placing agent. It is proposed that the placing agent
would propose to offer for subscription of 1,200,000,000
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.083 per placing
share. The maximum gross proceeds from the placing
were approximately HK$99,600,000 and the net proceeds
after deducting the placing commission and other relevant
expenses were approximately HK$96,900,000. Further details
of the placing are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 9 March 2018 and 29 March 2018. The net
proceeds from placing were used as follows:

Aggregate

amount used

during

the period

Period under review under review
N ELER

(=] B 5 Fir {68 A B9 48 58

Since completion of placing HK$12.0 million
on 29 March 2018 up to and

including 31 December 2018 120888 T

BEREEEN_FT—N\F HK$23.9 million
ZA-thBEKERER 239B&EAETT
—E—-N\FE+-_A=+—H HK$44.5 million
(B#E%A) Lt 445EBETT

HK$5.0 million
5.0B&87T

Issue of Convertible Bond Ill & Convertible Bond IV as a
consideration of an acquisition

On 28 May 2015, Skyline Top Limited and Yardley Wealth
Management Limited (“Yardley”) became shareholders
(the "JV Partners”) of Delightful Hope Limited (the “JV
Company”) for the purpose of the proposed acquisition. The
JV Company is owned as to 50% by each of the JV Partners.
The directors of the Company considered the JV Company is
the subsidiary of the Company in accordance with HKFRS10
Consolidated Financial Statement.
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Remaining
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placing
proceeds as
the last date
of the period

Purpose of usage under review

BESEME

FRIE R [ BE A

EREMN BREBHNERE
Redemption of HK$11.5 million

Convertible Bond

& O AT R R B 5 1M5EEET
Repayment of other debts Nil
BEEMER i
Partial repayment of loan Nil
HAEEER i
General working capital Nil
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Issue of Convertible Bond Ill & Convertible Bond IV as a
consideration of an acquisition (continued)

Upon formation of JV Company, the JV Partners have agreed
to make provision for the management and administration
of the JV Company's affairs, and set out their respective
obligations and rights on the terms and conditions set in the
shareholders’ agreement (the “Shareholders’ Agreement”).

On 29 May 2015, the Company, the JV Company, Yardley
and Rich Best Asia Limited (the “Vendor”) entered into
the sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) pursuant to which (i) the Vendor has agreed
to sell and the JV Company has agreed to purchase entire
equity interest in China Smart Asia Limited, a subsidiary of
Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited (“Chinese Strategic”),
which the shares of Chinese Strategic are listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8089); and (ii)
the Vendor has agreed to assign the JV Company, and the
JV Company has agreed to accept the assignment of sale
loan at an aggregate consideration of HK$93,000,000,
which shall be settled and discharged by the JV Company
in accordance with the time, mode and manner set out
under the Sale and Purchase Agreement: (i) forthwith upon
the execution of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the
JV Company and Yardley shall jointly and severally pay the
sum of HK$20,000,000 either in cash or by cashier order
to Chinese Strategic for and on behalf of the Vendor as
deposit (the “Deposit”), and the Deposit shall be applied for
partial payment of the consideration at completion; (i) the JV
Company and Yardley shall jointly and severally pay a further
sum of HK$26,500,000 either in cash or by cashier order to
Chinese Strategic for and on behalf of the Vendor for partial
payment of the balance of the consideration at completion;
and (iii) the remaining balance of the consideration in the
sum of HK$46,500,000 shall be settled and discharged by
the Company's issuance to the Vendor (or any nominee of
the Vendor) (i) the convertible bonds (“Convertible Bond-
lII”) in the principal amount of HK$23,000,000; and (ii) the
convertible bonds (“Convertible Bond-IV”) in the principal
amount of HK$23,500,000 at completion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Fund Raising Activities (continued)

Issue of Convertible Bond Ill & Convertible Bond IV as a
consideration of an acquisition (continued)

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching to the
Convertible Bond-Ill & Convertible Bond-IV, 186,000,000 new
shares shall be issued.

The completion of the acquisition involving the issue of
Convertible Bond-Ill & Convertible Bond-IV as a part of the
consideration took place on 20 August 2015.

Further details of the issue of convertible bonds as
a consideration of an acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 29 May 2015, 20
August 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 27 July
2015.

Convertible Bond Il expired on 31 March 2017 and
subsequently the Company received a redemption notice
from the Convertible Bond Ill holder for the principal amount
of HK$23,000,000. The Company had agreed with the
Convertible Bond Il holder to pay an interest of 5% per
annum from 1 April 2017 up to the date of settlement. The
amount was fully settled with interest on 29 March 2018.
Convertible Bond IV expired on 30 September 2018 and the
Company received a redemption notice from the Convertible
Bond IV holder for the principal amount of HK$23,500,000
as at the date of this report HK$10,500,000 remained
outstanding.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
Disposal of an investment property

On 10 August 2018 and 26 October 2018, the Group
entered into and signed two sale and purchase agreements
with an independent third party to dispose of three of the
investment properties held by the Group which are all located
in the PRC with fair value of approximately RMB9,330,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,186,000) as at 31
December 2017. Such property was classified as investment
properties in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017. The transaction was completed
on 30 September 2018 and 31 October 2018 with a loss
of disposal between the sale proceed over the cost of
acquisition of approximately HK$3,177,000.

Acquisition of Shunxin Holdings Limited and placing of

convertible bonds

(@) The acquisition of Shunxin Holdings Limited (the
“Acquisition”)
On 29 May 2017, Cosmic Bliss Limited as the vendor
(the “Vendor”), Champion Front Limited as the
purchaser (the “Purchaser”) and the Company entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and
Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which the Vendor
has agreed to sell to the Purchaser, and the Purchaser
has agreed to purchase from the Vendor, the entire
issued share capital of Shunxin Holdings Limited, the
target company, at the maximum consideration of
HK$120,000,000, which shall be settled by the issue of
the consideration CBs (the “Consideration CBs”).

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the
Vendor has agreed to sell to the Purchaser, and the
Purchaser has agreed to purchase from the Vendor, the
outstanding shareholder loan due to the Vendor at the
consideration of HK$1, which shall be settled by cash at
completion.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal

(continued)

Acquisition of Shunxin Holdings Limited and placing of

convertible bonds (continued)

(a) The acquisition of Shunxin Holdings Limited (the
“Acquisition”) (continued)
The Consideration CBs are convertible at the conversion
price of HK$0.06 per consideration conversion share.
Assuming the Consideration CBs in the principal amount
of HK$120,000,000 are fully converted at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.06, 2,000,000,000 new shares
will be allotted and issued by the Company under
specific mandate to authorise the Directors to allot and
issue the conversion shares under conversion of the
Consideration CBs.

Upon completion of the Acquisition, the target
company and its subsidiaries will become wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company and accordingly, their
financial results will be consolidated into the accounts of
the Company.

(b) Placing of convertible bonds (the “Placing”)

On 29 May 2017, Kingston Securities Limited (the
“Placing Agent”) and the Company entered into a
placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) pursuant
to which the Company has agreed to appoint the
Placing Agent as the placing agent and the Placing
Agent has agreed to procure subscribers to subscribe
for the placing CBs (the “Placing CBs”) in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$360,000,000, on a best effort
basis, on the terms and conditions set out in the Placing
Agreement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal

(continued)

Acquisition of Shunxin Holdings Limited and placing of

convertible bonds (continued)

(b) Placing of convertible bonds (the “Placing”) (continued)
Completion of the Placing shall be conditional upon,
among other things, the completion of the Acquisition.
Assuming the Placing CBs in the principal amount
of HK$360,000,000 are fully converted at the initial
conversion price of HK$0.06, 6,000,000,000 new shares
will be allotted and issued by the Company under the
specific mandate to authorise the Directors to allot and
issue the conversion shares under conversion of the
Placing CBs.

On 2 January 2018, the Company announced that the
Acquisition was terminated as certain conditions precedent of
the Sale and Purchase have not fulfilled or waived by the long
stop date. As a result, the Company also announced that the
Placing was terminated accordingly.

Acquisition of interest in certain properties in
Shenzhen, the PRC

On 17 July 2017, Yardley Wealth Management Limited
("YWML") and Skyline Top Limited (“STL"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”) pursuant to which the YWML has agreed to
sell and the STL has agreed to purchase the sale shares (the
“Sale Shares”), representing 50% of the issued share capital
of Delightful Hope Limited (the “Target Company”) for cash
consideration of HK$55,000,000. The Target Company is a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is owned
as to 50% by each of YWML and STL. Following completion,
the Target Company will be wholly owned by the STL and will
become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
(continued)

Acquisition of interest in certain properties in
Shenzhen, the PRC (continued)

The principal assets of the Target Company consist of
properties comprise 8 commercial units of a total gross
floor area of approximately 1,690 sg.m. in Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC, and a residential house in
Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the PRC of a total
gross floor area of approximately 315.23 sg.m. According
to the audited consolidated account of the Target Company,
the book value of the properties was approximately
HK$110,236,000 as at 31 December 2016.

The consideration payable by the STL to the YWML for the
Sale Shares is HK$55,000,000 and shall be satisfied by the
STL's payment in cash to the YWML or its nominee in the
following manner: (a) as to the part payment in the sum
of HK$20,000,000, within 14 days after the date of the
Agreement; (b) as to the balance of HK$35,000,000, upon
completion.

On 31 July 2017, a supplemental agreement was entered
into between the parties that the part payment in the sum
of HK$20,000,000 shall be paid on or before 28 August
2017 or such later date as the parties may agree in writing.
HK$20,000,000 of the above part payment has been paid.

On 17 January 2018, the parties had entered into a second
supplemental agreement whereas the timing of payment
of the balance of HK$35,000,000 was extended from 17
January 2018 to 17 January 2019. On 19 March 2019, the
parties had entered into a third supplemental agreement
whereas the Long Stop Date has been extended from
17 January 2019 to 31 March 2020 and payment of the
remaining balance shall be paid by one or several instalments
on or before the Date of Completion. As at the date of this
report, the amount of HK$10,760,237 remained outstanding.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
(continued)

Acquisition of Max Joint Asia Pacific (China) Limited

On 27 August 2018, Guo Weifu as the Vendor, King Noble
Holdings Limited as the Purchaser, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and the Company entered into
the sale and purchase agreement. Under and pursuant to the
terms and conditions of the sale and purchase agreement,
the Vendor has agreed to sell to the Purchaser, and the
Purchaser has agreed to purchase from the Vendor, the entire
issued capital of Max Joint Asia Pacific (China) Limited, at the
Consideration of HK$46,500,000.

Upon Completion and subject to audit, the Target Company
and its wholly-owned subsidiaries are expected to be
accounted for as indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company, and Higreen Agricultural and its subsidiary
are expected to be accounted for as investments to the
Company.

At Completion, the Company shall, and the Purchaser shall
procure the Company to, allot and issue 465,000,000 new
Shares at the Issue Price out of the General Mandate and
free from any encumbrance whatsoever to and in favour of
the Vendor for full and final settlement and discharge of the
Consideration.

The Target Company is an investment holding company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, which
holds 15% equity interest in Higreen Agricultural Product
Logistics Company Limited (“Higreen Agricultural”) Higreen
Agricultural is established in PRC with limited liability. It
operates a large-scale agricultural products logistics center in
Bengbu of Anhui Province, PRC for wholesale of agricultural
products, which also handles processing, packaging, storage,
direct selling, delivery, auction, e-commerce, food safety
testing and central settlement. Upon Completion, Higreen
Agricultural shall be held as to 15% indirectly by the
Company.

The acquisition has been completed on 25 October 2018. An

aggregate of 465,000,000 consideration share were allotted
and issued at the issue price of HK$0.10 each.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Significant Investments, Acquisitions and Disposal
(continued)

Disposal of Shenzhen City Jintaiyuan Investment
Development Company Limited

On 29 November 2018, Shenzhen City Chengi Enterprise
Consultancy Management Company Limited (“Chengi”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
the transferee, an independent third party, entered into the
equity transfer agreement pursuant to which the Chenqi
has agreed to sell, and the Transferee has agreed to acquire,
the entire equity interest in Shenzhen City Jintaiyuan
Investment Development Company Limited (“Jintaiyuan”) at
the consideration of RMB21,000,000 (being approximately
HK$23,635,500).

Jintaiyuan is an investment holding company incorporated in
the PRC with limited liability, which holds 15% equity interest
in Bengbu Higreen Agricultural Product Logistics Company
Limited* (R G FERERYWRBR A F) ("Higreen
Agricultural”).

On 14 December 2018, the Transferee and the Chengi
entered into a memorandum in relation to the disposal.
According to the Equity Transfer Agreement, the
Transferee is obligated to pay a total consideration of
RMB21,000,000 upon the completion date. As at the date
of this announcement the Transferee has already paid
the Chengi a total of RMB14,000,000. The final payment
of RMB7,000,000 was to be paid on the equity change
registration completion date. The equity change registration
completion date took place on 11 December 2018. At the
request of the Transferee and after arm’s length negotiations
between the Parties, the Parties have entered into the
memorandum to extend the final payment of RMB7,000,000
to be paid within six months upon the signing of the
memorandum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Charges on Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had charges on one
of its investment properties to obtain a mortgage financing
from a bank in Taiwan of approximately HK$8,230,000
(2017: HK$9,233,000). Investments held for trading have
been pledged to brokers’ account to obtain a margin loan
financing of approximately HK$18,199,000 (31 December
2017: HK$30,077,000). Further, the Group had charges
on certain investment properties in the PRC and Hong
Kong to obtain term loans from a money lender in the PRC
of approximately HK$17,386,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$47,956,000).

Contingent Liabilities
At 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2017: Nil).

Capital Commitments

At 31 December 2018, the Group had capital commitment
amounting to approximately HK$20,000,000 (2017:
HK$35,000,000).

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates
All of the Group's assets,
mainly denominated either in Hong Kong dollars or Renminbi
or New Taiwan dollars. The Directors do not consider that the
Group is exposed to any material foreign currency exchange
risk. Therefore, no hedging devices or other alternative have
been implemented.

liabilities and transactions are

Events after the Reporting Period
Details are set out in note 56 to the consolidated financial
statements.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the global economic activities are expected
continue to strengthen in 2019. Benefit from economic
growth in PRC, a firm US economy and low interest rate, the
Hong Kong economic outlook in 2019 is rather optimistic.
However, the Group continues to allocate resources carefully
in different business segments to optimise the investment
strategies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (continued)

One-stop value chain services

During the year, the Group noticed that the performance of
this segment was better than previous year. We expect that
this business segment will continue contribute to the Group’s
revenue and gross profit.

Property investment

During the year under review, the Group has disposed certain
commercial properties in Quanzhou City, Fujian Province, the
PRC.

The Group will continue monitor its property investment
portfolio and grasp the opportunity to be benefited from the
potential capital gain of the assets together but also balance
with enhanced rental yields.

Trading of consumables and agricultural products

The business segment for trading of consumables and
agricultural products was mainly consisted of re-usable
bags trading business. The business segment demonstrates
growth potential and the Group is optimistic about its future
contribution.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (continued)

Trading of grocery food products

Since the Group has decided not to renew the sale
distributorship agreements with respective principals of
Mengniu and lJinlongyu products, the Group will focus its
resources on Nittin brand of ramen and udon products in this
segment.

Provision of money lending services

The Group’s money lending service segment continue to
make contribution to the Group’s revenue. The Group will
re-visit its credit control policy and look to further expand
this business segment if and when financial resources are
available.

Provision of financial services

The Group has now 2 licensed subsidiaries providing asset
management and advising on corporate finance services.
With the relatively optimistic outlook in Hong Kong in 2019,
the Group hope that this segment will continue to grow and
make positive contribution to the Group’s revenue and profit.
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The Directors present the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 1 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 102 of this
annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the principal activities of the Group
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 10 to 34 of this annual report.
These discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
334 of this annual report.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers accounted for approximately
68.2% (2017: 53.7%) of the Group’s turnover, and the
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 94.5%
(2017:85.0%) of the Group's cost of sales, for the year ended
31 December 2018. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
at no time during the year ended 31 December 2018, any
Director or his associates or any shareholder (who owned
more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) has
any interest in the above-mentioned customers or suppliers.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year ended 31 December
2018 in the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 106 to 107 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company did not have any
reserves available for cash/in specie dividend distribution to
shareholders of the Company.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and

vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the

IIAGMII)

Latest time to lodge transfers 4:00 p.m.

on 17 May 2019 (Friday)

Book close date 20 May 2019 (Monday)

To 23 May 2019 (Thursday)
(both dates inclusive)

Record date 23 May 2019 (Thursday)

AGM date 23 May 2019 (Thursday)
In order to qualify for the right to attend and vote at the
AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’'s Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office, Union Registrars
Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F, Two Chinachem Exchange
Square, 338 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong before the
above latest time to lodge transfers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company has adopted a new share option scheme on 6
May 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years from 6 May 2011 to 5 May 2021, unless terminated
otherwise as in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Group to grant options to eligible participants
the Directors may at its absolute discretion select as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group. Eligible
participants include any employee (whether full-time or part-
time, including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors), shareholder,
customer, supplier of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds an
equity interest; any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support, any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of
business or business development of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and any other group or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute by way of joint
venture, business alliance or other business arrangement to
the development and growth of the Group.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised or outstanding options) to
each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time
being (the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options
in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant shall be
subject to the Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of
the Company. Where any grant of options to a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant:
(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million; such further grant of options must be approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

An option may be exercised at any time during a period to
be determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on the date upon which the
offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any
event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination
as set out in the Share Option Scheme. Unless otherwise
determined by the Directors and stated in the offer of the
grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum period
required under the Share Option Scheme for the holding of
an option before it can be exercised.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option. The subscription price for shares
under the Share Option Scheme will be a price determined by
the Directors, but shall not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
guotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 6
May 2011, the Company was also authorised to issue up to
242,459,969 shares (i.e. 121,229,984 consolidated shares
upon the share consolidation effective on 11 October 2013)
upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose,
options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group) to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group,
being 10% of the shares in issue on 6 May 2011 (the
“General Scheme Limit”). The Company may seek separate
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting to grant options
beyond the General Scheme Limit to participants specifically
identified by the Company before such approval is sought.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of
shares to be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no option was
granted under the Share Option Scheme.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, 100,375,000
shares options were lapsed.

As at 31 December 2018, the number of Shares in respect
of which options had been granted and accepted and
remained outstanding under the Share Option Scheme
was 30,325,000 after Capital Reorganisation of the
Company became effective on 16 November 2018 (2017:
403,625,000), representing approximately 3.90% (2017:
6.61%) of the Company'’s issued share capital as at that date.
For details of the Capital Reorganisation, please refer to the
announcements of the Company on 3 October 2018 and 15
November 2018 and circular of the Company on 22 October
2018.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2018 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. So David Tat Man
Mr. Lai Yick Fung
(resigned on 30 March 2018)
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey

Mr. Zhang Min

Ms. Yuen Wai Man
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
(continued)

Each independent non-executive Director has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a fixed term of two
years and may be terminated by not less than three months
prior notice in writing served by either party to the other
in accordance with the provisions set out in the respective
appointment letter.

Each executive Director has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial fixed term of two years
and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than six months’ notice in writing served by either party to
the other in accordance with the provisions set out in the
respective service agreement. Each of the executive Directors
may receive a discretionary bonus, the amount of which
will be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion
having regard to the operation results of the Company and
performance of the Directors.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at
the AGM has a service contract with the Company, which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Mr.
Zhang Min and Ms. Yuen Wai Man, an annual confirmation
of their independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2018.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, chief executive
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out
in Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO")) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they have taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required to be entered in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors, were
as follows:

Long position in the underlying shares in respect of the share
options of the Company (which were regarded as unlisted
physically settled equity derivatives) granted under the Share
Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 6 May 2011:
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EEERE

EE BETBRAERIENGESHAL
[k
EENAKERSTRABRAUZSHAL
BN S FIE D R E NG a M RERM 12K
13

EERBETHRAERAQAHE[HE
BEE R HERORES 2ES

FKE

R-_E—NFE+-_A=+—HB KQAFESEH
BRTHRABREREZES LBAEEM ([F
H R EREIEA ) EXVER BT RS BAME K
NERER A (BIEREBES LR G 2%
EBRUBEERBIEERB 2 ERIAR)
L IRBEFEH KB KR FE3I52G AL ALK A A
FEZBRELMZ AR R S E A HE A E
(EERFHRBAEKRFIEXVED) 2 & - 85
B REH 2 BRIKE  HIRIEGEM LT
A5 4618 567K BHESTETESFR S Z
MEEMEARR T NIRRT 2 Ok B
T

AMREARTR - ——F 1 A7 A RS
BB AR M BISE 0 A5 2 AV B AR (LR B3
ETAEMR MR AT T A) MR E
7R

Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Date of Exercise price 1 January during during during 31 December
Name grant per Share  Exercisable period 2018 the year the year the year 2018
(HKS) (Note)
(Note)
R=2-N% R=2-N%
BRE® -A-H tZA=+-A
] BHEH %€ &S WATR ERR Enfk EREN WARTR
(#x) (i)
(Hit)
So David Tat Man 13 July 2015 0212 14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 21,375,000 - - (21,375,000) -
BEX “E2-nEtAT=R “E—tEtATHAZ

—2-\¥tA+=A
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR EERESTHASRERDAHE[E
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING BMrECRG HERORESE IS
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY HKAE (&)

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Date of Exercise price 1 January during during during 31 December
Name grant per Share  Exercisable period 2018 the year the year the year 2018
(HKS) (Note)
(Note)
R=2-N% R=2-N%
BRE® -A-H TZA=t-H
2] RYBH %€ &S WA FRRH ERfTf ERER AT
(#x) (Hiit)
(#it)
12 September 2016 110 13 September 2016 - 15,600,000 - - - 1,560,000
ZE-RENATZH 12 September 2019
“E-RENATZRE
ZZ-NENATZH
13 September 2017 - 15,600,000 - - - 1,560,000
12 September 2019
“E-rENATZRE
ZZ-NENATZH
13 September 2018 - 20,800,000 - - - 2,080,000
12 September 2019
“Z-\ENAT=RE
ZZ-NENATZH
Lai Yick Fung 13 July 2015 0212 14 July 2017 -13 July 2018 5,000,000 = = (5,000,000) -
Bag ZE-REtATEA “E-tEtATRAZ
ZE-\EtAT=H
12 September 2016 110 13 September 2016 - 6,000,000 = = (6,000,000) -
B ENATZA 12 September 2019
Z3-~"ENAT=RE
ZZ-NEAATZH
13 September 2017 - 12,000,000 = - (12,000,000) -
12 September 2019
2 tEAATZRE
ZZ-NEAATZH
13 September 2018 - 16,000,000 = - (16,000,000) -
12 September 2019
Z2-\EAATZHE
ZZ-NEAATZH
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EEE®RE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS OR BEENESTHEAERAKD T HIEMHE
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING BEEZRGD HBEROEESZES
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY HERE ()
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
Date of Exercise price 1 January during during during 31 December
Name grant per Share  Exercisable period 2018 the year the year the year 2018
(HKS) (Note)
(Note)
R=2-N% R=2-N%
BRERH -A-H tZB=t-H
2] RHBH %€ &S HRAT EREH ERTE EREN WA
(#x) (i)
(#it)
Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith 13 July 2015 0212 14 July 2017 - 13 July 2018 2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) -
221 “E2-RELATZR “E2tFEATHRE
ZE-\EtATZA
12 September 2016 110 13 September 2016 - 12,000,000 - - - 1,200,000
ZE-ENATZH 12 September 2019
“E-REAATZRE
ZE-NEAATZA
13 September 2017 - 12,000,000 - - - 1,200,000
12 September 2019
“E-LEAATZRE
ZE-NEAATZA
13 September 2018 - 16,000,000 - - - 1,600,000
12 September 2019
“E2-\FAAT=RE
ZE-NEARTZA
Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey 13 July 2015 0212 14 July 2017 -13 July 2018 2,000,000 S = (2,000,000) -
HEER —E-nFtATER “E-tELATHAE
ZE-\EtAT=H
12 September 2016 110 13 September 2016 - 1,500,000 - - - 150,000
B ENATZH 12 September 2019
Z2-~"ENAT=RE
“Z-NEAATZH
13 September 2017 - 1,500,000 S = - 150,000
12 September 2019
“Z-tENAT=RE
“Z-NEAATZH
13 September 2018 - 2,000,000 S = - 200,000
12 September 2019
ZZ-\¥NAT=RZE
ZZ-NEAATZH

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4L EFRA 7
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

ESRBHTRABRER IRETIE
Bk 2R3 - ARBRAR D R M35 2 A
AR (F)

Outstanding
asat
Date of Exercise price 1 January
Name grant per Share  Exercisable period 2018
(HKS)
(Note)
R=2-N%
sRRS -B-H
#e RYBH %€ &S WA
()
(#it)
Zhang Min 13 July 2015 0212 14 July 2017 -13 July 2018 2,000,000
®R “Z-nECATER “Z-tELATMAR
ZE-\EtATZH
12 September 2016 110 13 September 2016 - 1,500,000
ZE-RENATZH 12 September 2019
“E-RENATZRE
ZE-NEAATZA
13 September 2017 - 1,500,000
12 September 2019
“E-rENATZRE
ZE-NEAATZA
13 September 2018 - 2,000,000
12 September 2019
“E-\ENAT=ZRE
ZE-NEARTZA
Yuen Wai Man 12 September 2016 110 13 September 2016 - 1,500,000
72 B ENATZA 12 September 2019
Z3-~"ENAT=RE
ZZ-NEAATZH
13 September 2017 - 1,500,000
12 September 2019
“T-tENAT=RE
ZZ-NEAATZH
13 September 2018 - 2,000,000
12 September 2019
ZZ-\¥NAT=RE
ZZ-NEAATZH
Note: The number of options outstanding as at 31 December 2018 ihg=2

represents the number after Capital Reorganisation become
effective on 16 November 2018 and the exercise price per
share for options granted on 12 September 2016 became
HK$1.10 after the Capital Reorganisation. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company on 3 October 2018 and 15
November 2018, and circular of the Company on 22 October
2018.
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Granted
during
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Exercised
during
the year

FRffE

Outstanding

Lapsed asat
during 31 December
the year 2018
(Note)

RZB-NE
tzA=t-8
MATTE
(Hit)

FREH

(2,000,000) -

- 150,000

- 150,000

- 200,000

S 150,000

150,000

200,000
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES

Save as disclosed under the section “"DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS” above,
at no time during the Reporting Period, there subsisted
arrangements to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
is a party, being arrangements whose subjects are, or one
of whose objects is, to enable any of the directors or the
chief executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the directors of the Company, their spouse or
their children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for the securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2018.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as the Directors are aware of and having made due
enquiries, as at 31 December 2018, the following parties,
other than the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions directly or indirectly
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)
Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company:

FERR (&)
REQXARGREBRRO 2HE:

Number of Number of
shares of shares of Number of Approximate
the Company the Company underlying percentage of
(Personal (Corporate shares of the issued
Name of shareholders Interests) Interests) the Company Total share capital
ARARBEBE  ARARGHE LN HERITRAN
RREM (fEA#ER) (RAHESR) HERGHA By BREDL
(Note 1)
(Hz1)
Yardley Finance Limited (Note 2) - 43,080,000 - 43,080,000 5.54%
w AT EERAR (Hit2)
Chan Kin Sun (Note 2) - 43,080,000 - 43,080,000 5.54%
B (hit2)
Notes: Bt -
1. As at 31 December 2018, the Company's issued 1. E-NF+-_A=+—H ARAE

ordinary share capital was HK$7,771,324.30 divided into

w=
BB A AT, 771,324308 0 9B
777,132,430 Shares of HK$0.01 each. 7,

132,4300% BR A E0.01E T Z B 15 »

ZHL B R N B AR AR (& A 8
Bl —ERBEEMRILZBER AR
B-mlafHBhaREN2EEE  RR
ERTRR RN IR P A -

2. These shares were held by Yardley Finance Limited (”Yardley 2.
Finance”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability. Since Yardley Finance is wholly-owned by
Chan Kin Sun, Chan Kin Sun was deemed to be interested in
these shares.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company: (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the Company is not aware of any
other person, other than a director or the chief executive
of the Company, who held interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2018 as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

REPURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the
Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and
distribution of grocery food products
On 4 Feb 2016, Chan Kee and Right Ocean entered
into the Sole Distributorship Agreement whereas Chan
Kee has agreed to appoint Right Ocean as its sole and
exclusive distributor for sale and distribution of the
Products within the territories of Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan (the “Sale Transactions”).

Right Ocean is indirectly held as to 51% by the
Company and 49% by Ms. Yoo, Chan Kee (90%
held by Mr. Chan, the spouse of Ms. Yoo) is therefore
connected person at subsidiary level of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and
the Sale Transactions contemplated under the Sole
Distributorship Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions on the part of the Company
subject to reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) REER S (4F)
1. Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and 1. EEREENS - HERTHEHEHRE R
distribution of grocery food products (continued) (&)
The Master Agreement TEEE
The Sole Distributorship Agreement B— i s
Date: 4 February 2016
HEj: —E—-RE-ANH
Parties: (i) Chan Kee
HEPE (i) BRAC
(i) Right Ocean
iy BB
Duration: Commencing from the date of the Sole Distributorship Agreement up to 31
December 2018 (both days inclusive)
SRERE BE—oSEEREASRGS BEE-FT - \F+A=T—HB (BREEEM

Subject matter:

TEFH:

Annual Caps:

FELER:

Transaction amount:

B)

The Sale Transactions
HER S

The Sale Transactions will be subject to the following annual caps:
HERXZHAMA TIFELR:

The aggregate amounts payable by Right Ocean to Chan Kee for the Sale
Transactions for the period from the date of the Sole Distributorship Agreement
up to 31 December 2016 and for each of the two financial years ending 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2018 shall not exceed HK$25 million,
HK$35 million and HK$40 million, respectively
BE-—DHEHREPREE S —R"F+_A=+T—REkBE-_ZT—+F
T A=+ AERZE-NF+ A=+ HLIMEVRFEESFREHM -
BUSIRIBIHERX ZEN TRENE SR DR M SBESEEET 3588
BT RIOBBAETT

For the year ended 31 December 2018: approximately HK$3.8 million

RHEH: REBE_Z—\F+_A=+—HLFE:L38&ET

Terms: On normal commercial terms and at rates no less favourable from independent

iRk third parties in respect of the transactions similar to the Sale Transactions.
Detailed payment terms are specified in individual contracts governing
particular transactions.
BR—RAEGRRBETNERBLE=RIEEXSFRAUR I EL - FHAX
FHEFNR B R ERX S ERI S KR ETER -

Details were set out in the Company’s announcement HEHERARRIBHR T —XRF_A

dated 4 February 2016.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1.

DIRECTORS’' REPORT
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BEXS (&)

Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and 1. BEBESS - HERSHEEHRER

distribution of grocery food products (continued) (&)

Definitions B

“Chan Kee” Chan Kee Holdings Limited

[FRAC 5 R EEFR AT

“Products” various products being packaged ramen and udon noodles
sold by Chan Kee and purchased by and to be distributed by
Right Ocean

[ZEEMm] ¥ HARCSHERHEEBERDENSESRNARSLME
an

“Right Ocean” Right Ocean Asia Limited

DY ¥ BUBEMARRAR]

“Sole Distributorship Agreement”

the agreement entered into between Chan Kee and
Right Ocean dated 4 February 2016 in respect of the Sale
Transactions

[ — 0 g = B
E

The above transactions have complied with the
requirements for continuing connected transactions
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors are of the opinion that the above
transactions were conducted in the ordinary course of
business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; (iii) in accordance with the
relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders as a whole; and (iv)
have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount
capped in accordance with the announcements of the
Company dated 4 February 2016.

R REEMEEX SR AR T —RNF - ANBE LA

Lt HERKAGEM ETARAIE208 18
THRERERFHER-

RIEETRA BUIFRATEFECEH
PRFERER 5 M E R RS AR
BRBHONARELEERAEERBA
RARETS : (R EH R R ER I TER
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R GG (iRIBEREZER S
ZHEBHBEREATFEERFTAALNT
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1.

Continuing Connected Transactions — sale and
distribution of grocery food products (continued)
Definitions (continued)

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited, the Company’s
auditors, were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits
or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Asian Alliance
(HK) CPA Limited have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
above by the Group in accordance with Rule 20.54
of the GEM Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’
letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange. There has been change in auditors
during the financial year. On 30 November 2018,
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited resigned as auditor and
Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as new
auditor of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or controlling shareholders of the
Company or any of their respective associates (as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules) had any business or interest that
compete with the business of the Group or has or may have
any other conflict of interest with the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Details of the retirement benefits schemes are set out in Note
42 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws although there is no restriction against
such under the laws in Bermuda.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company's corporate governance practices are
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this
report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s environmental, social and
governance practices are set out in the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” section of this report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees and senior
management of the Group is set up by the remuneration
committee of the Company on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard
to market competitiveness, individual performance and
achievement.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above and also in Note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2018 and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 31 July 2001 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control and risk
management systems of the Group. The Audit Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors; namely Ms. Yuen Wai Man (Chairman), Mr. Yick
Ting Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang Min.

The audited financial results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

AUDITOR

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited (”“Asian Alliance”) was
appointed as auditor of the Company on 30 November 2018.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Asian Alliance as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

By Order of the Board
So David Tat Man
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management
of the Company are committed to the maintenance of good
corporate governance practices and procedures.

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasise a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has complied with the applicable code
provisions on Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year under
review except for the following deviation:

The code provision A.2.1 of the Code provides, among
others, the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Company did not appoint a chairman. The Board will
keep reviewing the structure of the Board from time to time.
If candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and experience
is identified, the Company will make appointment to fill the
post of chairman as appropriate.

Under code provision A.2.7 of the Code, the chairman of
board should at least annually hold meetings with the non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) without the executive directors present. As the
Company does not have the Chairman, no such meeting was
held in this regard for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the rules set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company was not aware
of any non-compliance with the required standard as set out
in such code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises five Directors, two are
executive Directors and three are independent non-executive
Directors.

The Board members for the year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. So David Tat Man
Mr. Lai Yick Fung
(resigned on 30 March 2018)
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey

Mr. Zhang Min

Ms. Yuen Wai Man

The Directors’ biographical information are set out on pages
5 to 9 in this report. All executive Directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Group.
Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the
position so as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.
There is no relationship among the members of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company is committed to having a diversity of the
Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy. The
Company considers that having a Board with diverse culture
would assure Directors that their views are heard, their
concerns are attended to and they serve in an environment
where bias, discrimination and harassment on any matter
are not tolerated. The Board has adopted a board diversity
policy which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. Board appointments are based on merit
and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board
including, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board
consisted of three independent non-executive Directors who
have appropriate and sufficient experience and qualification
to carry out their duties so as to protect the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. One of the independent non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualification
or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required by Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.
Each independent non-executive Director has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for an initial fixed
term of two years and may be terminated by not less than
three months prior notice in writing served by either party to
the other or in accordance with the provisions set out in the
respective appointment letter.

The Board considers that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent and have received from
each of them the annual confirmation of independence
required by Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring of
the Group's overall strategies and policies; approving of
business plans; evaluating the performance of the Group and
overseeing the management. The Board focuses on overall
strategies and policies with particular attention paid to the
growth and financial performance of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group
to the executive Directors and senior management, while
reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of
the Board are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended Board meetings.

The Company has arranged insurance coverage on Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions which
may be taken against its Directors and officers in the
execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.

BOARD MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE
The Board meets regularly at least four times a year to review
the financial and operating performance of the Group.

Details of the attendance record of each Director at the
meetings of the Board and general meetings of the Company
are as follows:
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Attendance of

HE
Board General
Meetings Meetings
Exged RRRE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. So David Tat Man RRIEXSEE 14/14 2/2
Mr. Lai Yick Fung (resigned on Bngid (RZZTE—NF
30 March 2018) = A=TH#E) 5/5 0/0
Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith RENEE 14/14 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey S REIE S 14/14 2/2
Mr. Zhang Min REESE 12/14 12
Ms. Yuen Wai Man REHLT 13/14 2/2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD PRACTICES

Apart from the four regular Board meetings of the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Board met on other occasions
when a board-level decision on a particular matter was
required. The Directors received detailed agenda and
documents prior to the meetings of the Board to ensure that
the Directors were able to make informed decisions regarding
the matters discussed in the meetings. All Directors may
access the advice, regulatory updates on governance and
regulatory matters from professional parties if necessary.

The Company Secretary and the company secretarial team are
responsible to take and keep minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings and ensure compliance with the
procedures of the Board meetings and general meetings
of the Company. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to Directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses
as well as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes,
laws, rules and regulations.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations
on changes and developments relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments to
the Directors at the Board meetings. Trainings conducted by
professional service provider regarding Listing Rules’ updates
on corporate governance have been provided to the Directors
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance is upheld
and that the Directors possess up-to-date information to
discharge their duties.

The Directors are committed to complying with Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training they received for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to the Company.
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TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS (continued)

All of the Directors have either attended seminars organised
by external professionals relevant to the business or directors’
duties or read professional materials publicated by regulators
or professional bodies for the year ended 31 December 2018.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The positions and roles of chairman of the Board and chief
executive of the Company should be held and performed
separately by two individuals to ensure their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company did not
appoint a chairman or a chief executive.

The Board will keep reviewing the current structure from
time to time. If candidate with suitable knowledge, skills and
experience is identified, the Company will make appointment
to fill the posts as appropriate.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) had been formed in 2005
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board. Following the
re-domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands into
Bermuda in October 2007, it was re-established pursuant
to a resolution passed by the Board on 15 February 2008
and specific terms of reference were adopted. As at the
date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, all are independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Ms. Yuen Wai Man and Mr.
Zhang Min. Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The role and function written in the terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are no less exacting terms
than the Code. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.
The Remuneration Committee also reviews and recommends
the Board on its proposals relating to the remuneration
of the executive Directors with reference to the Board'’s
corporate goal and objectives. No Directors or any of his/
her associates can be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. Factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group
and desirability of performance-based remuneration are
considered by the Remuneration Committee to determine
the remuneration package of individual executive Directors
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment; or relating to
dismissal or removal for misconduct to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair, not
excessive, reasonable and appropriate.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee of the Company held one meeting to review
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management and to advise on remuneration packages of
newly appointed Directors. Details of the attendance of the
meeting are as follows:
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Attendance
Name of members RE & HERE
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey (Chairman) SEBSEA (TFE) 1/1
Ms. Yuen Wai Man REH XL 1/1
Mr. Zhang Min wEREA 11
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) had been formed in 2005
pursuant to a resolution passed by the Board. Following
the re-domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands
into Bermuda in October 2007, the Nomination Committee
was re-established pursuant to a resolution passed by the
Board on 15 February 2008 and specific terms of reference
were adopted. As at the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprises three members, of which all of them
are independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yick
Ting Fai, Jeffrey, Mr. Zhang Min and Ms. Yuen Wai Man. Mr.
Zhang Min is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The functions of the Nomination Committee are reviewing
and supervising the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifying qualified individuals to become members
of the Board, assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
and senior management.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, including the independence status in the case of
an independent non-executive Director, the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board has also adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
Accordingly, selection of candidates to the Board is based
on a range of measurable objectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, skills, knowledge
and length of service, having due regard to the Company’s
own business model and specific needs from time to time.
With the existing Board members coming from a variety
of business and professional background, the Company
considers that the Board possesses a balance of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’s business.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to review the composition,
size and structure of the Board, to assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors. Details of the attendance of the meetings are as
follows:
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Attendance
Name of members REEE H IR
Mr. Zhang Min (Chairman) RERLE(FE) 11
Ms. Yuen Wai Man REf L 1/1
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey SREE 1”1
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 31 July 2001 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. As at the date of this report,
the Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Yuen Wai Man, Mr. Yick Ting
Fai, Jeffrey and Mr. Zhang Min. Ms. Yuen Wai Man is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation
or dismissal of such auditors; reviewing the quarterly,
interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and
supervising the financial reporting process and effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee had during the year performed
such functions and reviewed the unaudited quarterly and
interim results and audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2018.

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
of the Company held four meetings to review and supervise
the financial reporting process, and corporate governance
and internal control review and make recommendation to the
Board on reappointment of the external auditor. They had,
in conjunction with the external auditor of the Company,
reviewed the annual results of the Group and recommended
to the Board for their consideration and approval. The Audit
Committee of the Company was of the opinion that the
preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosures have been made.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

Frequency of Meetings and Attendance (continued)
Details of the attendance of the Company’s Audit Committee
meetings are as follows:
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Attendance
Name of members KRERR HERE
Ms. Yuen Wai Man (Chairman) rREGRL(EE) 4/4
Mr. Yick Ting Fai, Jeffrey S RENE ST 4/4
Mr. Zhang Min RELEHE 4/4

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties with its written terms of reference as set
out below:

a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

Q) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

e) to review the Company’'s compliance with the
corporate governance code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

An amount of approximately HK$925,000 (2017:
approximately HK$940,000) was charged to the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2018. Remuneration to the auditors of the Company, Asian
Alliance (HK) CPA Limited, amounted to HK$700,000 for
the provision of annual audit services for the year ended
31 December 2018. Remuneration to the auditors of the
Company, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, amounted to
HK$100,000 and HK$125,000 respectively for the provision
of annual audit services and other non-audit services for
the previous year. A resolution for re-appointment of Asian
Alliance (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The Board concurs with the views of the Audit Committee in
determining the re-appointment of auditors of the Company.
There has been change in auditors during the financial
year. On 30 November 2018, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
resigned as auditor and Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited was
appointed as new auditor of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Group's account for each financial period to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flows for that period. In preparing the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018, the Board has selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently; made judgments and
estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable. The Directors
are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities.

The auditors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Ng Cheuk Fan,
Keith was the Company Secretary who was appointed on 30
March 2018 following the resignation of Mr. Lai Yick Fung.
Pursuant to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Ng has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene special general meeting

The Directors, on the requisition of shareholder(s) of the
Company holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the rights, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company in Bermuda and its principal
place of business in Hong Kong for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionists, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of two months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board.
All enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong or the registered office
in Bermuda, or by e-mail to info@chinaeco-farming.com for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

On the requisition in writing of either (i) any number
of shareholder(s) of the Company representing not less
than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates; or (ii)
not less than 100 shareholders, the Company shall, at the
expense of the requisitionists: (a) to give to shareholders of
the Company entitled to receive notice of the next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; (b)
to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred
to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at that meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the head office and principal place of business
in Hong Kong of the Company for the attention of the
Company Secretary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders
of the Company and investors. The Company has disclosed
all necessary information to its shareholders and investors
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. Moreover, the
Board maintains close communications with the shareholders
and investors of the Company through a number of formal
communication channels which include (i) the publication of
the Company’s latest business developments and financial
performance through its annual, interim and quarterly
reports, notices, announcements and circulars; (ii) the general
meetings providing an opportunity for the shareholders of the
Company to raise comments and exchanging views with the
Board; and (iii) the Company’s website provides an effective
communication platform between the Company and its
investors.

During the year of 2018, there has been no significant
changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.

POLICY ON PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of dividends
(“Dividend Policy”) on 30 November 2018 pursuant to
E.1.5 in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules’ Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report with
effective from 1 January 2019.

The Policy sets out principles to determine the amount that
can be distributed to the Shareholders as dividend. The Policy
and the declaration and/or payment of future dividends
under the Policy are subject to the final determination
of the Board that the Policy and the declaration and/or
payment of dividends would be in the best interests of the
Shareholders and the Company. The Board will use their best
endeavours to maintain a balance between the Shareholders’
expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy.
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POLICY ON PAYMENT OF DIVIDENDS (continued)

The Company has always strived to enhance the
Shareholders’ value. The Directors believe that distributing
dividends to the Shareholders is an important method to
create value for them.

The Policy includes the following parameters/factors to be
considered by the Board for declaration of dividend from time
to time:

Circumstances under which the Shareholders may or
may not expect dividend

Il. Financial parameters/factors that shall be considered
for declaration of dividend

Il Internal and external factors that shall be considered
for declaration of dividend

V. Utilisation of retained earnings
V. Multiple classes of Shares

The Board will review the Policy from time to time and may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Policy at any time as it deems fit and
necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk
management and internal control systems are designed for
managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

Risk management policy has been established to formalize
the risk management of the Group, to build up a standard
and effective risk management system, improve the
ability of risk prevention, so as to ensure the Group is
operating in a safety and steady environment, the operation
management level could be increased and the Group's
operational strategy and target could be achieved. The
current practices will be reviewed and updated regularly to
follow the latest practices in corporate governance.

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

The Board resolved to delegate its responsibilities (with
relevant authorities) of risk management and internal
control to the Audit Committee. Terms of reference of
the Audit Committee included the followings: (i) review
the Group’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems; (ii) discuss the risk management
system and internal control systems with management to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control systems; and (iii) to consider major
investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and management'’s response to these findings.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems (continued)

The Audit Committee (on behalf of the Board) oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

To ensure the efficient and effective operation of the
business and operations, relevant internal control policies
and procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over
capital expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records
and ensuring the reliability of financial information used for
business and publication. These policies and procedures are
monitored and reviewed from time to time and updated
where necessary. All employees are made aware of the
policies and procedures in place, with understanding
enhanced by staff communications and training.

The Board has reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
at least quarterly, through the Audit Committee.

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

As a routine procedure and part of the risk management
and internal control systems, executive Directors and
management would meet on monthly basis to review the
financial and operating performance of each department.
The management of the key operating subsidiaries is
also required to keep executive Directors updated of
material development of the department’s business and
implementation of the strategies and policies set by the
Board on regular basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks (continued)

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the key
processes of the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment
o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment
criteria developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact on the business and the
likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response
o Prioritizes the risks by comparing the results of the
risk assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and
internal control processes to prevent, avoid or
mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the
risk and ensures that appropriate internal control
processes are in place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and

o Report the results of risk monitoring to the
management and the Board regularly.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks (continued)

The Board has in place an internal audit function within
the Group as required under code provision C.2.5 of the
Corporate Governance Code. The Group has engaged an
independent professional adviser (the “Internal Control
Adviser”) to conduct the annual review of the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 31 December 2018. The scope of review
included revenue and receipt cycle, expenditure cycle, cash
management and treasury cycle, and financial reporting
cycle for the Company and two of our operating subsidiary.
Internal Control Adviser has reported major findings
and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee. All
recommendations from Internal Control Adviser would be
followed up closely to ensure that they are implemented
within a reasonable period of time. The Group therefore
considered that the Group's risk management and internal
control processes are adequate to meet the needs of the
Company in its current business environment and that
nothing has come to its attention to cause the Board to
believe the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are inadequate.

Inside Information Disclosure Policy

An inside information disclosure policy is in place to
ensure potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance
with the GEM Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
So David Tat Man
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The purpose of this Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the "ESG Report’) is not only to communicate
the sustainability strategies, management approaches
and performances of China Eco-Farming Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group” or “we")
with the stakeholders, but also to strengthen the Group's
understanding towards their ongoing activities in sustainable
development of the society and the environment as a whole.
This ESG Report summarizes the efforts and achievements
made by the Group in corporate social responsibility and
sustainable development.

Sustainability Approach

We embed sustainability into the Group’s core principles
by operating with transparency and integrity, fostering our
Group’s culture, building a resilient business, operating
responsibly and creating shared value with our stakeholders.

Across the Group, we work proactively and diligently to
monitor and reduce our environmental footprint, to ensure
effective and ethical governance and to invest in ways that
promote sustainable economic growth. Being a responsible
corporate citizen, we strictly comply with all applicable laws,
take into account the environmental, social and governance
factors and risk management strategies in our operations and
fulfill our social responsibilities with good practical deeds.

Scope of the ESG Report

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers our Hong
Kong business of trading of grocery food products, trading of
consumables and agricultural products, property investment,
provision of money lending services, one-stop value chain
services and provision of financial services for the period
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018 (the “Reporting
Period”).

RE HEREBRS

BN AN &

ARG g RERRE ([ESGHRE])ME R
TMERTRAFNEHTEREERGRAR
KEMBAR (Gl [ AEE] & [#HF]) 7T
BERERE BEAHERANRE EBE
AEBEREBRLE MRBAFEERMET
EVTTENE T R - RESGHREBI AL T AEBAE D
EHEREMAIHERRTANS HEAR-

CIESS 959k
BPRAFEERMARNEENZORA - F
TTABHARALENEE T NITERMNEEX
£ REEENKEREBGHRAAER RBiF
NEBTRERZEE-

Hek

SELT 2RETIRGER B HEENE
PERMANRERY BRBEYLEBRENER
WA #E 35 B A IR R T VB IR E - 1
AREEEENEEAR RABRBETHE
ERER ERETFEBEMRE HERkER
REA R R R ERRE  WARFHOERITE
BITRMMEEE T

20

RESGHR H K E

BEBEFHBIN RESGHRERER —T—/\F
—A—REZF-N\F+ZA=1T—HHH
(IBEHEDRANEEXRS IRARME
5 RRmMEEMRE S MERE  RHRE
% — A EBERERE KRR SRR -

Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ FE &£}

73



74

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HEREBHRS

ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

Reporting Standard

This ESG Report is prepared in compliance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
set out in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
The four reporting principles, namely materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency, form the backbone of this ESG
Report.

For further information regarding our corporate governance,
please refer to the section of “Corporate Governance

Report” in this Annual Report.

Feedback

We will continue to improve and refine the content and
format of our ESG Report. Should you have any enquires
or suggestions, please feel free to contact us via post at
Unit 2303-06, 23/F, Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

We believe that understanding the views and opinion of our
stakeholders is of paramount importance to the long-term
success and growth of the Group. Sustainable development
embraces not only our own ESG performance but also our
relationship with stakeholders. As such, we are devoted to
maintaining close and harmonious relationships with our
stakeholders.

It is crucial to maintain communication with our stakeholders
and obtain valuable advice. We continue to adopt the
following communication channels with stakeholders to
ensure we learn their opinions and suggestions timely
and accurately, so that our business could be improved
and developed in a continuous manner. Stakeholders
communications and expectations can be summarized as
follows:

Stakeholders Communication channels
BoE BEAR
Employees e Internal meetings
(== W& &
e Performance assessment
BRGETE
e Company activities
NGINEES)
e Training
b=l
Customers e Business communication
BF 7% A
e Customer service hotline
B P R 2 4R
e Email
el
Suppliers e Business communication
HER BB
e Visits
Bl
e Email
BE
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Expectations and concerns

HERBEIER

e Employees’ compensation and benefits
B B8 KAz T

e Health and safety working environment
RN Z 2 TEIRER

e Career development opportunities

BEEREE

e High quality product and service
BEEm MRS
e Protect the rights of customers

REFP#ER

e Fair and open procurement
N RFEREE
e Win-win cooperation

EHmaF
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RE HERERARSE

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS (continued)

Stakeholders
BFoE

Shareholders

R

Community

ANy ==:]

L\ AA

Government and
regulatory bodies

U & B R

Communication channels

BEARX

e Shareholders’ meetings
BREAE

e Regular reports and announcements
ERmERNE

e Official website
B 77 A8k

o Official website
B 7 A8k

e Charitable activities
REDE

e Information submission
RRER
e Email

EH
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Expectations and concerns

HERBEIEE

e Return on investments
& B8

¢ Information disclosure and
transparency
BRI R RBAE

e Protection of interests and fair
treatment of shareholders

RIBRR R R DT T

e Involvement in communities
oy

e Business compliance
BEAHR

e Environmental protection awareness

RIRE M

e Compliance with laws and regulations
BTRRNER

® Promote regional economic
development and employment

(R R AR MR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

To better understand stakeholders’ opinions and expectations
on the Group's ESG performance, the Group engaged its
stakeholders to conduct a materiality assessment survey.
Both internal and external stakeholders were selected based
on their influence and dependence on the Group. The
selected stakeholders were invited to express their views
and concerns on a list of sustainability issues via an online
survey. As a result, the Group was able to prioritise the issues
for discussion in this Report. The result from the materiality
assessment survey has been mapped and presented as below.
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Materiality Assessment

E LR

» 6.50
(]
! 6.00 02
[]
gﬁ 5.50 250 @18
x 20
ci  5.00 @3
n
Syn 450 5@ 5@ @10
g;z 4.00 2@ @
€& 350 2@ @0 @ @
é 300 9 14 13
= 2.50
3.00 3.50 4.00

@17
21 7
o o
4
[
23
4.50 5.00

Significance to business

HEBNERMN
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continued) EEMEMG (F)

NUMBER LIST OF MATERIAL TOPICS

£ BEERERE

1 Employee diversity and equal opportunities
BEZTIERTERSE

2 Turnover rate
R

3 Occupational health and safety
BERERELZE

4 Training and development
Bl B R

5 Child labour and forced labour
ETR®BEST

6 Employment relationship and communication
BIBEAR K EE

7 Employee remuneration and benefits
12 B 3B Ktz 7

8 Sewage disposal
EIK BRI

9 Greenhouse gas emissions
B E RS

10 Air emissions
& SR HE R

11 Treatment of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
BRERENREZERY

12 Energy and water conservation
Bfi e &K

13 Natural resources (includes water and energy)
BABR (BEKKEEIR)

14 Supplier environmental and social assessment
HERRE LG E

15 Carbon trading system
BRBE P E BT

16 Supplier selection process
HEEGERRE

17 Anti-fraud and corruption
F B K B B

18 Business continuity plan
EERER

19 Product and service quality
EmkRBEE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (continued)

NUMBER
5 5%

20

21

22

23

24

25

LIST OF MATERIAL TOPICS

EEEZEBEE
Complaints handling
ey g

Intellectual property

B ERE

Customer privacy
BEFELE

Research and development
ift &

Community participation
25

Donations

BX

EEMFME (FE)

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4L EFRA 7
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RE HEREBHRS

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT

As a responsible corporation, we are aware of the shared
responsibility to protect and preserve our planet. We
endeavor to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopts effective measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste
reduction. Due to our business nature, apart from emissions
and use of resources for electricity and water, our operation
does not have other significant impact on the environment.

Emission Management

Our greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions primarily stem from
petrol consumption from the use of vehicles (Scope 1),
indirect emissions produced by externally-purchased electricity
consumed in offices (Scope 2), and indirect emissions

produced by business travels (Scope 3).

We have implemented various initiatives to reduce the
amount of GHG emissions, as further explained in the
subsection headed “Energy Management” of this ESG
Report.

Through implementing various measures, the GHG emission
and energy consumption was decreased as detailed below:

Air emissions

REHEK

Nitrogen Oxides (“NOx") A&y (INOx 1)

Sulphur Oxides (“SOx") wmafky (Isox 1)

Particulate Matter (“PM") rE ([PM ])
Annual Report 2018 =& — \ FF 7}
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CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued)
Emission Management (continued)

GHG emission’

BERBHN

Total GHG emissions
(Scope 1, 2 and 3)

Direct emission (Scope 1)

Indirect emission (Scope 2)

Other indirect emission
from air travel? (Scope 3)

BEREENAE
(& E1 - 2K3)
HiEgEw (8E1)

P ($EE2)

fi 22 i AR B HL b )
BEp(#E3)

Intensity of total GHG emissions & = R A& HE % &

Energy Management

The energy consumption information is shown as follow:

Energy consumption

BEFE
Total energy consumption

Intensity of total energy

consumption (per floor area)

Electricity consumption®

Petrol

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HEREBRS

EERE (H)
BERER (&)

2018 2017 Unit
—E-N\F —E—+tF B
59.3 74.2 Tonnes of CO2e
—abixE =S (1)

25.7 37.2 Tonnes of CO2e
—8elixE S (E)

28.9 30.1 Tonnes of COze
—&fbmE S (BE)

4.7 6.9 Tonnes of CO2e
—abixE =S (1)

0.1 0.1 kg of CO2e/m?
“&LIREE

(M8, 75K)

RERERE
BEREERTITRT

2018 2017 Unit
—E-N\F ZE—tF B
125,623.8 166,599.0 kWh
TR

161.2 213.8 kWh/m?
YA RT R

37,768.0 39,186.0 kWh
T FLB

87,855.8 127,413.0 kWh
TR

As the scope of total electricity consumption excluded
those usage in shared office rented by few subsidiaries,
which the electricity consumption data were included in the
management fee paid and unable to be obtained for the
occupied areas, the GHG emission data has not included the
electricity used by those shared office.

GHG calculation for air travel were made reference to the
International Civil Aviation Organization Carbon Emissions
Calculator.

The scope of total electricity consumption excluded those
usage in shared office rented by few subsidiaries, which
the electricity consumption data were included in the
management fee paid and unable to be obtained for the
occupied areas.

HREREERETEELBHELRER
WHEBRAEREE HRETELBEAA
ENERBERTRNEARRES &Ma
EREHRBBETEEZEFHAMIERE

2.
Mz=iR{THAE R L2 ZRBERMA
R BERT B Bs o

HREEERETRBEIHMBELREMAMHL
AMREREE EREEBBREMACH
ERBATEMNMIARMEES-
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RE HEREBHRS

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Energy Management (continued)

As GHG emissions are positively correlated to electricity
and energy consumption, the Group tries to reduce the
consumption of both aspects in its daily operation through
the following specific measures:

o Adopt natural lighting where possible, while energy-
efficient light bulbs are used to reduce electricity
consumption

o Modify the set temperature of air conditioners in the
offices based on the season

o Consider with higher grading of energy efficiency
when selecting electronic devices

o Encourage our employees to switch off idle equipment
(such as computers and lighting equipment) when the
equipment is not in use or employees are getting off

work

o Office copy machines will be automatically switched to
energy saving mode when left idle for a set period of
time

o Encourage our employees to replace business travels

with telephone conference or video conference when
appropriate to reduce related GHG emissions caused
by the transportation required for business travels

o Encourage employees to schedule visits or offsite
meetings within one trip to reduce the frequency of
travel

Annual Report 2018 =& — \ FF 7}
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Water Use and Sewage Discharge

Due to our business nature, we do not consume a large
amount of water resources or generate a large amount of
sewage in our operation. Sewage produced by the Group is
mainly generated from the daily water usage from its staffs
during working hours in office, which is further discharged
to the municipal wastewater treatment plant through the
sewage pipe work. We believed that the water consumption
would be reduced by encouraging our employees to build
up the habit of saving water through the following specific
measures:

o Post notice in office pantries and washrooms to
encourage water conservation

o Remind employees to turn off water taps when they
are not in use

o Any leakage or dripping found in office should also
be reported promptly to prevent unnecessary water
consumption

As we operated in leased office premises in Hong Kong
of which both the water supply and discharge were solely
controlled by the respective building management. Hence,
the water usage data was unable to be obtained by us as an
individual occupant. As our business is located in Hong Kong,
there is no issue in sourcing water.

RE HEREBRS
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HRAE AR5 K BERR

BRI EBEEER - RN S EPAR
HREXERNKER MREEXETKEENR
Yo REBELNSTKEIERBE THEMRAK
A EERK WRBSKEBTIIRE—F
PREMBOS/KEIER - HMRBR - BBAT
Hgt e B g 8 TEKETH KB ER
A REKE

. ERAZERAFHEREBE SEHD
FAKe

. REEE BT AKEBAMKEESE

. KBS & N E A H IR B ERDR BRSO
IKIES - LAB L 5 Z 8 A 7K

HRBEMETENHERAEREER AHft
KEBKEHREEMNAEEREEEBES - K
g EREAERE BRFBEIESHRKER
R AN E P EBLNEE iR ESFK
BRI ERARE -

Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ FF 7}

83



84

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HEREBHRS

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Waste Management

The Group adheres to the waste management principles and
strives to properly manage and dispose wastes produced
by our business activities. Our waste management practice
has been compiled with laws and regulations relating to
environmental protection. Due to the business nature, our
operations do not directly generate hazardous waste. The
non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group’s operations
are mainly consist of paper and domestic garbage generated
in office. The wastes were collected and handled by building
management. The total paper waste generated during the
Reporting Period was 1.45 tonnes (2017: 1.45 tonnes) with
an intensity of 1.86 kg (2017: 1.86 kg) per square meter.

We seek opportunities to reduce resource consumption and
waste generation, reuse and recycle materials in an aim of
minimizing overall quantities of waste. As paper is mainly
consumed by the Group in its offices, the Group has adopted
the following practices to reduce the consumption:

o Encourage both-side printing and the use of recycled
paper for printing and copying

° Disseminate information by electronic means (i.e. via
email) as much as possible

o Provide bins and trays in offices to collect waste paper
for further recycling

o Encourage staff to reduce paper consumption and to
share tips and information on how to adopt a more
environmentally-responsible lifestyle

The Group strongly advocates green office, strengthens
daily operation and management, integrates low-carbon
environmental protection concepts into the daily work of
employees by implementing energy-saving office environment
reforms, promoting paperless office management, raises
employees’ awareness of energy conservation, and
cultivates the environmental habits of employees. With the
implementation of the measures above, we believe the
objectives of saving energy, reducing waste and preserving
the environment can be achieved.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CARING FOR ENVIRONMENT (continued)

Packaging Material Use

Due to the business nature, the Group does not produce any
finished product and does not have any industrial facilities. As
the suppliers would arrange delivery to our customers directly
for the trading business, we do not consume a significant
amount of packaging materials in our daily operations.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with Air Pollution Control
Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Water
Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations
related to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste. The Group did not have any significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

Our dedicated and skilled workforce is our biggest asset. We
are committed to providing training, equal and development
opportunities for our people to enable them to reach
their potential in a healthy, safe and respectful working
environment.

Equal Opportunities

The Group believes that it is important to provide employees
with equal opportunities based on the principles of fairness
and fairness. We provide fair opportunities for recruitment,
compensation, training, transfer and promotion to our
employees regardless of their gender, ethnic, background,
religion, colour, age, marital status, family status, retirement,
disability or pregnancy.

In addition, the Group adopts a zero-tolerance attitude
towards gender, ethnicity, disability discrimination, and
workplace harassment. We respect human rights and
prohibits discrimination, harassment, child labor and forced
labor in the workplace.
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RE HEREBHRS

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES (continued)

Equal Opportunities (continued)

We have established whistleblowing policy, which provides
our staff a private channel to voice out any concerns
about possible discrimination or harassment. We keep the
whistleblowers and their report contents confidential, and
protect the legitimate rights and interests of whistleblowers,
thereby encouraging employees to report violation and create
a good business environment.

Employee Remuneration and Benefits

We offer a comprehensive and competitive remuneration
package to enhance our staff morale and satisfaction. In
addition, the Group conducts staff performance assessments
regularly in accordance to changes in macroeconomic factors
(e.g. national policies and price levels), market trend and the
overall effectiveness of the Group, and makes corresponding
adjustments to staff remuneration. Outstanding employees
will get promotion as reward and recognition. Apart from
competitive remuneration packages, we also grant share
options and special bonuses to eligible personnel, depending
on their performances and our financial conditions, in
order to attract and retain the most talented people. Our
employees also enjoy the statutory holidays, annual leaves,
maternity leaves and compassionate leaves regarding to the
relevant laws and regulations.

Our employee handbook outlines the standard working
hours, paid leaves, rest periods and dismissal policy in
protection of the rights of our staff. We disseminate the
handbook to all our staff to keep them well informed of our
principles and policies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES (continued)

Recruitment and Dismissal

To attract high-calibre candidates, the Group offers fair
remuneration and benefits based on the individuals’ past
performance, personal attributes, job experiences and career
aspiration. We follow the principles of fairness, equality,
competitive and non-discrimination to hire outstanding
talents, and devote to protect human right and privacy
of employees. We recruit employees based on a number
of factors, such as professional experience, educational
background and capabilities, and they are not discriminated
against because of their age, sex, sexual orientation, race,
disability, marital status, pregnancy, religion, political factions
and referrals, so as to maintain employment equality.
All employees of the Group have entered into written
employment contracts and such contracts include dismissal
term where the Company has the right to terminate such
contract with an employee who willfully violates local laws
and regulations and the Group's policy.

Promotion of work-life balance

We believe a culture of healthy work-life balance supports
us to build an energetic and more collaborative team. By
providing five-day working week and organizing a wide
variety of recreational activities for our staff, we believe it can
uphold the excellent work performance of employees and
benefit the growth of the Group.

Training and Development

We believe our sustainable growth is largely derived from
the continuous development of our staff. We place a great
emphasis on career development of talents and are dedicated
to providing our employees with abundant opportunities for
career development.

We provide and encourage employees at all levels to
participate in various internal and external courses, including
technical and vocational training seminars, forums, on-job
and continuing training courses. We also offer educational
subsidies to our employees to attend academic and
commercial course. These not only enhance their job-
related skills and knowledge, but also provide them equal
opportunities for learning, training and promotion.
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RE HEREBHRS

CARING FOR EMPLOYEES (continued)

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any incidents of non-compliance with the Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Minimum
Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the laws of Hong Kong) and
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485
of the laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to compensation and dismissal,
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare.

recruitment and

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group pays great attention to the physical,
and occupational health of its employees. We aim to offer
and maintain a safe and healthy working environment for
employees to protect them from work-related accidents or
injuries.

mental

We are committed to achieving this goal by implementing the
measures including but not limited to:

Provide personal medical insurance and business travel
insurance for all employees

o Provide sufficient first-aid kits and personal protective
equipment at workplaces

o Prohibit smoking in all enclosed areas within our
offices without exception

o Perform regular checking and maintenance of
machines, equipment and fire extinguishers

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with The Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards. We also did not receive any reports
on work-related injuries or causalities during the Reporting
Period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

LABOUR STANDARD

In strict accordance with applicable local laws and
regulations, we adopt a zero-tolerance approach to unethical
labour practice including but not limited to child labor and
forced labor. Once any breach of regulations is discovered,
the labour relationship will be terminated immediately. All
recruitment procedure and promotion are managed by the
Human Resource Department to ensure no child labour or
forced labour is employed.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with the Employment of
Children Regulations made under the Employment Ordinance
(Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) or other relevant laws
and regulations on preventing child or forced labour.

CARING FOR CUSTOMER

The Group attaches importance to quality, safety and
environment, and endeavors to fulfill social responsibilities
and facilitate sustainable development of the food industry.

Product Responsibility

As one of our principal business is trading of grocery food
products, we have always endeavored to provide safety
food products to our customers. We have registered as
food importer and food distributor under the Food Safety
Ordinance (Chapter 612 of the Laws of Hong Kong). We
have registered as a food importers/food distributors under
the Food Safety Ordinance. In order to demonstrate that
we are committed to selecting cooking oil suppliers with
adequate and appropriate records, we have registered
as registered supplier to the Hong Kong Cooking Oil
Registration Scheme under Hong Kong Quality Assurance
Agency (“HKQAA™) on voluntary basis.

Regarding to product recall, we attach great importance to
the food alerts issued by Centre for Food Safety as well as
related market information. Once we noticed our product
is involved with quality and safety issues and necessary to
be revoked, we will fully collaborate with related regulatory
authorities and recall the relevant products as required. Recall
arrangement will be announced and the recalled products will
be handled appropriately. During the Reporting Period, no
product recall has been incurred.
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RE HEREBHRS

CARING FOR CUSTOMER (continued)

Personal data privacy

In accordance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group handles the
personal data of our customers carefully by collecting only
necessary personal data and ensures that the information
obtained is protected from unauthorised or accidental access.
Our employees are constantly reminded the importance of
respecting the privacy of personal and business data.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with the Consumer Goods Safety
Ordinance (Chapter 456 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Food
Safety Ordinance (Chapter 612 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Food and Drugs (Composition and Labelling) Regulations
(Chapter 132W of the Laws of Hong Kong), Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and other relevant laws and regulations that constitutes a
significant impact on the Group in relation to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

We value mutually beneficial and longstanding relationships
with our suppliers. Our major suppliers are suppliers of
grocery food products, consumables and agricultural
products, external business consultants and general office
supply. The selection of suppliers is based on criteria
such as quality, cost, business scale and reputation, with
preference given to potential suppliers that demonstrate their
commitment to the environment. Full compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations is a must for our suppliers.
When a supplier is found to be inconsistent with our policy
or contractual requirements, we will terminate future
cooperation until the situation got improved.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware that
any key suppliers had any significant actual and potential
negative impact on business ethics, environmental protection,
human rights and labour practices, nor any of them had any
non-compliance incident in respect of human rights issues.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CARING FOR SOCIETY

We are committed to participating in community events and
the improvement of community wellbeing and social services.
We support and encourage staff to actively participate in a
wide range of charitable events outside working hours, raise
awareness and concern for the community, last but not least,
inspire more people to take part in serving the community.

During the Reporting Period, the Group made contributions
to various charitable organization, such as Yan Oi Tong, Po
Leung Kuk, Hong Kong CPPCC Youth Association Limited,
Ten Percent Donation Scheme Foundation, The Hong Kong
Federation of Youth Groups, Agency for Voulunteer Service
("B TIEERB") with approximately of HK$922,700
(2017: HK$458,000).

Anti-corruption

We regard honesty, integrity and fair play as core values that
must be upheld by all directors and staff at all times. The
Group strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud or anti-money laundering.
Any misconduct related to bribery, extortion, fraud or anti-
money laundering are strictly prohibited within the Group.

We have established reporting channels where employees can
report illegal and non-compliance conducts that they have
noticed by in-person, phone, email or letter. The reporting
content will be confidential and never be exposed to third-

party.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other
relevant laws and regulations and there was no legal cases
concerned with corrupt practices were brought against the
Group or Directors or employees.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR E

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA ECO-FARMING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued into
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 102 to 333, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN
We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group reported loss attributable to the
owners of the Company of approximately HK$68,428,000
and had HK$69,732,000 net cash used in operating activities
for the year ended 31 December 2018. These conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the "“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern”
section, we have determined the matters described below to
be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment on loan and interest receivables

The key audit matter
HARERER

As disclosed in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2018, the Group's
gross loan receivables amounted to approximately
HK$45,253,000, and an allowance for credit loss of loan
receivables of approximately HK$11,038,000 were included
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.
aﬁﬁu%?é§ﬂﬁ%?$&%%Miéfzsﬁﬁﬂiﬁg RZZE-—N\FE+A
=+t—H SE5£ENEREFRETELRAL5253,000%
T mEKRER MEE%E%ﬁme%pm%maﬁ
A BEENGEMBRAEK-

The impairment loss on loan receivables included in the
Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2018 amounted to approximately HK$620,000.
BE_ZT-/\F+_A=+t—"HILFE A BB
& B S M 2 T a7 e W FOR B B 1R 4) /620,000
B TT e

The allowance for credit loss of loan receivables represents
the management’s best estimates at the end of the
reporting period of expected credit losses under Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9: Financial Instruments
expected credit losses models.
RUERNEEERRBREEEURTEMBRELED
Fogt e T ARHEEBEEA THRELREHREE
BENREMRE

Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition, and apply a three-stage impairment model to
calculate their expected credit losses.

ERENEERUERNGEERRED A VIR HERIAR
AN WA =FBEREEAGFERLEREEEHER-
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEHEBERPNEER X

Our audit procedures in relation to
management’s assessment on allowance for
credit loss of loan receivables included:
EEREEREEHEREREEFER BTG
MEZIEF LA

- understood and tested the key control

procedures performed by management,
including its procedures on periodic
review on overdue receivables and the
assessment of expected credit losses
allowance on the loan receivables;

- THREASREEEETHBEETHIRE
Fr - /6045 ¥ 160 HA FE W SR IE A °E BR AR AT AR
Fr R E R ERIE B EE B R R ENRT
s

= understood and evaluated the modelling

methodologies for expected credit
losses measurement, assessed the
reasonableness of the model selection
and key measurement parameters
determination;

- TRERAEHEREEEEHERTEE
ARE THERRELRARAESR
HETHEEM:

= for the historical information, discussed

with management to understand
the management’s identification of
significant increase in credit risk, defaults
and credit-impaired loans, corroborated
management’s explanation with
supporting —evidence;

— BELEHMmME HERENwTBE
BEHEERR EOREEREER
RNIBEINEVER U FEEEZZEE
BENREE.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment on loan and interest receivables

(continued)

The key audit matter
HARERER

The measurement models of expected credit losses involves
significant management judgement and assumptions,
primarily including the following:
EREEFENAERA T REREBHB MER T2
B

- selection of appropriate model and determination
of relevant key measurement parameters, including
probability of default, loss given default and
exposure at default;

- EEREENRALETHEEERGTELE BREE
AME - BOEBNENRR

- criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default; and
- BEEEXEAORBRES KIBEMOIELE: &

- economic indicator for forward-looking
measurement, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings.

— HIEMFENKERESZ MNERKEERTEE-

We consider impairment assessment on loan and interest
receivables as a key audit matter because of its significance
to the consolidated financial statements and the significant
estimates and judgement involved in determining the
expected credit impairment losses allowance on the loan
receivables.
EERRERERLNEREEEREREE AARY
malBmRhEBETRERRKEFEREEEBEEMT K
MEBRMEARAAGEFTEE -

B A% BLET R

EEELEE (FE)
FE WK & 5 K% RS BRI E R AR (48)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEHEBRPNEERL X

- for forward-looking measurement,
we assessed the reasonableness of
economic indicator selection, economic
scenarios and weightings application,
assessed the reasonableness of the
estimation by comparing with industry
data; and

— BAEUAEmMS BMATELEE
B RESSIAEEERAEREZARE
M AEETEHBRETER G
"R

- checked major data inputs used in the
expected credit losses models on sample
basis to the Group’s record.

- BEYH SEERHFOHEK SRS
EEBEEEAMRANEZSEBA -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Valuation of investment properties

The key audit matter
HARERER

As disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management has estimated the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties to be
HK$169,800,000 as at 31 December 2018 with a net
revaluation gain for the year ended 31 December 2018
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income of approximately
HK$16,249,000. The management has engaged
professional valuers to perform valuation of the entire
portfolio in order to support management’s estimates.
WMNFE M BREMTNIFARE EBEEGRGT &%
ER - N\F+_A=T—BEREVENATFER
169,800,000 T HE-T—NF+ZA=+—HIF
Eit e m L EMEERE RN ER RS FENR
16,249,000 - BB EE Z B L MEMET2EG M
B UXFHFERBENMGG -

We consider valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the valuations are dependent
on certain key assumptions that require significant
management judgment on the prevailing unit rate.
EERRREDENGHEBARERZEE REZHHE
EMBHRREAEEN HAEKRBRNEEZHIRITEEE
HEARERHE & TRRRR-
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEHEBERPNEER X

Our audit procedures in relation to
management’s valuation of investment
properties included:
EEREERBEHREMFETHENERE
Fr e 4% -

- evaluated the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the valuers;

-  FHMERERMNEE O RFEIL:

- assessed the valuation methodologies
used and the appropriateness of the key
assumptions based on our knowledge of
the property industry; and

-  ERBRABEYETROE AR
AMHETERERRENGEE: &

- checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.

- BAmMEREERE AR ERMT
NIERAE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on 28 March 2018.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR E

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement and Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Chan Mei Mei

Practising Certificate Number: P05256

Suites 313-316

3/F., Shui On Centre
6-8 Harbour Road
Wan Chai

Hong Kong

28 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeBRskEMEEmKER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

2018
—E-N\F
NOTES HK$'000
Lk FHERT
Revenue e
Goods and services o R R 6 44,696
Rental He 5,153
Interest A 1,568
Total revenue AUz 51,417
Cost of sales 5 65 B A (37,798)
Gross profit EH 13,619
Other gains or losses H Wz skEia 7 7,587
Gain from changes in fair value of Txé“«*%%ﬁ’] NS =
investment properties, net BE)h s 55 17 16,249
Loss from changes in fair value of ?E’D\$TE FFAB=EZ
financial assets at fair value through SREEANFE
profit or loss SHEEIE (20,486)
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREBR 18 -
Selling and distribution expenses HENMDHEAX (1,232)
Administrative expenses TEAX (63,626)
Share of results of associates DREE AR EE 20 (2,382)
Finance costs BLE R A 9 (9,251)
Loss before tax R A B 18 (59,522)
Income tax expense FrigBimx 11 (984)
Loss for the year RFEEEE 12 (60,506)
Other comprehensive (expense) income: E 2 (B ) WA -
Items that will not be reclassified to BT EE S EEER
profit or loss: HH :
Fair value loss on investments in equity R A FEFAEMEEH
instruments at fair value through WHE7HERTEIRE
other comprehensive income M A E{EEE (12,288)
Items that may be reclassified R EHHEEEm
subsequently to profit or loss: EH :
Fair value change of available-for-sale At HERE >
investments NEBEEE -
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEREEZ
translating foreign operations PE W, =58 (11,973)
Other comprehensive (expense) income AEEEM2HE (%)
for the year W A (24,261)
Total comprehensive expense RNEEEEMAZERE
for the year (84,767)
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2017
—tF
HK$'000
TAT

53,359
3,919
5,750

63,028
(47,716)

15,312
(1,830)

2,124
(20,621)
(3,968)
(1,493)
(58,635)

2,637
(10,873)

(77,347)
(365)

(77,712)

402

10,889

11,291

(66,421)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEEEkAEMZEERER

Loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive expense
for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

LOSS PER SHARE
Basic and diluted (HK cents)

FEIEAFREE:
EN/NCTEZ 2 DN
FEFRRR SR #E 2

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_F—\F+-A=t+—HIEE

NOTES
iy &

RIS ANFE 2 EFI AR -

ARTHAA
SRR

BRER
EAR K #E (B

15

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FTHET

(68,428)
7,922

(60,506)

(86,113)
1,346

(84,767)

(9.63)

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FET

(71,648)

(6,064)

(77,712)

(56,844)
(9,577)

(66,421)

(Restated)
(&%)

(11.83)

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR &

At 31 December 2018
RZE—NF+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-NE —FT—+F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FAETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Plant and equipment 5 M 3% 16 6,158 7,984
Investment properties wEYHE 17 169,800 169,173
Goodwill EES 18 4,272 4,272
Interests in associates REENE 2w 20 73,431 75,813
Equity instruments at fair value BRATFEFAEME
through other comprehensive WeszEm T H
income 21 31,984 -
Available-for-sale investments AEHERSE 22 = 59,180
Deposit paid for acquisition of BT EE — R B
a subsidiary z&% 23 35,250 20,000
Loan and interest receivables U E K B 25 = 1,675
320,895 338,097
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories, finished goods rE (%'Jﬁqu) 921 1,002
Trade and other receivables JrE U B R R EL Ath JE UK
T’AIE 24 27,292 33,428
Loan and interest receivables FEUE K B 25 34,215 48,059
Loans to associates 1 B N 71’Etﬂ B 26 27,864 24,856
Financial assets at fair value f@zﬁﬁpﬂr}\?@ &7
through profit or loss TREE 27 20,362 40,328
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNE S 28 17,870 5,111
128,524 152,784
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables fﬁ%@ R % B A A~
29 31,051 35,746
Contract liabilities ’7’% FE 30 1,940 =
Amounts due to Fiﬁﬁﬁ IRER R
non-controlling interests IE 31 2,995 2,995
Borrowings F%k 32 35,616 57,189
Margin loans payables ERRZSER 34 18,199 30,077
Convertible bonds AR &S 35 - 21,687
Contingent consideration payable JEfSSHAKAE 46 - 512
Income tax payables J& 1~ PR 15 A% 623 909
90,424 149,115
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHR 38,100 3,669
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBEE
LIABILITIES 358,995 341,766
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBER
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFEEE 36 22,022 21,533
NET ASSETS EEFHE 336,973 320,233
104
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR &

At 31 December 2018
RZE—N\F+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N§F —ZZ=T—+F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ki FTHERT FHET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E

Share capital LN 37 7,771 122,071
Reserves f# 292,586 162,580

Equity attributable to owners of RNRRER ANEIEER
the Company 300,357 284,651
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR AR R = 36,616 35,582
TOTAL EQUITY =R 336,973 320,233

The consolidated financial statements on pages 102 to 333  F#102£333EM AV HHRERBAETEN -Z

were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of ~ —NF=A =+ /\BHERFEERETT WLET
Directors on 28 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: IMATEE:
So David Tat Man Ng Cheuk Fan, Keith
BIEX RER
Director Director
EF EFE
105
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE_ZT-/\F+_A=+—RHILLFE

At 1 January 2017

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
(expense) for the year:
Items that may be subsequently
redlassified to profit or foss:
Fair value change of available-for-
sale investments
Exchange differences arising on
translating foreign operations

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

Issue of shares upon conversion of
convertible bonds (Note 37(a))

Bxercise of share options (Note 37(b))

Issue of shares upon settlement of

contingent consideration (Note 37(c))
Changes in ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in loss of control

(Note 47)
Expiration of conversion option of
convertible bonds (Note 35)
Acquistion of a subsidiary (Note 44)
Recognition of equity-settled share
based payments (Note 41)
Share option lapsed
during the year (Note 41)

At 31 December 2017

RZF-t5-A-B
AERER

RERRMEENE (R%):

ERIEHSEZRELEE
RHEREIATELED
REBNEREL ERZR

REREKRENE

RER2ENE ()48

RATEREFRETRG
(H370)

fRIERE (Hi370))

REEHARERETRG
(H3700)

HBRAEAEE
I Everai

TEREREEREES
(H335)

WENELR (Hita)

B BREERIRG
BERNAR (K1)

FREXWERIE (Hitn)

b
Hitar)

RZF-t5+2A=1-8

Share
capital

L3
HK$'000
TR

120,007

1369
615

122,0m

Share
premium

Rl

HK$'000
TiEn

398,019

1379
4153

442

416409

Equity
component
of convertible
bonds
TERES
BEID
HK$'000
TER

12847

(4,194)

(2.954)

5,699

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIB¥ERER A A

Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARTREARE

Investment Share
revaluation options  Translation Special
reserve reserve reserve reserve

REER BhRE
R e BEEE BhIRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T T Tk Fitn
Note (a)
Miita)
4,662 13,168 (17.725) 6,026
402 - - -
- - 14402 -
402 - 14,402 -
402 - 14402 -
- (1,385) - -
- 9,255 - -
- 2211 - -
5,064 18,827 (3353) 6,026

Other  Accumulated

reserve losses

HE 2itEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

Titn Titn
Note (b)
Hilo)

- (218,875)

- (71,648)

- (71,648)

(764) -

- 2954

- 21

(764) (285,3%8)

Total

&t
HK$'000
T

318129

(71,648)

402

14,402

14,804

(56,844)

10970
3383

522

(764)

9,255

284,651

Non-
controlling
interests
F2R

L ]
HK$'000
FER
43,998

(6,064)

3513

(3513)

957)

764

397

35,582

Total

&t
HK$'000
TER

362,127

mny

402

10,889

1,291

(66:421)

10970
3383

522

397

9,255

320233



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MERREE R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-F—\F+-A=ft—HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Equity
component  Investment
Share Share  of convertible  revaluation
capital premium bonds reserve
TARES

ARTREARE
(Accumulated
Share losses) Non-
options  Translation Special Other retained controlling
reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests
(BiER) FER

B Rt REDS REE(HE  BRERE BERERE BHRR EbEfE REEw At RR:
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TERL TER TER TERL

At 31 December 2017 RZT-tFtf=t-H 12201 416,409 5,699 5,064
Adjustments (see Note 3) AR (RH) - - - (8,780)
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZF-\§-A-B(&jl) 1220 416,409 5,699 (3,716)
Loss for the year TEEEA - ° ° =

Other comprehensive income (expense) ~ AFRE 2 EMA (F%)
for the year:
Items that wil not be redssified to
profitor foss:
Fair value loss on investments in equity J ,
instruments at fair value through other ATERA
comprehensive income - - - (12,288

ltems that may be subsequentl recissified A7 ;94
to profit or loss: E
Exchange diferences ariing on BEENEBELCERER

translating foreign operations - B = -

Other comprehensive income for the year ~ AEEEf2EMRA - - ° (12,288)
Total comprehensive (expense) income TERRE(RX)RAEE
for the year - - - (12,288)
Placing of new shares (Note 37(d) RERRR (Wi310) 24,000 75,600 - -
Placing expenses in relation to HF—%‘H WNZQE:. ﬁ
the issuiance of shares - (2,691) - -
Isste of shares upon settlement of
contingent consideration (Note 37(c)) 55 305 - -
Expiration of conversion option of
convertble bonds (Note 35) - - (5,699) -
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of
subsidiaries (Note 43) 9,300 13,00 - -
Recognition of equity-settled share based
payments (Note 41) - - - -
Share option lapsed during the year ERE & HERE (i)
(Note 41) - - - -
Release of investment revaluation reserve  #AL & 2 A TR A HM%M
upon disposals of equity instrumentsat & ZERTE
fair value through other comprehensive Eii
income - - - (192)
Capital reorganisation (Note 37(f) RAE4 (H3370) (147655 (502,643) - -
At 31 December 2018 RZEF-NF+ZA=1-A 1m - - (16,796)
Notes:
(a) The special reserve represents the difference between the

nominal amount of share and share premium of the former
subsidiary of the Company and the nominal amount of the
Company's shares issued pursuant to a group reorganisation
in 2002.

(b) The other reserve has been set up and dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies for the changes in
ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control. Details of changes in ownership in interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in loss of control is set out in
Note 47.

Fikn Fn TEn Tén T TR ¥
Note (a) Note (b)
Kit(a) K& (o)

B
oo

18,827 (3323) 6,026 (764) (285,358) 284,651 35,582
- - - - (11542) (20322) (286)
18827 (3383) 6,026 (764) (296,900) 264329 35,296
- - - - (68.428) (68.428) 9

- - - - - (12,288) -

- (5371) - - - (537) (6,602)

- (5371) - - - (17,659) (6,602)

- (5371) - - (68.428) (86,087) 1320

- - - - - 99,600 -

- - - - - (2.691) -

- - - - - 360 -

- - - - 5,699 - -

- - - - - 230 -
2,526 - - - = 2526 -
(6,737) - - - 6,737 - -
- o = - ] o -

- - - - 650,298 - -
14,616 (8,694) 6,026 (764) 298,198 300,357 36,616

Total

£t
HKS'000
i

320233

(20,608)

299,625

(60,506)

(12,288)

(11.973)

(24,261)

(84,767)

99,600
(2691
360
230
2526

336,973

@  FRIREEREARBANE SRR EERK
MaEERE_TT _FEEEHEMETH

ARBRMDEEFNERE-

S

5 L sk

(b)  HEETIRE KB QR AAES

i A2

@%W e Jﬁ%ﬁ %5730 B 3% o — [T

B AR FTA R
A AT -

China Eco-Farming Limited EF‘.E¥$ & R A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Depreciation for plant and equipment

Amortisation of an intangible asset

Share based payments

Gain on fair value changes of
investment properties, net

Loss from changes in fair value of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Impairment loss on goodwill

(Reversal of) impairment loss
recognised on trade receivables

Impairment loss recognised on
other receivables

Impairment loss recognised on loans
and interest receivables

Impairment loss recognised on loans to

associates
Gain on fair value change of
contingent consideration payable
Gain on disposal of interest in a
subsidiary

Loss on written off of intangible assets

Loss on written-off of plant and
equipment

Loss on written-off of other receivables

Write-down of inventories

Share of results of associates

Interest income

Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

(Decrease) increase in financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Decrease (increase) in loan and interest
receivables

Increase in trade and other receivables

Decrease in trade and other payables

Increase in contract liabilities

Cash used in operations
Income tax paid

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Annual Report 2018 =& — \E 44

NOTES
i &

REER
BRI AT 18

BTHIEE (e
BEKA
B MREITE
BV A ERH
ARG 3 BERERHR 41
BREMERNFEZEHW
% %
RAF B ARG
SREEAFEED
EBE
R REEE
AU IER 2 ORE
EiaR M) REE B
/jl:;ﬁ\ﬁﬂﬂgj‘l&ﬁ/\laﬁ@um
BB BT 18
BN B R K R B R
ZRERE
MR T B2 QB ER
MR 2 REER
AR E AT

m% WW% AR
M WA

sy e & EEE
WsE R MR 2 BB

W?f@f& KIH 2

518
WEHFE
DB ERBIRE
B KA
KARAFE ABR

TREENBRE WA

=113
D> I 3
K S
ﬁ

EEESEHAI2L
ERE
FAAERSRE
Q)i‘bu
DMM

j\'_'J s /DZ,/J\

ryf X R B A R
&0

BB B B S 300
A

24B EE

o
g

1:1 ‘\Hﬁ\“'

v

it
@ﬁmw

l\m]}/-\/\

REMALS
ERFSH

REXBFAREFE

2018
=—\F
HK$ 000

T

(59,522)

9,251
2,356

2,526

(16,249)
20,486

(53)
27
620
721

(152)

(1,065)

13,290

83

2,382
(4,481)

(1,369)

(31,149)

(520)
(2)

4,777
(14,639)

(28,197)
605

(69,125)
(607)

(69,732)

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FET

(77,347)

10,873
2,684
1,604
9,255

(2,124)

20,621
3,968

302

(1,942)

3,075

382

(33,134)

18,320
213

(476)
(17,454)

(14,790)

(47,321)
(239)

(47,560)



INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds on disposal of asset classified
as held for sale

Proceeds on disposal of equity
instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Proceeds on disposal of investment
properties

Interest received

Net cash inflow from acquisition of a
subsidiary

Dividend income from financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Loan advance to an associate

Purchase of plant and equipment
Net cash inflow from disposal of
a subsidiary

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New borrowing raised

Exercise of share options

(Decrease) increase in margin loans

Repayment of loan payable

Repayment of borrowing

Proceeds from issue of new shares

Interest paid

Transaction costs attribute to
placing of new shares

NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
THE END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank balances
and cash

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-—Z—\Ft_A=t—AILEE

2018 2017
—E-N\E T —+4F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FHT FE T
BRETE
ﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%Z%ﬁ
ER TSR = 19,447
Hj%?’w?fﬁ?)\ﬁmi
E a2 s T B/ FT
(EFTeE] 5,370 -
HH A ) 2 RO B8 B0E
7,591 -
B W F & 3 1,560
WE—FB AR ZEE
MAEEE 43, 44 4 363
BAFEFABZERE
B 2R E WA 1,369 288
BN TF—EBE AR Z
B (20) (22,083)
BEWE K&E (560) (3,321)
HE—RHKNBARZ
BERAFEE 45 15,755 -
REFBELE (FFRA)BRE
FE 29,512 (3,746)
A& E B
HERBIER 75,386 47,956
Tﬂfﬁﬁﬂxﬁé = 3,383
RESEF O A) 8 (11,878) 13,309
EBEEMER = (20,000)
BiEER (96,621) (10,727)
BT Z TS 308 99,600 =
BT F B (7,438) (248)
e & FTA% 15 FEAE X SRR AN
(2,691) =
MEEB SRS FEHE
56,358 33,673
HeRBELSEEEM R
D)BEEE 16,138 (17,633)
FHUzRERALEE
5,111 22,298
NEERESFH &
(3,379) 446
FRZBRERBRSESE
AR 1T 4588 IR 251 R
17,870 5,111
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

1.

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

General

China Eco-Farming Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands under the Company Law
of the Cayman Islands on 30 November 2000.

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 5 February 2002.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Company re-domiciled from the Cayman Islands into
Bermuda by way of de-registration in the Cayman
Islands and continuation as an exempted company
under the laws of Bermuda. The change of domicile
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on
15 October 2007 and the Company was continued
into Bermuda with limited liability with effect from 29
October 2007.

The addresses of the registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and the principal place of business of the Company
is Suites 2303-06, 23/F Great Eagle Centre, 23
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) do not consider any
company to be the ultimate holding company and
parent company of the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
business of one-stop value chain services, property
investment, trading of consumables and agricultural
products, trading of grocery food products, provision
of money lending services and provision of financial
services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company. Other than those
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") and incorporated in Taiwan whose
functional currencies are Renminbi (“RMB") and New
Taiwan dollars ("NTD") respectively, the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is HK$.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
incurred a loss attributable to owner of the Company
of approximately HK$68,428,000 and net operating
cash outflows of approximately HK$69,732,000
during the year ended 31 December 2018. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

Although the Group has been continuously incurring
losses in these years, the Directors are of the opinion
that the Group will have sufficient working capital to
meet its operating cash flows as and when they fall
due for the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period given that:

(i) the Directors will continuously review the cost
structure of the Group formulate appropriate
cost saving measures to improve the
performance and the cash flows of the Group's
operations;

(i) the Directors are also considering streamlined
the Group's asset base by realise some of its
investment properties, selling the Group's
equity interests in PRC and interest in associates
in PRC to strengthen the Group’s cash flows;
and the existence of standby facility to the
Company for the period of 18 months.

GAMBHREMT
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE
mEEXE
HE_ZT-N\F+_A=+—HL*F
B AEBEARRAEE ARLERE
#4768,428,000 T M HE T — \F
TZA=+T—HIEFEELLERER
% K8 £769,732,0007 7T o AR ST BB R
BERTEEMNTFE EHRNEEF
BICEMBE NIBKEREER

BEARERNOIFABEELER B
EERR AEERBERHEEESE
MEAHREHRERR+ ZEAANDE
ZRBERER M IER

() EFEHEFHAEEOHKAN
e LHIR] A EMETE AT
Mo AR EAEELBEHNRER KL

A2 .
REmRE"

(i) EFTECAEZEBBERTIR
BEWE HERNEERTEARK
EN S T R /N Py
@ ARBEARENEEER &
fEASBENRESR BARFR
18 A MEFERHSRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Accordingly, the Directors are of the opinion that it
is appropriate to prepare these consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
on a going concern basis. The consolidated financial
statements do not provide for further liabilities which
might arise, and do not include any adjustments
relating to the carrying amount and reclassification of
assets and liabilities that might be necessary should
the Group be unable to continue as a going concern.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments
HK(IFRIC)- Foreign Currency Transactions and
Interpretation Advance Consideration

("Int") 22

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to
Hong Kong
Accounting
Standards
("HKAS") 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Transfers of Investment Property

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance

and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

3.1

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference
at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening accumulated losses (or other
components of equity, as appropriate) and
comparative information has not been restated.
Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected
to apply the Standard retrospectively only to
contracts that are not completed at 1 January
2018. Accordingly, certain comparative
information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 18 Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations.

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 3.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)
3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)
The Group recognises revenue from the
following major sources which arise from
contracts with customers:

o One-stop value chain services

o sales of consumable and agricultural
products

o sales of grocery products

° provision of financial services

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations and the accounting policies
resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are
disclosed in Notes 6 and 4 respectively.

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15

The following table summarises the impacts of
transition to HKFRS 15 on accumulated losses
at 1 January 2018.

Accumulated losses Z2ETEE
Provision of financial services (&R

recognised at a point of time

At

Impact at 1 January 2018 i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“"HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (continued)

The following adjustments were made to
the amounts recognised in the consolidated

statement of financial position at 1 January
2018. Line items that were not affected by the

changes have not been included.

Current Liabilities RBaE

Contract liabilities alER

Capital and Reserves EAR
Reserves Fte
Non-controlling interest FERREER

* The amounts in this column are before the

adjustments from the application of HKFRS 9.

3.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT_A=t—AILEE
FERMAIEEMBHRERERA
B ([EEMBHREED])

(&)
RAFEBHERNHITEEM KBRS
EAIRHEBTA (&)

31 BBUBBEEREISHEFE
W zx (#E)
BRERE BN HIREERIE ]S
RELEZZENE (F)

N TRBDER _ZT—N\F—H
—BR&E ISR R T HERH
SHEL UEXINEHTEN
BEERAEHAC

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 December 1 January
2017 Remeasurement 2018*
RZE-N\F

ZHR —-A-BRE#
ZB-tF BREEER
+ZA=t-H B1SHRET
ERNERER EifiE WREE*
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TBT

- 1335 1335

162,580 (1,049) 161,531
35,582 (286) 35,29
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)
3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (continued)
Notes:

As at 1 January 2018, taking into account the
contract terms, performance obligations of financial
service contracts should be satisfied upon completion
of the service upon application of HKFRS 15.
HK$1,335,000 related to progress billings of financial
service contracts previously recognised as revenue
were remeasured to contract liabilities.

The following tables summarise the impacts of
applying HKFRS 15 on the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018 and its consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the current year for each of the
line items affected. Line items that were
not affected by the changes have not been
included.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)
3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of

financial position

Current Liabilities REBRE
Contract liabilities BHEE
Capital and Reserves EXR#E
Reserves G
Non-controlling interests FERRR RS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

3. ERAFEEMBEREENRH

BRI ([ERMBREER])
(%)
RAFEREERNAITEBUBRE
EANREET A (F)

3.1 FBEUBHREEAFISHEFE
Az (#8)
BN EETE

Amounts

without

application

As reported  Adjustments  of HKFRS 15
YEERER

BHREER

R2% BB EISHENLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET TET

1,940 (1,940) -
292,586 1,524 294,110
36,616 416 37,032
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)
3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of profit
and loss and other comprehensive income

Revenue e
- Good and services — B m & R%
Gross profit E
Loss before tax BB AIEE
Loss for the year rEEHR
Total comprehensive expense AEEXHBAXAE

for the year
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Az (4E)

Hir e B REMZ B 28
b2

Amounts
without
application
As reported  Adjustments  of HKFRS 15
YEERER
PBHREER
R2% BB EISENEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAET TET TET

44,696 605 45,301

13,619 605 14,224
(59,522) 605 (58,917)
(60,506) 605 (59,901)
(84,767) 605 (84,162)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 3. EAFIEBHEREEARE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)
3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)
Impact on the consolidated statement of cash

flows

OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH

Loss before tax BREAIER

Operating cash flows before AREEERERA
movements in working capital RERERE

Increase in contract liabilities BHAREM

Notes:

Taking info account the contract terms, upon
application of HKFRS 15, the performance
obligations of financial service contracts should
be satisfied upon completion of the service. This
change in accounting policies resulted in a reduction
of revenue by HK$605,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018.

BRI ([ERMBREER])
(%)
REFERIERNHTEBYBRE
ERREBRTA (&)

3.1 FBEUBHREEAFISHEFE
Az (#8)
YL BEenEXMTE

Amounts

without

application

As reported  Adjustments  of HKFRS 15
YEERER

BHREER

R2% BB EISHENLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET TET

(59,522) 605 (58,917)
(33,095) 605 (32,490)

605 (605) -
GEE

KETREHGER - RNERBBVBR®
HERAE 1551 eRRBEHNZE
HE TR TR RIS ETT - Lt 5T
BEREHERHE T N\FE+_-A
=+—H1EFE 2 Wz 2 605,000
EIT e

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
Annual Report 2018 —Z — \F &1

119



120

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
In the current year, the Group has applied
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments. HKFRS 9
introduces new requirements for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected
credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and 3)
general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in
HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the classification
and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31
December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at
1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening
accumulated losses and other components
of equity, without restating comparative
information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments (continued)
Accordingly, certain comparative information
may not be comparable as comparative
information was prepared under HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application
of HKFRS 9 are disclosed in Note 4.

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9.

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities and other items subject to ECL under
HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRERM T

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE_Z—\F+_A=+—HLLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)
3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the

related amendments (continued)

Equity

instruments

Financial at fair value
assets at FVTPL  through other
required by  comprehensive

Available- HKAS 39/ income
for-sale HKFRS 9 (“FVTOCI")
EREH

ERE%,/  EATEHA
EREBRS  He2EHE
R 0% (TRA¥HE
RERAFE  HAEBRE
STAREN Wil 28

e SREE HIA
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[iE:3 FET FEL TER
Closing balance R=B-tE
at 31 December 2017 +=BZt-B2
- HKAS 39 MR- EREt
B398 59,180 40,328 -
Effect arising from BERERERUBRE
initial application of EARISE2HE
HKFRS 15 - - -
Effect arising from EREAERMERE
initial application of Eo B pE:
HKFRS 9:
Reclassification ENAR
From available-for-sale BAfLE (@ (59,180) S 59,180
Remeasurement
Impairment under ECL model (b) S > =
From cost less impairment to
fair value @ = = (8.280)
Opening balance at R=B-NE-A-B2
1 January 2018 ERIE - 40,328 50,900
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Financial assets
at amortised
cost (previously
classified as
loans and
receivables)

i £ ES
pELEE
BE (%A%
RERE
EWsE)
HK$'000
TALT

89,413

(10,993)

78,420

ERHFIERVHHRELEARA
ERIA ([ERMBHREER])
(&)
RAFERFERNHTEBUBRE
BRAREBTE (&)

32 EEBUBHEEAFEIRETHMT

A RHEEEET (&)
Financial Investment Non-
liabilities at Deferred tax revaluation  Accumulated controlling
amortised cost  assets/liabilities reserve losses interests

RRERAR

k3 EEHE FER
SRAR KE/AR  REEMHE 2ithE BRAER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TEL TER TR FER
147,694 21,533 5,064 (285,358) 35,582
- - - (1,049) (286)
- - - (10,993) -
= = (8,780) 500 =
147,694 21,533 (3.716) (296,900) 35,296



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)
3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments (continued)
(@) Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments

From AFS equity investments to fair
value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI")

The Group elected to present in OCI for
the fair value changes of all its equity
investments previously classified as
AFS. These investments are not held
for trading and not expected to be
sold in the foreseeable future. At the
date of initial application of HKFRS 9,
HK$59,180,000 were reclassified from
AFS investments to equity instruments
at FVTOCI, of which HK$41,116,000
related to unquoted equity investments
previously measured at cost less
impairment under HKAS 39. The fair
value losses of HK$8,280,000 relating
to those unquoted equity investments
previously carried at cost less impairment
were adjusted to equity instruments
at FVTOCI and investment revaluation
reserve as at 1 January 2018. The fair
value gains of HK$5,064,000 relating
to those investments previously carried
at fair value continued to accumulate
in investment revaluation reserve. In
addition, impairment losses previously
recognised of HK$500,000 were
transferred from accumulated losses to
investment revaluation reserve as at 1
January 2018.

3.

RE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments (continued)
b) Financial assets at FVTPL

The Group has reassessed its investments
in equity securities classified as held for
trading under HKAS 39 as if the Group
had purchased these investments at the
date of initial application. Based on the
facts and circumstances as at the date
of initial application, HK$40,328,000 of
the Group's investments were held for
trading and continued to be measured
at FVTPL.

There was no impact on the amounts
recognised in relation to these assets
from the application of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)
3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments (continued)
(c) Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measure ECL
which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables. Except for those which had
been determined as credit impaired
under HKAS 39, trade receivables
have been assessed individually with
outstanding significant balances
exceeding HK$1,000,000, the remaining
balances are grouped based on past due
analysis

3.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

3.

(continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments (continued)

(c)

Impairment under ECL model
(continued)

Except for those which had been
determined as credit impaired under
HKAS 39, ECL for other financial assets
at amortised cost, including bank
balances, loan and interest receivables
and loans to associates, are assessed on
12-month ECL (the “12m ECL") basis as
there had been no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, additional credit
loss allowance of HK$10,993,000 has
been recognised against accumulated
losses. The additional loss allowance is
charged against the respective asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the
related amendments (continued)

()

Impairment under ECL model
(continued)

All loss allowances, including trade and
other receivables, loan and interest
receivables and loans to associates, as
at 31 December 2017 reconciled to the
opening loss allowances as at 1 January
2018 are as follows:

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE
FERMAIEEMBHRERERA
B ([EEMBHREED])
(&)
RAFEBHERNHITEEM KBRS
EAIRHEBTA (&)

32 BEUMBEHREZEREIRETMT

AREEEET (&)
© FEHEEERELIETHE
1E (&)

RZE—+t&F+ = A
=t+—HZMEBEBERE
(BIEE 5 & H b fE WK
B EWEREFE KM
& N EE B R ER
—ZE-NEF—A—RAZH

VEBEBE 2 HEROT
Loan and
Trade Other interest Loans to
receivables  receivables  receivables associates
ESEWR EWET RBEZELTF

RE HttEWRE kA& fFHER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TR T TR

At 31 December 2017 R-F—+&+-A

~ HKAS 39 =t+-R-FEgit
ERIE39% 302 1,006 4,149 -
Amounts remeasured through 1z #8123 E518
opening accumulated losses  EFTitERISE 106 34 10,418 435
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N§—-HA—-H 408 1,040 14,567 435
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

3.3 HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration

The interpretation specifies that the date of
transaction is the date on which the entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the payment
or receipt of advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance,
the Group is required to determine the date
of transaction for each payment or receipt of
advance consideration.

On initial application, the Group applied the
interpretation prospectively to all foreign
currency assets, expenses and income in the
scope of the interpretation initially recognised
on or after the beginning of the current year,
i.e. 1 January 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(continued)

3.3

34

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration
(continued)

For foreign currency denominated advance
considerations paid by the Group in relation to
acquisition of investment property amounting
to HK$5,814,000, the Group recorded these
advances by applying the spot exchange rate
on initial recognition between the functional
currency of the relevant group entity and the
foreign currency. Accordingly, the application of
this interpretation has had no significant impact
on the amounts reported and/or disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

Impacts on opening consolidated
statement of financial position arising from
the application of all new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group’s
accounting policies above, the opening
consolidated statement of financial position
had to be restated. The following table show
the adjustments recognised for each of the
line items affected. Line items that were
not affected by the changes have not been
included.

HAMIERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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3. ERFITERAMBHREEANRA
B ([EEMBHREED])
(&)
RAFEBHERNHITEEM KBRS
EAIRHEBTA (&)
33 B (BRVBHEERZEBZE
E) —BBEFR2FHIEXERA
HE (&)
MR B U AEIRE W E X TE A
SN EHE R TR K (B5,814,00078
TS AEER YGRS
BEAEEERERBNIREEY
EEHNIEE 7 e B BN ER B 328 52 25 78
RFRIEARR - Bt - FERA LR ER
BHZSEAVMBRRAEHEE 2
We RSB EEREXEM
BATE-

34 ERIEHNITENHRA

HEH BRI EHEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 3. ERAFIEEVKREEARE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS X ([BEMBHREXED )
(“HKFRSs"”) (continued) ()

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are RAEEREERNFTEEHERE

mandatorily effective for the current year ERREEIETA (&)

(continued)

34 Impacts on opening consolidated 34 FEFHE G EL &L
statement of financial position arising B H BRI E(F)
from the application of all new standards
(continued)

31 December 1 January
2017 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
—g—£f
+=H BERHBK BEBHK —E-N\§
=+-H WEER WEER —R—AH
(RE®) 581555 ELL (REif)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TAT FET TET
Non-Current Assets kRBEE
Available-for-sale AHHERE
investments 59,180 - (59,180) -
Equity instruments BRTFEEFA
at FvTOC! Hit2EREm
BaITH - - 50,900 50,900
Current Assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables JEU BE 7% &2
H i R FIE 16,498 - (140) 16,358
Loan and interest ERERLF L
receivables 48,059 - (10,418) 37,641
Loans to associates Bl =N
fELE K 24,856 - (435) 24,421
Current Liabilities REBEE
Contract liabilities BHaE = 1,335 = 1,335

Capital and Reserves ~ BEXR %

Reserves fEE 162,580 (1,049) (19,273) 142,258
Non-controlling interests  JE1Z AR % 5 4% 35,582 (286) = 35,296
130 China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases!

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments'

Amendments to Definition of Business?
HKFRS 3

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
HKFRS 9 Compensation'

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to Definition of Material®
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement'

Amendments to Long-term Interest In Associates and
HKAS 28 Joint Ventures'

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a

date to be determined.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
and interpretations mentioned below, the Directors
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales
and leaseback transactions to be determined based
on the requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the
transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as
a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to
subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing
cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned
use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows by the
Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance
lease arrangement and prepaid lease payments for
leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential
changes in classification of these assets depending
on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets
separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if
they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
approximately HK$3,847,000 as disclosed in Note 40
to the consolidated financial statements. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all
these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of HK$995,000 and refundable
rental deposits received of HK$106,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to
the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the
carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted
to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be considered as additional lease
payments and included in the carrying amount of
right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits received would be considered as advance
lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above. The Group intends to elect the
practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply
this standard to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess
whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which
already existed prior to the date of initial application.
Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the modified
retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16
as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application to opening retained profits without
restating comparative information.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use
in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and
best use.

Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

BERETHE (&)

G BT R R TV IR R SE PR
2 ERENERE TREREHRY
ATEHEZSMIA (MTFXEHE
HABIE) B 51 -

B S R — R ISR S IR 2 (18
ZAFEHE -

RNFERNAERHTS2BERAK
FREFHEEEANNRSERRESR
SXNWMER MARZERETEERA
BiE ek nl fE M E A A E ATt - B
L2RERGENNHEENRATE
HeZEEEXABENRE RIAKHE
REFFEERBENRFHEREE EBZ
ERH M FEAVBERRTIETER
SEREREN R T ET R EEE
i BN E BB REERF 25U
17 73 2R A 17 S EE B AR D 1 R 2
5 BRERGTEUSITRHAERE
NNEER S AREXFEAEDHE
EHHEYIEAFENTE BONEE
S EQE2SRFE AN A FIRFEX
BE G BRI EI6REE R ENERE
BERIN -

FEeRMEENRFEFEDEETSZ
BB E K B E RS & EREAE
HEETRIIEHEERERERZA
LS EEmELKLBEN DA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved where the Group;

o has the power over the investee;

° is exposure, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstance indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee
unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s
voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it
power, including:

o the size of the Group's holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control of the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE

4,

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according
to the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations

Acquisition of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non—controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group
in a business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

EXRETHE (&)

EBEot (&)
BERARERZ KB FFEBRECRE
SRR BT P PTG 28R M 0 A TE
FREZWEETRE(WmE) 2 ¥ E
Z AR - B PRS2 AT R B B
AEZ BERIEE B M2 FRE 2 At
B R BE TR PTUREZ A&
PIEEEMAERE I FERNERZ
RAB - IR AR A SR A as IO U BE 75 P P
h R EE T ST AT A BB 7 2
@ (W) 2 A FEZEM - BIZRAE
PR 28 AR AR A5 o M8 WA e

EBREEA R ANBRRERBA
BRZLL IS EREMNB AR FEEL
FEFRR AR et - ) 2 IR IE PR AR
SEEREET A BRI EEFEN D
REBLPRAFEAE -AEEESR
FHEAXZMIELERE-

EAKEN-REKAHEBZRER
AR ELEE AISARERKE
Bfz AFEFE Uit A—BEBE
HEB 2 REBH— 8- 8 ERIEFTE
HRABR CURREZAFEESHE
BB - EMEARSN [FFEHH]
(TESEBBYE B BES —F) BBER
WERHEFEZEHREZEINE
A 2 S



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or group of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or
group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group
of cash-generating units, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group
disposes of an operation within the cash-generating
unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group of cash-
generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of
the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the
group of cash-generating units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described in
associates” below.

"

interests in

Interests in associates
An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of associates used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate.
Changes in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate
and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest
in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss
on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/
partial disposal of the relevant associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related
to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct
or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in Note 2) (continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of the time value of money if the timing
of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly)
provides the customer or the Group with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A
significant financing component may exist regardless
of whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated
in the contract or implied by the payment terms
agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for goods sold and
services rendered in the normal course of business.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Provision of financial services is recognised when the
underlying services have been rendered in accordance

with the terms of service agreement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

Rental income which are derived from the Group's
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

The Group as lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE

4,

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserves (attributable
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or
an associate that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial
disposals of associates that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and retranslated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits scheme contributions
Payments to the defined contribution plans in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Taiwan are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in
the liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service
cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the date of grant without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on
the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for services are
measured at the fair values of the services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured,
in which case the services received are measured
by reference to the fair value of the share options
granted. The fair values of the services received
are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve), when the
counterparties render services, unless the services
qualify for recognition as assets.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Annual Report 2018 =& — \ FF 7}

EXRSBE (&)

BiE (&)

BIEARE N TR IR T IR AN 2 R AR Bt Kl 51
BHoEARBa A ERBATEERTR 1t
ToR R EMFEARTIE R KA
HO U A B 5 32 DA B BB B AR A Sk T BEFA A
FIRE - ANEB AR BA G AR
5 HIR 2 B 2 MR A S R BUR M 2 &

I

=4
al >+ °

RERA M B MRNEE K AERE(ER
RE B R RTUE MR ERE
BN ZRERQ/ELENIE AR F— R
1 & B P R RR D B R SRR A
HABE - BEEMRAEE—RNAEEE
Rt A DA B A P AT HURLE By 2 R A
R E AN R EZRER - WERE
BRNTHER (REBAFIN BB
FEBRRIRVEN R EENORZNE
ENBEMEL ARRENAEEE
LRBEANTHER WM EEFEZHEL
REEE 2 RER I ERELTH
RHEE-

BT B B R BB A ) KBt R A
MR E R BRI E R Z 8 T A#E
R M AR E A G R E R
AR TN A RSB RIER SN o
HEEARRIRE Mg AR 0 Rl F0R & By
ERMELNETENAEEENARE
e S SR 1t A LA B PR B = BBt A
I T8 HA A A A] R 2R 93¢ (o] B e 2R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of
items of plant and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at its fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below). Amortisation for
intangible asset with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Impairment losses on tangible assets and
intangible assets (other than impairment of
goodwill set out in accounting policy of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset or a CGU
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment losses on tangible assets and
intangible assets (other than impairment of
goodwill set out in accounting policy of goodwill
above) (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or the CGU) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions (continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a settlement date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since
1 January 2018. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in Note 3)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in Note 3) (continued)
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in OCI if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in Note 3) (continued)
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose

of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an

accounting mismatch.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE B X4+ EFRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in Note 3) (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost.
income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below).
subsequently become credit-impaired,
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired,
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Interest

For financial assets that have
interest

interest

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value with
gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value recognised in OCI and accumulated in
the investment revaluation reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to

accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in

accordance with transitions in Note 3) (continued)

(ii) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI
(continued)
Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Group's right to receive the dividends
is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Dividends are included in the
“other gains or losses” line item in profit or
loss.

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains or losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 2)
The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, loan receivables
and loans to associates). The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 3)
(continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based
on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets without significant
financing component. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix
with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE

4,

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 3)

(continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 3)
(continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as
per globally understood definitions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application

HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with Note 3)

(continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
For loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts, the date that the Group becomes
a party to the irrevocable commitment is
considered to be the date of initial recognition
for the purposes of assessing the financial
instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition of a loan
commitment, the Group considers changes in
the risk of a default occurring on the loan to
which a loan commitment relates; for financial
guarantee contracts, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

() Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(i)

(ifi)

Definition of default (continued)

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider;

o it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—\F+_A=+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

4,

(iv)

v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group
is required to make payments only in the event
of a default by the debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the expected losses is the present
value of the expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for
which the effective interest rate cannot be
determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market assessment
of the time value of money and the risks that
are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to
the extent that, the risks are taken into account
by adjusting the discount rate instead of
adjusting the cash shortfalls being discounted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(continued)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available,
the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
Group's trade and other receivables, and
amounts due from customers are each
assessed as a separate group. Loans to
related parties are assessed for expected
credit losses on an individual basis);

° Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances
are recognised at the higher of the amount of the
loss allowance determined in accordance with HKFRS
9; and the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amount of income recognised
over the guarantee period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Except for investments in debt instruments/receivables
that are measured at FVTOCI and financial guarantee
contracts, the Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade and other receivables, loan and
interest receivables and loans to associates where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account. For investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss
allowance is recognised in OCl and accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve without reducing the carrying amount
of these debt instruments/receivables.

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018)

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of
three categories, including financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables and AFS financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—\F+_A=+—HLLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018) (continued)

4,

(i)

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTPL are held for trading on
initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading
if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the “other gains or
losses” line item in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 39(c).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018) (continued)

(ii)

(ii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including loan and interest
receivables, trade and other receivables, loans
to associates and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
loss (see accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as AFS or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1

January 2018) (continued)

(i) AFS financial assets (continued)
Equity securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Dividends
on AFS equity instruments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established. Other changes in
the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve.

Other changes in the carrying amount
of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve.

AFS equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as
trade and other receivables and loan and interest
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of 90 days, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables, loan
and interest receivables and loans to associates where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade or other receivable, loan and
interest receivable and loans to associates is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the
impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Impairment losses on AFS equity investments
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an AFS financial asset, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’'s own
equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to non-controlling interests, borrowings,
margin loans payables and debt component of
convertible bonds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values. It is subsequently measured
at the higher of:

o the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1 January
2018)/HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018);
and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate,
recognised over the guarantee period.

cumulative amortisation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Convertible bonds containing liability and equity
components

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of
the convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the bonds into equity,
is included in equity (equity component of convertible
bonds).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in equity component of convertible bonds until
the embedded option is exercised (in which case the
balance stated in equity component of convertible
bonds will be transferred to share premium). Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in equity component of convertible
bonds will be released to the accumulated losses.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the option.

4,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Convertible bonds containing liability and equity
components (continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Derecognition/non-substantial modification of financial
liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

The Group accounts for an exchange with a lender of
a financial liability with substantially different terms
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability. A
substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability or a part of it (whether or not
attributable to the financial difficulty of the Group)
is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)
Derecognition/non-substantial modification of financial
liabilities (continued)

The Group considers that the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the
cash flows under the new terms, including any
fees paid net of any fees received and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is at least
10 per cent different from the discounted present
value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial liability. Accordingly, such exchange of debt
instruments or modification of terms is accounted
for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the
extinguishment. The exchange or modification is
considered as non-substantial modification when such
difference is less than 10 per cent.

Non-substantial modifications of financial
liabilities (under HKFRS 9 since 1 January 2018)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying
amount of the relevant financial liabilities will be
calculated at the present value of the modified
contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
liabilities" original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying
amount of the modified financial liabilities and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment
to the carrying amount of the financial liability is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in Note 4, the Directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart
from those involving estimations (see below), that
the Directors have made in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements.

Going concern and liquidity

The assessment of the going concern assumptions
involves making judgement by the Directors, at a
particular point of time, about the future outcome of
events or conditions which are inherently uncertain.
Please refer to Note 2 in relation to the going concern
assumptions adopted by the Directors.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

The Group determines whether an acquisition of
subsidiaries qualifies as acquisition of business
in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business
Combination or acquisition of assets that requires
judgment. The Directors consider the substance of the
acquisition of subsidiaries that constitute a business
will be accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 3
(Revised) Business Combination, in case the acquisition
of subsidiaries does not constitute a business, it is
classified as acquisition of assets. Details of acquisition
of subsidiaries by the Group during the years are set
out in Notes 43 and 44.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

EXETHHERMAETIREREZ

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and concluded
that the Group's investment properties are not held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time. Therefore,
in determining the Group’s deferred taxation on
investment properties, the Directors have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is not
rebutted. The Group has not recognised any deferred
tax on changes in fair value of investment properties
as the Group is not subject to any income taxes on
the fair value changes of the investment properties on
disposal.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE

5.

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Estimated impairment loss on interests in
associates

The Directors determined whether interests in
associates are impaired by reference to an estimation
of recoverable amount of investment. The recoverable
amount of interests in associates requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flow expected to arise from
the associates and a suitable discount rate including
the risk adjustment in order to calculate the present
value. The assumption includes management best
estimate of the set of economic condition in the
future.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
interests in associates is approximately HK$73,431,000
(2017: HK$75,813,000). No impairment loss on
interests in associates was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount
of goodwill is HK$4,272,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$4,272,000), net of accumulated impairment
loss of HK$19,322,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$19,322,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in Note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of the financial position at 31 December
2018 at their fair value of approximately
HK$169,800,000 (2017: HK$169,173,000). The fair
value was based on a valuation on these properties
conducted by an independent firm of professional
valuers using property valuation techniques which
involve certain assumptions of market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or
loss reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
Certain of the Group’s financial assets, unlisted equity
instruments, amounting to HK$21,842,000 as at
31 December 2018 are measured at fair values with
fair values being determined based on unobserved
inputs using valuation techniques. Judgement and
estimation are required in establishing the relevant
valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could
affect the reported fair values of these instruments.
See Note 39 for further disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE

5.

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
industry credit ratings as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is
based on the Group's historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue
costs or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in
the forward-looking information are considered. In
addition, trade receivables with significant balances
and credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group's trade receivables are disclosed in Notes 39.

Fair value of share options

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options
are based on the Directors’ best estimate. The value
of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.
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6.

REVENUE
A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

()

Disaggregation of revenue from

contracts with customers

Geographical markets
Hong Kong

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time

Sales channel/type of customer
Wholesale
Corporate

Total

Egm5
Bk

WARZHER
R{EEREH

HERE/BFEE
3
%

it

Total

@t
HK$'000
TER

44,69

44,69

40,694
4,002

6. W=
A BE-ZE-N\Ft+ZA=+-—H
LLFE
() EFE# Wz N
Trading of
One-stop consumables  Trading of  Provision of
value chain and agricultural grocery food financial
services products products services
-3 HERR
BEERYE RERES RHRREZ RUSREH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TAT TEL TEL
28,830 6,045 5,769 4,002
28,830 6,045 5,769 4,002
28,830 6,045 5,769 -
- - - 4,002
28,830 6,045 5,769 4,002

44,69
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

6.

REVENUE (continued)
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018
(continued)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers (continued)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the
revenue from contracts with customers
with the amounts disclosed in the
segment information.

One-stop value chain services

Trading of consumables and
agricultural products
— Reusable bags

Trading of grocery food products
— Ramen and udon

Provision of financial services

Revenue from contracts with
customers

Rental income (Note)

Interest income

Total revenue

China Eco-Farming Limited FE B X4+ EFRA A
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Segment
revenue

2 BB R
HK$'000
TET

28,880

6,045

5,769
4,002

44,696
5,153
1,568

51,417



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. REVENUE (continued)
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Performance obligations for
contracts with customers

Provision of one-stop value chain
services

The performance obligation is satisfied
when services are rendered and the
credit period granted to the customers
is normally due upon completion of the
service.

Sales of reusable bags

The performance obligation is satisfied
upon delivery of the reusable bags and
payment is generally due within 30 days
from delivery.

Sales of ramen and udon

The performance obligation is satisfied
upon delivery of the ramen and udon
and payment is generally due within 30-
60 days from delivery.

Provision of financial service

The performance obligation is satisfied
upon completion of the service. Financial
services contracts are billed when stated
milestones in the contracts are reached.

Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation
for contracts with customers
Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation for
contracts with customers.

All revenue contracts are for period of
one year or less. As permitted by HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

6. REVENUE (continued) 6.
B. For the year ended 31 December 2017

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year
from continuing operations is as follows:

Wz (&)

B.

BZ-_Z—tH+=-HA=+-—H
IHFE

REERFARBRFELEED
WS DTAT

2017

—E—tF

HK$'000

FHET

16,177
3,919

5,870
29,902

55,868

5,750
1,410

7,160

63,028

B3

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT

5,153 3,919

(863) (687)

One-stop value chain services — iR EEERS

Rental income (Note) M UWA (HEE)

Trading of consumables and HEMREEME S
agricultural products

Trading of grocery food products BHEME S

Provision of money lending services RERERS

Provision of financial services R RS

Note:

Gross rental income from WEMERSWALE
investment properties

Less: Ve

Direct operating expenses incurred REANEEBS IR
for investment properties that WEYFETEED
generated rental income during the year HEELERX

Net rental income HeW A FRE

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

7. HtehmREE

OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES

Bank interest income

Loan interest income on loans
to associates

Dividend income from financial assets
at FVTPL

Sundry income

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
(Note 45)

Loss on disposal of financial assets
at FVTPL

Gain on fair value change of
contingent consideration payable

Exchange gain, net

RITH B U A
M B & A B B
ERFBBA
BRAFEFABEHNESRH
BEMREWA
HIEA
HEHB R R MUk
(MI5E45)
HERAFEFABEN
CREERNEIE
NS ARERAFEEB WS

PEE 3 Wi a5 7 #E

2018
—g2-N\F
HK$'000
TR

4,478

1,369
520

1,065

152

7,587

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
THT

1,552

288
243

(7,168)

1,942
1,305

(1,830)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

8.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the board of Directors (the
“Board”), being the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
No operating segments identified by the CODM
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

a. One-stop value chain services -

REDE
RETERDERDBERAFNERNES
g([Exg] X2LEREE ([
REERARE]) VBRENEMEZER
RS HEE MRS HOFE R - 102
HASENA2HOBR TELER
REIWE G PTBBIHEE D RIER

LEZ NEBERBEEEM RS 2R
FEERB| DA 2MOBIAT

provision of total solution services including trading,

packaging and logistics solutions

— U A B EHE RS -

%)

b. Property investment -

RUEFRTERY (BHEES BERVRBRT

generated rental income from operating leases of Group's

investment properties

MERE -

C. Trading of consumables and -
agricultural products
HEmNMEREME -

d. Trading of grocery food products —

BAHREmE S -

e. Provision of money lending =
services

RHE RS -

f. Provision of financial services -

AEBBREME

RHMERS

KREBEEENHES KA
trading of consumables and agricultural products
HEMREEME S

trading of grocery food products
BhHEmES

provision of money lending services

Provision of financial and investment advisory and

corporate financial services

RES RS -

The provision of financial and investment advisory and
corporate financial services were formally commenced
during the year ended 31 December 2017 as a result
of the acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 44). As a result,
a new segment of provision of financial services was
added under operating segments for the year ended
31 December 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
and results by reportable and operating segments:

For the year ended 31 December

Trading of
One-stop value consumables and
chain services Property investment agricultural products
-UARERRE NERE HERRREREZ
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

SRNE CEtE CRAF DTHF RN CFR
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'O00

T T T Fin T Fan
REVENUE [¢:
External sales e 28,830 16,177 5153 3919 6,045 5870
Segment profit (oss) W (529) 16,957 U (3,675) (2,045)

Unallocated corporate other
gain (los), net

Unallocated corporate expenses
Decrease in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL

Share of results of associates

(Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Impairment loss recognised on
goodwill

Impairment oss on loans to TWEMJ SHE
associates B

Impaiment loss on trade and ~ EAERABRNE

ofher receivables BE
Writien-off of other receivables B fENFUA
Finance costs BARE
Loss before taxation BAEHR

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in Note 4. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit
earned by (loss from) each segment without allocation
of central administration costs, directors’ emoluments,
other gains or losses net, decrease in fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL, share of results of associates
and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

8. RESE (&)
PEBBEREE
~ y o =+ & ou N
AT RAEERAIZHRLLLE0EE D
W BRED
BEt+t-A=t—-HLHFE
Trading of grocery Provision of money Provision of
food products lending services financial services Total
AHRRES EREHRRR RUSREE Ea
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
%-Nf Tt Z®-NE CT-LF ZR-NF CFHF CR-NF 0 CE4F
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000
TEr TR Fén TEn T#r TR TEn TR
5,769 29902 1,568 5750 4,002 1410 51417 63,028
(394) (482) (1371) 6,848 (4,179) (52) 1519 374
7,581 (1,830)

(29,735) (46,466)

(20,486) (20621)
(2382) 2631
1,065 -

- (3.968)
(1) -

11 -
(13,290 -
01 (108713

(59,522) (77,347)
EEDBH SRR E M AR A R
SESBEAR - 2R (B1E) 15
%ﬁiﬁﬁ’]“'ﬂ()ﬁﬁa) TRESREF
RITH H s W 25 3
TEJ G E“WEJ)\%%&Z%@%F
RFERD  DEMERREELBE
A UL A EREERREZ R T
e AETERD B RKRIRF G-

pa

China Eco-Farming Limited EF‘.E¥$ & R A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 8.
Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

SE (&)
HEERERE
AT RAEERAIZHR LKL HE D

W

liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

ZEERBENN:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZT—+tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Segment assets THEE
One-stop value chain services — B E RS - 21
Property investment WERE 182,718 193,917
Trading of consumables and HEMRERERE
agricultural products 6,039 5,991
Trading of grocery food products BHRRE S 1,961 5,361
Provision of money lending services R RERS 34,215 49,734
Provision of financial services RS RRS 883 867
Total segment assets NEEEHE 225,816 255,891
Unallocated corporate assets AP RBIEE 223,603 234,990
Consolidated assets HEEBE 449,419 490,881
Segment liabilities S EEE
One-stop value chain services —uh B E RS 5 29
Property investment Y ERE 5,172 6,206
Trading of consumables and HEMREEME S
agricultural products 1,174 1,157
Trading of grocery food products BHREME S 732 351
Provision of money lending services REMERS 403 232
Provision of financial services RIS FRSE 2,047 357
Total segment liabilities DIEBERE 9,533 8,332
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROMAREE 102,913 162,316
Consolidated liabilities CLeEAaE 112,446 170,648
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than certain plant and equipment,
interests in associates, AFS investments, certain
other receivables, loans to associates, financial
assets at FVTPL and bank balances and cash;
and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling interests, borrowings, certain
income tax payable, contingent consideration
payable, liability component of convertible
bonds, certain deferred tax liabilities and
margin loans payables.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

8. ﬁ«( M 7;5 ( )

THEEREE (&)
MEEESBRBARASHESIREER
ma :

. MBEEONREREDERE

?W%& NI TR N S

A ERE BT HEMER

ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ%%@?%ﬁm“ﬁ iy

RFEFABSEZEREE A
FERITRBR RN ERIN &

. FHABEHRELEHEEM
N T
OB (S B TS
(3 R 1B ~ TR 35 2 B 1
M5B TFEERIAES (& KA
RES BB -

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

8.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December

Amounts indluded in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment
assets

Additions to non-current assets (Note)
Increase in fair value of investment
propertes, net
Depreciation for plant and equipment
Loss on written off on intangible assets
Loss on written off on property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of an intangible asset
Impairment loss on trade and
other receivables
Impairment loss on loan and
interest receivable
Impairment loss on inventory
Taxation

Amounts reqularly provided to COMD
but not included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or segment
asses:

(Gain on disposal of interest in 8
subsidiary

Loss on disposal of financial assets at
FVTPL

Loss on written-off of other receivables

Impairment loss recognised on goodwill

Impairment oss on loans to associates

Interest income

Dividend income from financial assets
atfvTeL

Decrease i fair value of
financial assets at FVTPL

(Gain on fair value change of contingent &S

consideration payable
Share of results of associates
Interests n associates
Finance costs

Note:

Wi EAERER

ARREREHANSE

RERRENE
HREVEEER
iz HERIBER

FHRERR
ik

EARAFIERE
RREETHADR
BRANEAEL
HENEE

HERBARER NS

HERDTE
LHEE
HBEERAERR
AL REER
ABERAEL 2 B3
HEFE
LN
ROVEHAREZ
SRAEREKA

DAEE
REELRZER

RERE

Non-current
instruments.

Trading of
One-stop value consumables and Trading of grocery

chain services Property investment agricultural products food products

-HAREREH HERRRERER BHERES
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
Z¥-NE ZE-tF C®-NE CTF DR8N CTHF CR-NE DRt
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Fén FER Fén FER Fén FER Fén FER
- - Ll 52 - - - -
- - 16,249 214 - - - -
- (52) (1,052) (1,026) (3) ) - -
- - - - - - - (3,075)
- - - - - - - (382)
- - = - = - = (1,604
- - (128) - - - 64 (302)
(18) - - - (65) - - -
- - (663) - (162) (17) (18) (107)

assets excluded those financial

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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e (E)
Hitt o MEHR
BEt-A=t—BHLEE

Provision of money Provision of financial

lending services services Unallocated Total
RURERE RHSRER 3] a3t

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 017 2018

Z2-NE “R-tF ZE-0\E 345 ZR-NE CTtF IR0

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000

Fén FER Fén FER Fén FER Fén

= - = 3 519 35718 560

- - - - - - 16,249

- - €] @ (878) (1181) (2,356)

(10) - (12) - 1 - 2%

(620) - - - - - (620)

- - - - - - (83)

- & (81) (610) - 374 (984)

= - - - 1,065 - 1,065

- - - - - (7,168) -

- - - - (13,290) - (13,290)

- - > - - (3.968) -

- - - - (1) - (1)

- 5 - - 4481 1,560 4481

- & - & 1369 28 1369

- = = - (20485)  (20621)  (20486)

- - - - 152 1,942 152

- - al (2382 2631 (2382

> o > B4 75813 53431

- 5 - (9251) (10873 (9,251)

A

=

fiex: FRBEETEREZEERT

017

E-tf

HK$'000
Tin

4103
2124
(2,684)
3075

(382)
(1,604)

(302)

(365)

(7,168)

(3.968)

1,560
28
(20621)
1942
2631

75813
(10873)

o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 8. oM (E\E)
Geographical information i & & E
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong, the REBNERCREE PREEE-

PRC and Taiwan.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external REFEFZBINFEZ PR FFERZEHER
customers is presented based on the location of TIREPHR 2| ANEBEETRBEE
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current TR EEFREHRES] .

assets is presented based on the geographical location
of the assets.

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
RENMBEF 2 i FRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-Nf ZE—tHf ZE-NfE ZZT—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEL TR FEx
Hong Kong BB 46,264 58,946 55,857 42,114
The PRC h 5,153 3919 213,072 212,942
Taiwan = - 163 19,982 22,186
51,417 63,028 288,911 257,242
Note: BfzE -
Non-current assets excluded financial instruments. ETRHEETBIESR T A
Information about major customers BEETEEZEFNER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years HEFEEXARELZIMAEARERE
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the AFBIB10% 7 50T
Group is as follows:
2018 2017
—g-N\EF —TLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR
Customer A' BEREA 24,025 10,378
Customer B2 ZFB? N/A =i 3 10,330
L Revenue from one-stop value chain services segment. 1 KE— R EBEERES B WS-
Z Revenue from trading of grocery food products 2 KERhERE S oA W%
segment.
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 3 BEKSEANEFB BRI THBIB
10% of the total revenue of the Group. 10% o

203
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

9.  FINANCE COSTS 9. ®EBERX
2018 2017
—EB-NFE —ZT—+tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Interest on borrowings &R B 3,770 4,108
Interest on other payables (Note 29) H b fE A FRIAEF B (BT5E29) 277 -
Interest on margin loans payables ERMRBEEFHF L 3,391 2,197
Effective interest expense on MR ES cERFEER
convertible bonds (Note 35) (BFF5¥35) 1,813 4,568
9,251 10,873
10.  IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL 10. REEE MRER
2018 2017
—EB-NFE —ZT—+tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Impairment losses (reversed) BB EE ()
recognised on: AT EEETER:
— Trade receivables — 8 5 EWFRIE (53) 302
— Other receivables — E h fE W SR IE 27 S
— Loan and interest receivables — R E K& F B 620 -
— Loans to associates —MEE RFEHER 721 —
1,315 302
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended REE-_ST—N\E+_-_A=+—HIt&E
31 December 2018 are set out in Note 39. B H R E R RS SR EE39 -
204 China Eco-Farming Limited FE B X4+ EFRA A
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current tax: BIEARR I8

Hong Kong Profits Tax

Deferred tax (Note 36):
Current year

REE

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the "Bill") which introduces the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law
on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following
day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group
entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong
Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first
HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits and
at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above
HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law"”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2018.
No EIT is provided for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017 as the Group did not derive any
assessable profit subject to EIT.

HRENEHR

EFEF IR (FFE36) ¢

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Hz_Z—N\F+-A=1+—HLEE

FREHMAX

2018 2017
—2-N\F Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
THRT T
321 812

663 (447)

984 365

R-ZE—NEFE=R=-+—0 FBLE
@B (T —tFBHK (BF]) (F7
FOBBER) (TZIKEAIER]) 5IA
PSR - ZIEIERR=_F—N
FZAZ+N\BEHEBLER THEAR
EERAE - REFNESHEMAS &&
842 B B B2 15 128.25% I B R gk i Al &
2E BB ITLAMTIIE - Wi1E16.5%K9F
KM E BB TTIA BB FIFIE - ~FF
BHEB MR EROEEE BT
A B 16.5% M F — T R BANTIIE -

Bt BARNFERE  B2A8 BT 2 A5
JE ER T8 M 1R8.25% =T HE B NS -
M28 &7 7T A L 2 {5+ &SRB gk A1 R
16.5%t BEHABNBH -

BREFEARAMBEEMAETE ([1
EMBRED REEMEREAERIK
pl-hENBARE T \F—H—
HAEE T R R25% BN 5 E 0 &%
HR 1S FE B 10 52 P 15 B0 B (R {7 B AR AR
wA MU ERABE—FT-N\FR-F
—tFtT A=t —BHIEFEFRER
FRISTH A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

11.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11. FFEBRBEX (&)
The Taiwan Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax is BEBST EEMENCEREZMEEE
calculated at 17% of the estimated assessable profits B et FE R R s MR 1 7 % 2 B R & o
for both years. No Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income BN ANEBE N EES T RBENLFE
Tax is provided for the years ended 31 December 2018 HFTER M ERRGER i EgE S
and 2017 as the Group did not derive any assessable —E-NER_FE—F+EF+_H=+—
profit subject to Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax. E I EEEREN B ETEREE-
The tax charge for the years can be reconciled to ZEEEANNERNIKEGESESEEM
the loss before tax per the consolidated statement rENSEEBHAIEESENT
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:
2018 2017
—E-NF ZZT—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss before taxation B 5 A ES 1B 59,522 (77,347)
Tax at the domestic income tax LB NPT E16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (ZE—tF:16.5%)
SHEMBRIEA (9,821) (12,762)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ A 30F B MFH IS &
for tax purpose 6,297 6,652
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARTHRAN R IEZE
tax purpose (970) (415)
Tax effect of share of results of DIHEE AR EENR G E
associates 393 (435)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAHRERZER
differences not recognised MG e 870 176
Tax reduction MR (40) -
Underprovision of income tax BEFEMEHRAIBET R
expense in prior years 178 -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERIHIBE B IE L 3,444 7,017
Utilisation of tax losses previously AL ARER 2 HIEEIE
not recognised - (345)
Effect of different tax rates of REAM AR EH
subsidiaries operating in other Y =N RN b RS2
jurisdictions 633 477
Income tax expense FT8 Rl i 984 365
206
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging:

Directors’ emoluments (Note 13(A))

Other staff costs (excluding directors’
emoluments)

Share-based payments
(excluding directors)

Retirement benefits scheme
contributions (excluding directors)

Auditors’ remuneration

— Audit services

— Non-audit services
Amount of inventories recognised

as an expense
Amortisation of an intangible asset
Depreciation for plant and equipment
Loss on written-off of intangible assets
Loss on written-off of

plant and equipment
Loss on written-off of other receivables
Write-down of inventories
Share-based payments to consultants

Minimum lease payments paid under
operating leases in respect of
office premises

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Hz_Z—N\F+-A=1+—HLEE

12. XEEEIE

REEBEERINBR T SEESGD
2018 2017
—E-NFg CZZFT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
EE e (H5E13A)) 4,444 9,155
HMEBETIHA (TREES
pd ) 13,423 9,447
LARR 0 2 55 2 P 3R
(TBEESE) 1,059 3,792
RIRFEF T8I K
(T"BEES) 696 589
19,622 22,983
ZEEN S
— % B BR T 800 830
— IEZ AR TS 125 70
BRARI ZFENIEA
35,245 47,029
B EEEH - 1,604
M E R EEITE 2,356 2,684
WMEEEEERNEE - 3,075
WsE B MR R BB
- 382
U 8H L R IR R I B B 1B 13,290 -
HFERL 83 -
T FREBSAKRGS A
YA N 631 1,040
ERABRAEYENCEHER
B xEAERE
4,215 4,297
207
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

13(A). DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS 13(A).

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six
(2017: seven) directors and the chief executive of the
Company for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017 were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Executive directors

HITES
Lai Yick
Fung
(resigned
SoDavid on 30 March
Tat Man 2018)
Bng
(R=B-NE
=B=tA
HEX BHE)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FhT
Fees e - -
Other emoluments L 1,300 47
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRRFIE B 18 5
Share-based payments MR G BER /AR 348 121
Total emoluments Hegs 1,666 553

China Eco-Farming Limited FE B X4+ EFRA A
Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

EECHe
BHE_ZT—N\FEkZT—tF+=AH
= t—HLEFERARRANUES (=
T—+tF ) RITREHS BB
ERESIT

BE_Z-N\F+-A=t—-HLFE

Ng Cheuk
Fan, Keith

RER
HKS000
ThT

1,300
18
268

1,586

Independent non-executive directors

BUHHES
Yick Ting Fai,
Zhang Min Yuen Wai Man Jeffery
&R RER REE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TER TER TER
180 180 180
33 3 33
213 213 213

Total

it
HK$'000
7

540
3,027
L
836

444



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13(A). DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE_ZT—)/\F+-_A=+—HILFE
1BA). E=zM< (&)

S

Executive directors

“E2-tH+ZA=+—-BLEE

Independent non-executive directors

HEs BUHRTES
Au Yeung
Po Leung
Lai Yick Fung (resigned on
SoDavid (resigned on 30 Ng Cheuk Fan, 30 September Yick Ting Fai,
TatMan  March 2018) Keith 2017) ZhangMin Yuen Wai Man Jeffery Total
it B5ER
(R=2-NE (R=2-t£
ZA=1H AE=TE
BEX B REN ) R %2R FEE E
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKS000
Tt Tir Thn Tk Tt Tir Tk Tign

Fees e - - - - 180 180 180 540

Other emoluments Efeie 1,200 1,200 1,184 540 - - - 4124

Retirement benefits scheme contributions RINERIHEIER 18 18 18 14 - - - 68

Share-based payments IEDBEE 13 1,667 98 835 580 158 97 158 4423

Total emaluments S 2885 2146 2087 1134 k£ am 33 9,155

(@)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown (@) EFYXFRBTES RS
above were for their services in connection with BRANTIRANEBRERSIEMIE
the management of the affairs of the Company Y RE Lo
and the Group.

(b)  The independent non-executive directors’ (b) FXRFRBIIERITEE S
emoluments shown above were for their REFRERNQR 2 ESFIRMS
services as directors of the Company. ZRIE L o

(©  No chief executive of the Company was O ®BE-ZEZE—N\ER-_Z—+4&
appointed for the years ended 31 December +_A=+—HIEFE KQ7F
2018 and 2017. MER EITHRER -

(d)  No Directors waived or agreed to waive d BEZE—N\FR-_Z—+F
any emoluments during the years ended 31 +-_A=1+—"BItMEFE
December 2018 and 2017. S o B B S ]

EE o
(e) During the years ended 31 December 2018 and (e) REBEE_E—N\FER-_ZT—+F

2017, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the Directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

+-A=+t—BUFE KA£H
TEAZSXEAHNS  EA
IMARE B SR IMAR 2 528
HIERBEBESE -

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE

14.

T N\F+-A=1+—HILFE
13(B). FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2017: four) were Directors whose
emoluments are included in the Note 13(A) above.
The emoluments of the remaining three (2017: one)
individuals were as follows:

Basic salaries and allowances EAKRE ¢ RoERL
Share-based payments LARR 17 72 55 2 f5F 5k
Retirement benefits RARE FIFT B R

scheme contributions

The number of the highest paid employees who are

13B8). EUERSHFMES

AEBRURESFMALF Wi (—F
—tF W) AEE BEHEER L
XHEE13(A) c B = (ZE—+F:

—fRD)ERALZBET
2018 2017
= AS A S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRE FHT
3,724 780
= 95
49 18
3,773 893

FHENATHEANLFEENR

not the Directors whose remuneration fell within the HEMESHSBIMT
following bands is as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7L £1,500,000/% 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,000/8 7T 1 =
3 1
During the two years ended 31 December 2018 and REBEE_S—N\EF_ZE—+F+—
2017, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the A=+—H Ltﬂﬁ1I¢EW A& I
highest paid individuals (including the Directors) as an AR smMALT (BEES) I MEM

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

DIVIDEND 14.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2018, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2017:
Nil).
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS PER SHARE 15.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following data:

Loss

Loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

BH#E

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares & i % i ¥ 159 £
for the purpose of basic and diluted

loss per share

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss per share
has been adjusted for the share consolidation on 16
November 2018.

The denominator for the purpose of calculating basic
and diluted loss per share in 2017 has been restated to
reflect the effect of the share consolidation during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s options since their
exercise would result in an antidilutive effect on the
basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the conversion/exercise of the Company’s convertible
bonds and options since their conversion/exercise
would result in an antidilutive effect on the basic loss
per share for the year ended 31 December 2017.

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-—Z—\Ft_A=t—AILEE
BEREE
RATVEB ANEEBRER N #EEEHE
TIERAT8IEFE

AREEEANREAFEER

(REBRETREEERME)

B8
2018 2017
—E-N\E —+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET

(68,428) (71,648)
(Restated)
(&)

710,647,717 605,392,545

RZE—NF+—A+H B5kikH
B AR ERER RS EEN INET
HEBEREA -

HAE T EEREANREFER
WD!E%W NRBMEBE—T—)\F

T A=t—BLFENRNHAHT
2o

RBE-Z—N\F+-A=1— Eti
F'lk% BN ETRRRK
ﬂm%h%ﬁﬁﬁjﬂﬁmmﬁﬁh@
SHHE_T-N\F+_A=+t—H1It
FENEGRERNBRBEAXRBELE -

REBEE-Z—+F+= ﬂ +— E¢¢
B BREEFEENFEIRRR
ﬂﬂ@%ﬁ%&%%%%ﬂ@/ﬂ@
WEREZERLR 1TEEHBE=T
—+F+-_A=+—BALFENTRE
AEEBIRESTE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
16. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold
improvement
RENEEE
HK$'000
%/%E
cost EZ$
At 1 January 2017 T—t5-A-H 3,946
Additions ﬁE 2,804
Written-off iz -
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary BAW%MTE AR KE
(Note 44) -
Exchange adjustment [RW“ 83
At 31 December 2017 R-B—+%
+-A=1t-H 6,833
Additions hE 23
Written-off i (133)
Exchange adjustment ERHE (47)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\%
+-A=1+-H 6,676
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZHNE
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—tF5-f-H 1,176
Provided for the year EnfE 1411
Eliminated on written-off ISR -
Exchange adjustment 5 32
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t&
+-A=1+-H 2,619
Provided for the year ENEE 1,156
Eliminated on written-off R EE 8 (133)
Exchange adjustment BHRE (44)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
+-A=1+-H 3,598
CARRYING VALUES gﬁﬁ@
At 31 December 2018 RZB-\%&
TZA=1-H 3,078
At 31 December 2017 RoZ—+#
tZA=1-H 4214

The above items of plant and equipment are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvement  Over the shorter of the
term of the leases,

or 20%
Plant and machinery 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%

equipment
Computer, network and ~ 20%
related equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

212 China Eco-Farming Limited PRI B E 4R A
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16.

Plant and
machinery

BEREES
HK$'000
:F/%TE

598

598

598

55 B 5%t

Computer,
Furniture, network
fixtures and and related

1?j‘eﬁqtl‘i%ngl}}; eﬁmg@ment

HERE

HK$ 000 HKS'000
FHET B
2,213 338
323 15

4 -

95 11
2,635 364
34 3
(58) (6)
2,611 361
363 199
469 48
43 3
875 250
494 50
(43) 3)
1,326 297
1,285 64
1,760 114

Motor
vehicles

/‘b E

HK$'000
:F/}QE%TE

3,897
957
(1,685)

121

3,290
500

(71)
3719

1,865
756
(1,303)
76

1,394
656

(62)
1,988

1,731

1,8%

Total

a4
HK$'000
:F/}QE%TE

10,992
4,099
(1,685)

310

13,720
560
(133)
(182)

13,965

1,807

6,158

7,984

XA RS K s A TR B R EL A AT A
ERFHRAERERATFERITE

ES

=z

HEMEKS

BB Rt 5

R RE
R
((( Hi%&
“ama

REEHR20%

(AEREERE)
20%
20%
20%
20%



17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. BEYE
2018
—E-NF
HK$°000
FERT
FAIR VALUE NYFE
At 1 January m—H—8 169,173
Disposals HEEE (7.591)
Net increase in fair value recognised ~ Rz BRI A FE
in profit or loss EnFER 16,249
Exchange adjustment PE W A (8,031)
At 31 December B+=—A=+—H 169,800
Net unrealised gain on property FFABEmzMESERZ
revaluation included in profit or loss ERERWRFRE 16,249

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FET

155,457

2,124
11,592

169,173

2,124

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

S
17.

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

All of the Group's properties interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes and are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair value of all of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on the respective dates by AVISTA
Valuation Advisory Limited and Ravia Global Appraisal
Advisory Limited (2017: AVISTA Valuation Advisory
Limited and Asset Appraisal Limited), independent
qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group.

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties,
the Group engages third part qualified valuers to
perform the valuation. The Directors work closely
with the qualified valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

There has been no change from the valuation
technique used in the prior year. In estimating the fair
value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Details of the Group's investment properties and
information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

17. REWHE (HE)

BRAREBRR_ZE—NER_ZE—+F
F+ZAZT—BZREMEUREBEA
FEHENER ZFHBHOT

Fair value as at
31 December

R+t=-ZA=+t—-HHWA¥E

2018 2017
A —F—

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FHET
Investment properties located in UREBBNIREME

Hong Kong (categorised as Level 2) (DEARFE_LR) 13,000 9,100
Investment properties located in URHPEEREDE

the PRC (categorised as Level 2) (DHEAEE LR 137,691 138,714
Investment properties located URBENREME
in Taiwan (DERE AR

(categorised as Level 2) 19,109 21,359

169,800 169,173

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

17.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. BEWE (&)
The following table gives information about how TREREEMENR_ZE—N\FR_ZE
the fair values of the investment properties as at —+tF+ - A=Z+—HHQAFEZETE
31 December 2018 and 2017 are determined (in FEMER (LEEHEFERFTBSH
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used): AEE) -
Relationship of
key inputs and
Significant significant
Fair value Fair value as at Valuation technique and unobservable unobservable inputs
hierarchy 31 December 2018 key inputs inputs to fair value
ATENEERA
HEAREBEN
REBEN BABAHEZR
AVESR  R®-NETZAIT-BNAVE (ERERIERANG EXBANE HEE
Investment properties located in Level 2 HK$ 13,000,000 (2017: HK$9,100,000)  Direct comparison approach - Market unit rate, ~ N/A N/A
Hong Kong taking into account the recent transaction
prices for similar properties adjusted for
nature, location and conditions of the
property
IR EBORENE E=5 13,000,000 70 ERMBE-TRELER BLERDENE TER TER
(ZF—+%:9,100,0007) B UERARELERNBUDRHES
R5ER
Investment properties located in Level 2 RMB120,930,000 (Equivalent to Direct comparison approach - Market unit rate, ~ N/A N/A
PRC (Note) approximately HK$137,691,000) taking into account the recent transaction
(2017: RMB115,700,000 (Equivalent prices for similar properties adjusted for
to approximately HK$138,714,000)) nature, location and conditions of the
property
LR B RENE (Fit) EZR3 AR%120,930,0007C BRI BL-THELER BLERDENE TER TER
(HRE R 4137,691,0007) B UERARELEENRUDRHES
(ZZ—+F: ARB15700000  RHEH
(1BER47138,714,000/5 L) )
Investment properties located in Level 2 NTD74,500,000 (Equivalent to Direct comparison approach - Market unit rate, ~ N/A N/A
Taiwan approximately HK$19,109,000) taking into account the recent transaction
(2017: NTD80,000,000 (Equivalent to prices for similar properties adjusted for
approximately HK$21,359,000)) nature, location and conditions of the
property
i e ENRENE E=f5 16%74,500,0007 (FHERE BEHIA-TREMER AEERNZOE  TER TER
19,108,000 70) (ZF— % B uERARELAZORUDROEEH
#1%80,000,0007C (FHE R4 THER
21,359,000 72) )
There was no transfer into and out of Level during the PG 0 4 4R R A % AR ) P A B 4 o
year.
216 China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties located in Taiwan with
the fair value of approximately TWD74,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$19,109,000) as at 31
December 2018 (2017: TWD80,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$21,359,000)) have been pledged to
a bank to secure the bank borrowing granted to the
Group. Details of bank borrowing are set out in Note
32(a).

The investment properties located in PRC with
the fair value of approximately RMB26,121,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$29,742,000) as at 31
December 2018 (2017: RMB80,300,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$96,272,000)) have been pledged to
a bank to secure the bank borrowing granted to the
Group. Details of bank borrowing are set out in Note
32(0).

As at 31 December 2018, the investment property
located in Hong Kong with the fair value of
approximately HK$13,000,000 (2017: Nil) has been
pledged to a bank to secure the bank borrowing
granted to the Group. Details of bank borrowing are
set out in Note 32(c).

17.

SABMBREME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE_T-/\F+_A=+—HILFE
REWE (&)
R-_ZE—NE+-_F=+—HB AF
B4 A% & #74,500,0007T (FHE R4
19,109,000/ 7T.) T—tF: e
80,000,0007¢ (*H A #J21,359,0007%
nﬂ%hﬁéé%&ﬁ%%aﬁﬁ%
—RBITUERAAEER L HRITE
e RITIERNF BRI E32(a) ©

RZE—-NE+_A=+—H8 2F
EH A ARE26,121,0007T (HER L
29,742,000/ 7T ) :%—ti AR
80,300,0007T (18 & 7 4996,272,000/%8
nﬂmum$lm&§%%aﬁﬁ%
—RBITUERAAEER L HRITE
Ko RITE KRB FFIBE I M 7E32(c) ©

RZE—N\F+ZA=+—08 AFE
#1/13,000,0008 T (ZE—+tF : F)
MR BEBNREMEDER T —RIR
ﬂwﬂ%mﬁxﬁl#ﬁmfﬁmﬁfh i
ITEREFEBEHRMTE32() °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
18. GOODWILL

COST

At 1 January

Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary
(Note 44)

At 31 December

IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January

Impairment loss recognised
during the year

At 31 December

CARRYING VALUES

At 31 December

Impairment loss is recognised after the assessment of
the recoverable amount, being the value in use, made

by the Directors.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE B X4+ EFRA A
Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

(BN

K—A—R

B Y BB B A m E A (KEEd4)

®R+—-—A=+—H

BB

®—A—A

FAREREBEREE

W+=A=+—H

fRmE{E

R+=-—A=+—H

2018
—E-N\fF
HK$'000
FERT

23,594

23,594

(19,322)

(19,322)

4,272

2017
—EF—+F
HK$'000
FET

22,819

775

23,594

(15,354)

(3,968)

(19,322)

4,272

EBENRESFGAIREEE (AME
REE)RIER -



18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODW.ILL (continued) 18.
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill

with indefinite useful lives set out above have been
allocated to three individual CGUs, comprising one
subsidiary group in the trading of grocery food
products segment, one subsidiary group in the trading

of consumables and agricultural products and one
company in provision of financial services. The carrying
amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2018 and

2017 allocated to these units are as follows:

GO RARME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE
BE (&)
RETRENR  EXAEEFERE
ABNEEEESRE=ETRANERE
EXEN BERARMESDEN—
AMBAR EREmAEERES SR
By — 4B P B & F S IR 2 R AR 75 B0 — A
RAC R _E-N\FR_T—tF+=
A=+—HB BEoREZZFEUNEE
BREENT :

2018 2017
—EBE-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Trading of grocery food products BHRRE S
— YIHE Group (Note a) —HA%EE (HiFa) - -
Trading of consumables and HEMMREERE
agricultural products
— Inno-Bag Limited (Note b) —NERREGEARAT
(Ff&Eb) 3,497 3,497
R e rR%
Provision of financial services — R B B {5 B T R
— China AF Corporate Finance BRAR (HERE])
Limited (“CAFCF") (Note ¢) (KtzEc) 775 775
4,272 4,272
Notes: s

(@ During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group recognised an impairment loss of
approximately HK$3,968,000 in relation to goodwill
arising on the acquisition of YIHE Enterprise Holding
Limited and its subsidiary (collectively referred as
"YIHE Group”), which is engaged in trading of
grocery food products. The management assessed
the recoverable amount to be Nil which was due
to cessation of the business during the year ended
31 December 2017. Accordingly approximately
HK$3,968,000 was fully impaired.

(a HE-_Z—tF+=ZA=+—8Lt
FE AEEGRRBESCELRSE
BARREMBAR (KB IEAE
) (AtERHRRES ) BRE
BRI EE1E%493,968,000/8 7T - EIE[E
FHETREI SR AT i TR R E
2T+ F+-_A=+—HILFE
AL IEB BT - F 1L - 493,968,000
BILBEBEURE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

S
18.

—=
—=

—N\F+ZA=+—HIFE

GOODW.ILL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

(@)

Annual Report 2018 =%

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
recoverable amount of Inno-Bag Limited has been
determined on the basis of a value in use calculation.
The recoverable amount is based on certain similar
key assumptions. The value in use calculations uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year
period, and a pre-tax discount rate of 17.88%
(2017: 17.52%). The cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2017:
3%) growth rate. The growth rate is based on the
general inflation rate for the year 2018. Cash flow
projections during the budget period for Inno-
Bag Limited is also based on the budgeted sales
and expected gross margins of Inno-Bag Limited.
Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of Inno-Bag Limited
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of Inno-
Bag Limited.

The recoverable amount of CAFCF has been
determined on the basis of a value in use calculation.
The recoverable amount is based on certain similar
key assumptions. The value in use calculations uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year
period, and a pre-tax discount rate of 15.29%
(2017: 14.66%). The cash flows beyond the 5-year
period are extrapolated using a steady 3% (2017:
3%) growth rate. The growth rate is based on the
general inflation rate for the year 2018. Cash flow
projections during the budget period for CAFCF
are also based on the budgeted sales and expected
gross margins of CAFCF. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of CAFCF to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of CAFCF.

—NFFHK

(%)

()
E-2-\F+ZA=+—ALLF
B RE2RRKEEERAFNTUL

B¢ REZEAEBEFTEMEE - ATk
EleREERE THEUBERSE -FA
BEMFTEEREREREMIE
ZHEFHPHMBREENR S RETER
KB ATITIRE17.88% (ZE—+
F:1752%) MBBAFHNRS
MERARBEEERI% (ZT—+
F 3% )EEHE - BeMREERE
RZZBE-N\FH—RBIRE - KEIR
RECEBRATNBERAANER
METATMERKBIRRELERR
NEAMWBEHERTBERAEFN R &
BEMRE FRNZSRENTMEE
%EE$ EWNERRELER
REREEBA W RSEE-

PEEENATKRE S ERERERE
AFEMETE Al ESREIERE T
LIBARRBR - FEREENTE TR
ERERBAHHLEZ AF BRI BTE
HMBRSRETEN  RBRFATITE X
15.29% (=T —+F 1 14.66% ) ' M
BARLFHNERERAREE
R&E3% (T —+H4F:3%)EH#
H- R REERDEANR-ZT—)\FEH
*ﬁkﬁy B RENREEBRRMN
BemnEEANMRRPRRENNTE
HIEEREHENE - EEREMRE"
AMZEREOEAEEELEHT
eENHEECARMERGBTEHE
ErIiEB e e -



19.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSET

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

19. BREE

HK$'000
TET
COST 5%
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—H—H 6,416
Written-off 1 85 (6,416)
At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 R-_Z—+F+-_A=+—H8x
—E-NF+=ZA=+—H -
AMORTISATION ey
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 1,737
Charge for the year REFZH 1,604
Eliminated on written-off A B8R R ¥ 88 (3,347)
At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 R-Z—+F+-_A=+—Hx
- N\F+=ZA=+—8 -
CARRYING VALUES IRMEIE
At 31 December 2018 RZZB-N\F+_A=+—H -
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+A=+—H -
In the opinion of the Directors, the franchise has finite EERA EEEAEABRFERE  ERN
useful life and is amortised on a straight-line basis over WERNILE G F N REE T —+
4 years. During the year ended 31 December 2017, F+_A=1+—RHIEFER A3
the asset was fully written-off due to the expiry of AER M EE W AIEIBES SN T
the franchise rights and the Directors do not elect to B BED DI
renew with the counterparties.
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 200 REERATZER
2018 2017
—E-NF —Z=—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Cost of unlisted investments REEE R A2 IE ETIRE KA
in associates 69,212 69,212
Share of post-acquisition profit and DIEWEE R R N & E 2 E
other comprehensive income 4,219 6,601
73,431 75,813
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had
interests in the following associates:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/  Class of
Name of entity Form of entity operation shares held
ERAL/ AL/
BRAR B By FiE R <85
Direct associates
ERBELT
FDC Limited (Note a) Limited liability Samoa Ordinary shares
FDC Limited (¥fiFa) ERAR RS LAk
228 (IR REKNERAR Limited liabiity PRC Paid up capital
Zhonghe Huaxia (Beijing) Investment
Consulting Co., Ltd.* ("Beiing HX")
(Note b)
AZE (IR REABAERAA BRAA il BRER
(HEREE]) (tb)
Gold Wide Holdings Limited (“Gold Wide") ~ Limited liability HK Ordinary shares
SUEEERAA ([2]) BRAF Bk TRR
Indirect associates
BEBELR
AHE (AR REBRAA Limited liabiity PRC Paid up capital

Zhonghe Xinnong (Beijing) Investment

Co., Ltd.* ("Beijing XN") (Note b)

AR (LR RERRAT ERAR e HRER
(HERirgl) (Mb)

RRTAHENEERARAT Limited liabiity PRC Paid up capital
Fuyu Zhonghe Xinnong Market Real
Estate Co,, Ltd.* ("Fuyu”) (Note b)

RAPRTRMAEEARAA BRAA hE BRER
(M) (Hib)

* English name for identification only

Notes:

(a) FDC Limited was inactive since its incorporation, the
carrying amount attributable to the Group is not
significant.

(b) The English translation of the company name is for
identification purpose only. The official names of
these companies are in Chinese.
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20. REBERT zER (&)
RZE-NFR_FE—tF+H
=+—B AEERTHIEE R R E#
Bk

Proportion of
ownership interests
or participating
shares held by Proportion of
the Group voting power held Principal activity
FEEFEERERRED
SARH LA FrERERILA IREH
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZB-N\f ZErF ZR-N\§ B4
49% 49% 49% 49%  Inactive
ax7
40% 40% 40% 40%  Investment holding
ALK
25% 25% 25% 25%  Investment holding
AR
2% 2% 2% 2%  Investment holding
ALK
2% 2% 2% 22%  Properties development
VESI

* RXEEEHRBR

(a) FDC Limited B &l 5k 32 LA 3R IF 4% 2
BomAEBEEREEL TEK.

b) AFABOREXEEERBD %
5 DB E I 4 BB AR KB -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. REBE AT RER (E)
Summarised financial information of material TEBREANTZHEERBE
associates

Summarised financial information in respect of each of AREFELRTEBRLENT 2 EEREE
the Group’s material associates is set out below. The HRT X o T Xl B I8 E R E 45 i%
summarised financial information below represents Z A B 7 R A A B 4 U B B A2 N B B R
amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements RMEMRELE -

prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

All of these associates are accounted for using R E o A EMRE  FTAZER SN
the equity method in these consolidated financial B REZEY R
statements.
Beijing HX and its subsidiaries TRESRERE QA 2018 2017
(the “Beijing HX Group”) (Tt=EEEHE]) —E-NE —Z=—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Current assets mENEE 319,190 332,517
Non-current assets FEREEE 156 227
Current liabilities mRBAE (153,210) (153,127)
Non-current liabilities EMBAER (11,462) (11,625)
Net assets BEFE 154,674 167,992
2018 2017
—E-NF ZZT—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Revenue Wz - -
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEEREERI AR
expenses for the year (6,846) (877)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

S
20.

ZE-)\FT+ZA=T—HLFE
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20.
The reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interests in

associates are set out below:

Net assets of the Beijing HX Group
Non-controlling interests of Beijing
HX's subsidiaries

Proportion of the Group’s 40%
ownership interest in
Beijing HX and its subsidiaries
Goodwill

Carrying amount of the Group’s

interest in Beijing HX Group

Gold Wide

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

EREESENEEFE
bR E BB R A
FEFRRR R M 2

AEBRIEREE R
HI B QR 240%
P HE R 2 L B

g

AEERIEREERE
EmiREE

& 5L

FRBEE
MENVEE
mEAE

BEFE

REE QT z2Em (&)
EX2FMBEMBE BN E QR Z
BRI (E B ERER T -

2018
—s-n%&
HK$'000
FHT

154,674

(56,266)

98,408

39,363
855

40,218

2018
—g2-N\%
HK$'000
FTRET
122,649

19
(294)

122,374

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FTET

167,992

(62,738)

105,254

42,102
855

42,957

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FHT

121,198

23
(275)

120,946



20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

HE T N\F+_A=+—HILFE
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20. MREENTI2EZRE (EF)
2018 2017
=B-NE —T—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Revenue W #5 - -
Profit for the year and RNERHNEAREE
total comprehensive income 2HENE BT

for the year

The reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information of the carrying amount of the interests in

associates are set out below:

Net assets of the Gold wide

Proportion of the Group’s 25%
ownership interest in Gold Wide
Goodwill

Carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in Gold Wide

1,428 11,950

ERE S R R 2 s M RREE R B 15

BERBES RN
2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
AEEBELESLNEEFE 122,374 120,946
KREBNRE3L225%

FiT 75 18 #E 2= tb 151 30,594 30,237
EES 2,619 2,619
AEBRELAZEDFEEE

33,213 32,856

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

21.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 21. BAFE; T AHEM2EKBIHREES
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME IH
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
THET
Listed investments: FHRE:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong (Note a)  R&B EM R RAZH (Kizta) 10,142
Unlisted investments: FEFFEE:
Equity securities (Note b and c) f& AR FE A (BYaEbc) 21,842
31,984

Notes:

(@

The listed equity investments represent ordinary
shares of an entity listed in Hong Kong. The equity
investments listed in Hong Kong with the fair value
of approximately HK$10,142,000 as at 31 December
2018 have been pledged to a financial institution for
margin loans granted to the Group. Details of margin
loans payables are set out in Note 34.

The unlisted equity investments of approximately
RMB19,184,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$21,842,000) represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in the PRC.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

(@) TR AEEREREELTNE
EhEER- R _E—N\E+_A8
=t+—B2RAFE410,142,000/8 7T 2
REBLEMZBRAREHRETAER
ZIRFBECERMBIR TS R%E - &
MREBESERFBHRMIE34 -

(b) 495 AR %19,184,0007T (HEE R4
21,842,000 70) M 3E LR A& &
IR H A B A S A9 FLA T FE B
TESE LR AEHMIRE -



21.

22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)
The above investments are not held for trading,
instead, they are held for long-term strategic purposes.
The Directors have elected to designate these
instruments at FVTOCI as they believe that recognised
short-term fluctuations in these investments’ fair
value in profit or loss would not be consistent with
the Group's strategy of holding these investments for
long-term purposes and realising their performance
potential in the long run.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, in order
to strengthen the cash position of the Group, the
Group disposed of certain listed equity investments at
a consideration of HK$5,370,000, which represent the
fair value as at the date of disposal. A cumulative gain
on disposal of HK$792,000 has been transferred to
retained profits.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

At cost:
Unlisted equity investments (Notes a and b)
Less: Accumulated impairment losses (Notes b)

At fair value:
Listed equity investments (Notes ¢ and d)

AN
FELETRAKRE (M iEakMizEb)
B REDREEE (KiaEb)

21.

22,

BATE:
ETRARE (HiEEckHEd)

HAMIERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE
BRAFEFAHMZERENVERS
TR (&)
NEREWHEREEMFIA MERK
HEBENmMIEE EFCREHZE
TEAREREAFEAAHMEZEK
m AREERRZERENATFER
BERPRANEHRHIFaLrERR
RAENBAEZERENRBIL IR H
REREAEEBE S -

REBEEZFT—N\F+ZA=+—AHLF
ERN - BIEREENRSMR  AEE
5,370,000 LHRE (MARHER
HAFE)DEE T EMRAKRE-
&/ R E792,0008 T E EE S
R = o

AHEERE

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FET

41,616
(500)

41,116

18,064

59,180

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

S
22.

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(0

Annual Report 2018 =%

The unlisted equity investments of approximately
RMB37,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$41,616,000) represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors
are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
measured reliably.

The unlisted equity investments of approximately
HK$500,000 represent investments in unlisted equity
securities issued by a private entity incorporated
in Hong Kong. They are measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the Directors are
of the opinion that its fair value cannot be measured
reliably. As at 31 December 2015, it had been fully
impaired.

The listed equity investments listed in Hong Kong
with the fair value of approximately HK$18,064,000
as at 31 December 2017 have been pledged to a
financial institution for margin loans granted to the
Group. Details of margin loans payables are set out in
Note 34.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the

Group recognised a fair value gain of approximately
HK$402,000 in the investment revaluation reserve.

—NFFR

22,

AHHERE (F)

S

(a

I E MR A E 49 A R #37,000,000
7T (#BE 7 4941,616,000/%8 7T ) 5 7
— R B AL A AL S B R 1T
HISEETRAZTHF 2 IRE  HIZHA
BERHRE RN RHRES B2
AR EBRAFEGENHBEES
K MEERBERNFERER ST

==

JE_E T B AN & 49500,00078 TTHE A
BB MALEFEEITHIEL
MRAFFZI8E - HiRp A ER R
HEHRM RETREEETE i E
REBAFEGFNSEEIEDK MK
EERABERNTEREARITE R

—hE+-A=+—H HEZ2
R E

RZE—+tF+-_A=+—H8 K&
B ET 2~ F{EX18,064,0007% 7T
ZETBRARECEET —HSH
B AFEAERERENRESE
Ko BNRFBSERZFBHNM T
34

REE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—H1t
FE AEERREEHREEBERERA
B UR %5 49402,00078 7T



23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF A
SUBSIDIARY

On 17 July 2017, Skyline Top Limited (“Skyline Top”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Yardley
Wealth Management Limited (“Yardley”), the non-
controlling shareholder of Delightful Hope Limited
("Delightful Hope"”), a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sales and purchase agreement pursuant
to which Yardley had agreed to sell and Skyline
Top had agreed to purchase 50 ordinary shares in
Delightful Hope, representing 50% of the entire issued
share capital of Delightful Hope, at a consideration of
HK$55,000,000 (the “"DHL Acquisition”). Up on the
completion of the DHL Acquisition, Delightful Hope
will be wholly-owned by Skyline Top and will become
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 December 2017, deposit of HK$20,000,000
has been paid.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Skyline
Top and Yardley entered a supplementary agreement
that the balance payment will accrued interest at
8% per annum. As at 31 December 2018, deposit of
approximately HK$35,250,000 has been paid.

On 19 March 2019, Skyline Top and Yardley entered
into a the supplemental agreement, pursuant to which
the deadline of the completion of DHL Acquisition has
been extended from 17 January 2019 to 31 March
2020 and Skyline Top shall pay interest to Yardley at
8% per annum on the remaining balance payment
during the period from 18 January 2018 to the date of
completion.

The details of DHL Acquisition were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 17 July 2017,
31 July 2017, 17 January 2018 and 14 January 2019.

23.

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Hz_Z—N\F+-A=1+—HLEE

RUBHEBRARAXN2RE

RZFE—+tFLtA+ER XBESER
AR([REE]) (RARZ2ENRBA

A RN EEEBRAR (N&EF ]

AARIMB AR HEMBRAT ([FHH])
ZIEERREIFI L —HEE WS E
faFMERELERERESERER
B0k F fa 2 BRAR (AR E e %
TR AN 2 50% -+ X {8 £55,000,000/% 7T
([FRKEEIE]) -RTKF N EE
HE FRBRAESE2ERE B RBK
BARB zHEZEWNB AR -

RNZE—+F+_A=+—8B OoxH
¥2420,000,000/% JT

BE-FT-\F+-A=t+—BL%F
& KI5 I 2T S 4 75 i - T8
8T 14 3R H 2 48 T 805t B0 1 = B
—NE+ZA=+-R BXMHEEH
35,250,000/ 7T °

j_L/E'E H—f—j_LEl 9&%-\ iy
ﬂﬂiﬁﬁ%mﬁﬂtmﬁﬁﬁ%%
$EZ%@EE:§*ﬂ¢*H+tE
FUEES ?E A=+—80" kXK
RZZB-N\F-A+N\AEEZK
B 8 - BRI BA BRI SR8 S A A AU S A
ME - FMEH8% -

A
ﬁﬁ

HMREERFBRERNARR A S
%:%—titﬂ+t5 T—N\F
+tA=+—8”" ﬂ¢ At++tH
E-_FB—N&F— H+EEZ NG
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, BEFRHMEKRE
2018 2017
—F-NE —ZT—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Trade receivables: B 5 FIE
— Trading of consumables and —BEMRREMRE
agricultural products 451 310
— Trading of grocery food products —-EBHRRE S 1,863 4,459
— Provision of corporate financial —REPERERS
services 731 801
3,045 5,570
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (355) (302)
2,690 5,268
Prepayments to suppliers A4 P& R ) TR N RRIE 2,354 4,333
Deposits i oA 11,242 21,283
Other receivables (Note a) Efth fE U 08 (B sEa) 11,067 3,550
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (61) (1,006)
22,248 23,827
27,292 33,428
As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade R-_EBE—NE+-_A=+—HBE_-Z
receivables from contracts with customers amounted —NFE—F—H BEFALHMNZEFHEK
to HK$2,690,000 and HK$5,268,000 respectively. I Bl A2,690,0007 7T 5,268,000
PETT o
The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade REFEVWERE S REMEWSRIBERS
and other receivables. ERCIE R
230
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24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(@)

(b)

As at 31 December 2018, included in the other
receivables of RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$7,970,000 (2017: Nil) was
consideration receivable in relation to the disposal of
the entire issued shares of Shenzhen City Jintaiyuan
Investment Development Company Limited. Details
of the disposal are disclosed in Note 45.

The credit period granted to the Group's trade
customers generally ranges from 0 days to 90 days
(2017: 0 days to 90 days). The ageing analysis
of trade receivables net of allowance for credit
losses presented based on the invoice dates, which
approximates the respective revenues recognition
dates, at the end of the reporting period, which is as
follows:

0 to 30 days 0%&30H
31 to 90 days 31290H
Over 90 days @90 H

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group's
trade receivables balance were debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,221,000 (2017: HK$2,150,000) which were
past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group had not provided for impairment loss.

RE MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT_A=t—AILEE
24, BEZRHMEWRFE (&)
PieE: (&)

- \Ft+_A=+—8 %t
FIMeRREREERER DA
HEBHTHROMERRET AR
E Uy I8 A R #7,000,0007T (48
A 497,970,000 C) (ZZE—+
1T o HEFEEMFIBHERNE

(a

o

b
&

e

7

= T

o

) AEERTELEFZEEH—KN
TFOHZEOH (ZZE—tF:0HE0
B) - BURER (MBREEBREE)
RBEHRBEER BB (AR
AFER B HMEE) F2WZ KRB DT
W

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
1,514 2,082

70 1,146

1,106 2,040
2,690 5,268

R-ZE-NE+-A=+—0 B\
#B(EX)1,221,0008 70 (ZF—t4F:
2,150,000 7T ) 2 FEMBR R ET AR &
B2 8 5 RUGRIELA R  ZEBERR
AP R 5 HARa R - N5 B 4 R ph A%
ERRERELREBERE-

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

24,

()

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts of
trade receivables is set out below:

At the beginning of the year

Impairment losses recognised on trade
receivables

Reversal of impairment losses recognised on
trade receivables

At the end of the year

Included in the allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are individually impaired trade receivables
which is considered uncollectible with an aggregate
balance of approximately HK$302,000 which are due
to long outstanding.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, trade receivables
that were past due but not impaired relate to
independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience
and the financial standings of these customers, the
Directors believe that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there have
not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

REA
B 5 YRR R E & 18

RER

24,

BEZRHEMERRE (&)
ffeE: (#8)

(©

B S REWHIE R RRHNZBHE TN
T

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
FHBT

302

B 5 & W R IR B HERR R (B B 1R 1 ]

302

STAB S ERZERERENERE
REE 5 RKRFUB R A AR E
48 8558 49302,00078 7T M R EIE -

RZE-NFRZF—tF+=A
=+—H 2@fERRE . EYE
REZZEAEBERNGERE RFAER
o BURFPAEB RBBTLRR
ZEBP Z2UBMRR  EEHEEHR
RERBUESEELERELAETAY
) R AN B SR E - BB AR R
BB R R -



24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@] (continued)
As at 31 December 2017, the Group's neither past
due nor impaired trade receivables mainly represent
sales made to creditworthy customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.
The ageing analysis of trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired is as follows:
0 to 30 days 0£30H
Over 90 days A0 H

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

24, BFRHMEWRIE (&)
PieE: (&)
© (&)
REZB—tF+-A=+—H &&
N A8 B X I SORUE 2 FE R R E
ZIRMT AT B R FEERT
ZEPIEHZHERE-
B BB RRE 2 FE MR TR AR iR 3 AT
T
2017
“E—iF
HK$'000
FHET
352
1,798
2,150
China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4L EFRA 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 24, BERHEAMEWRIE (&)
Notes: (continued) Mizx: (88)
(d) The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts of (d) e HiEWRERENREZR
deposit, other receivables and prepayments is set out BEREEEEY T
below:
2017
—E—LF
HK$'000
FET
At the beginning of the year RFEH) 1,006
Impairment losses recognised on HiEWFIBEBERRESE
other receivables -
Written-off during the year NEESIAE s -
At the end of the year RER 1,006

As at 31 December 2017, included in the allowance
for impairment of deposit, other receivables and
prepayments are individually impaired with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$1,006,000.
The individually impaired other receivables are
recognised based on the credit history and the
financial condition of its debtors or counterparties,
such as financial difficulties or default in payments,
and current market conditions.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out
in Note 39.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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RZF—tF+ZA=1+—8 &K
488 4 /51,006,000/% 7T 2 18 Bl B &
BEEFARSE - Eth R K IEN
R ZBERME  SADREEME
WHIHE RIBEEBARZZEHFH(E
PR 2 R BA A AR (91 am B 765 PR 8 =
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25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

Fixed-rate loan and interest receivables
— Secured (Note)
— Unsecured

— B ()
— A

W EEE R

Less: allowance for
credit losses

B
mBEE(—FR)

Analysed as:
Current asset (within one year)

FRBEE

Non-current asset

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group's
loan and interest receivables balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$17,596,000
which are past due as at the reporting date and 90
days or more. The Directors consider credit risks have
increased significantly and those past due more than
90 days are considered as credit impaired.

Included in the carrying amount of loan and interest
receivables as at 31 December 2018 is accumulated
impairment losses of HK$11,038,000 (2017:
HK$4,149,000). As at 31 December 2017, the
secured loan and interest receivables were past due
nor impaired as of the end of the reporting period,
in the opinion of the Directors that the outstanding
amount can be fully recoverable by the collaterals.
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in Note 39.

25.

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Hz_Z—N\F+-A=1+—HLEE

EREREFE

[E] 7 ) R Y JE W& R K LB

2018 2017
—2-N\F Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tis
38,942 41,715
6,311 12,168
45,253 53,883
(11,038) (4,149)
34,215 49,734
34,215 48,059
= 1,675

RZZE-—N\F+ZA=+—H KELL
187%17,596,00078 7T &) F& Y8 AR X 5T ALK
5 B & RS SR R ) B A Bk - RRE B
RRMmE B HBBAO0RNIA F-EER
7 EER R AEE IR ZFBHHO0X
b2z RRRR REERE -

11,038,000/ 7T ( =& —+t4F : 4,149,000
BT W EFHREEEF ARZZ—N\F
T A=+ —HXEREREF AR
HE - RN_T—+tF+-_A=+—H'F
KRR EREMNEBREZERSHRE S
HEYERE AAESRAMKER
WRIB R E B MBS E A E
- \F+-A=+—HLEFENRE
A BRI A FE39
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

S
25.

T N\F+-A=1+—HILFE
LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 25.

The exposure of the Group's fixed-rate loan receivables
to interest rate risks and their contractual maturity
dates are as follows:

Fixed-rate loan receivables: EERKER:
Within 1 year —F R
After one year but within two years —FRERFA

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are equal
to contractual interest rates) on the Group's loan
receivables are as follows:

Effective interest rate: B
Fixed-rate loan receivables BT FIEMERER

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

BURERERE (&)
7R £2 B 7E B Ui B K P D e ) R R L B
KREGDHREIINT :

2018 2017

—E-NE —FT—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER TET

34,215 48,059

- 1,675

34,215 49,734

AEEREEFRNERNX (RERR
BRIFE) ZE@EMT

2018 2017

—B-N\F ZTLF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT TET

7% - 18% 7% — 18%



25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. EWERERANE (F)
The Group's loan and interest receivables that are LR EETREINGEE INEESIE
denominated in currencies other than the functional MANEEEWER LT EEHYINT :
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+tF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
RMB AR 7,731 28,921
Note: The secured loan and interest receivables are Mist: AIREHIR SEBEKER LTS
secured by the unlisted shares, properties of the MIEEMIRGD  [EHEE L EAE
borrowers and personal guarantee. As at 31 REHER- R_ZE—N\F+=A
December 2018, the fair value of collaterals held by —+—H AEFEEENIEERER
the Group is approximately HK$62,070,000 (2017: B2 {E 4 /62,070,000 (==
HK$100,753,000). —-+%:100,753,000 7T ) °
As at 31 December 2018, included in the unsecured R-_E—N\F+_A=+—HB mELE
loan of approximately HK$3,417,000 was a loan to B IR AR IR R RE 2R /B 2 493,417,00078
the non-controlling interests of the Group (2017: TTEH (ZE—+4 :5,026,000%7T) °
HK$5,026,000). The amount is secured by personal 24 T E A ERERR . & EE =
guarantee and subject to a fixed interest rate of 7% B7% (—CE—+®F:7%)  WERER
(2017: 7%) per annum and is repayable within 36 EEAEE=+TNEAARRES-

months from the date of loan granted.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

S
26.

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

LOANS TO ASSOCIATES

As at 31 December 2018, Union World International
Group Holdings Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, had a loan balance
of RMB2,400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,733,000) (2017: RMB2,400,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,877,000) to Beijing HX and
the accrued interest is approximately RMB672,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$764,000)
(2017: RMB384,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$427,000)). The amount was unsecured, fixed
interest bearing at a fixed rate of 12% (2017:12%)
per annum and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2018, Shenzhen Shengshi
Fugiang Technology Co., Ltd.*, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, ad a loan balance
of RMB18,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$20,495,000) (2017: RMB18,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$21,580,000) to Fuyu and the
accrued interest is approximately RMB4,320,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$5,059,000 (2017:
RMB1,080,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,232,000)). The amount was unsecured, interest
bearing at a fixed rate of 18% (2017: 18%) per
annum and repayable on demand.

Details of impairment assessment of loans to
associates for the year ended 31 December 2018 are

set out in Note 39.

* English name for identification only
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26.

27.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOANS TO ASSOCIATES (continued)
The Group's loans to associates that are denominated
in currency other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities is set out below:

RMB AR

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed securities: &S
— Equity securities listed in

Hong Kong, at fair value

As at 31 December 2018, the listed equity
investments listed in Hong Kong with the fair
value of approximately HK$20,362,000 (2017:
HK$40,328,000), have been pledged to a financial
institution to secure the margin loans payable granted
to the Group. Details of margin loans payables are set
out in Note 34.

For the valuation method of the financial asset at
FVTPL, please refer to Note 39.

26.

27.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT_A=t—AILEE
MEENAEHER (&)
NHEBESEEERIEIE SR EZLRE
EmEE R RMER 2 ERETIAT

2018 2017
—E-NE —F—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
3,431 3,094

BAVESABSEZEHMEE

—BAFEIRZNER
£ BRARRE S

2018 2017
—E-NEFE —ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHETT
20,362 40,328

W-_ZE—-NE+-_A=+—8" "R
EBX LT LETRARE(ATE
#720,362,0008 T (ZF — £ F:
40,328,000/ 7T) ) 2T — A2 g
B UErAEEEREMRESERK.
ERREBESERRF BT RHIE3S -
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HEIE B2HME39 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

S
28.

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates based on

daily bank deposit rates.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
performed impairment assessment on bank balances
and concluded that the probability of defaults of the
counterparty banks is insignificant and accordingly, no

allowance for credit losses is provided.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts which are subject to foreign exchange
control regulations or not freely transferrable:

Amounts denominated in:
RMB

China Eco-Farming Limited FE B X4+ EFRA A
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables (Note a) FET /I8 (MisEa)
Other payables (Note b) H A R FRIE (MH5Eb)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

0 to 30 days 0%230H
Notes:
(@ The average credit period on purchases of goods

is 15 days (2017:15 days). The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are settled within the credit time frame.

(b) As at 31 December 2018, included in other payables
of approximately HK$21,500,000 represents the
amount payable to the bondholder upon maturity
of CB-lll (as defined in Note 35). The amount was
unsecured and interest-free.

As at 31 December 2017, included in other payables
of approximately HK$23,000,000 represents the
amount payable to the bondholder upon maturity
of a CB-ll (as defined in Note 35). The amount was
unsecured, bear interest at the fixed rate of 5% per
annum. The amount was fully settled during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

B2 RHEAMENSFIR

2018 2017
—®-N\FE T +F
HK$'000 HK$’'000
Fi# T
30 151

31,021 35,595
31,051 35,746

TRARBEHRREZZAHERZ
T BRI Z AR AT

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
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FHT T T
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ftb, & 1<t 3% 78 #923,000,00058 7T » 2 ¥5 7]
BmRES = (T& B WFE35) 3 B8
NEHFE ARNRIE - ZRB ) B EK
- HR5% 8 E E FF K E B o R IER
BHE-_Z-N\Ft+-_A=+—HItEE
NEBEHES -

Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ FE &£}

241



242

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Provision of financial services R e rR%
Current B &1
* The amounts in this column are after the adjustments

from the application of HKFRS 15.

Contract liabilities, that are not expected to be
settled within the Group’s normal operating cycle,
are classified as current and non-current based on
the Group’s earliest obligation to transfer goods or
services to the customers.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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30.

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 30.
The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities and how much relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior
periods.
Revenue recognised that was included SFAFEVEHE
in the contract liabilities balance at
the beginning of the year
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:
Provision of financial services
When the Group receives a deposit before the
production activity commences, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the
revenue recognised on the relevant contract exceeds
the amount of the deposit. The Group typically
receives a deposit ranged from 33% to 50% of service
fee on acceptance of the engagements.
AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 31.

INTERESTS
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE
BRNEE (&)
TRINTRAFZHER %QWE@%
BEENaEAELRE DR EBEHM
BITHBAOEKERA-

Provision of
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RESBR%E
HK$'000
FHET

B B R W

710

3 LERNAE N B ES AR HE
AT

RBHUHESBRKE
EARKEREETBFRGZAIKEIZES
R bR EHNFRERELESNEE &
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B AEE-—MRAEXZREEKRINE3%
E50% R REEBIED ©

P IR R R R 52 IR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-F—\FT_A=t—RILEE
32. BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings, secured (Note a)

Other borrowings, unsecured (Note b)
Other borrowings, secured (Note ¢)

Total borrowing A

Notes:

(a

At 31 December 2018, the secured bank
borrowing of approximately NTD32,088,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$8,230,000) (2017:
NTD34,577,000 (equivalent to HK$9,233,000)) is
secured by a mortgage over an investment property
of the Group located in Taiwan with carrying amount
of NTD74,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$19,109,000) (2017: NTD80,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$21,359,000) as disclosed in Note 17. The bank
borrowing carried a saving deposit rate plus a fixed
spread rate of 0.62% per annum in the first year,
0.87% per annum in the second year and 0.97% per
annum from the third to fifteen year.

At 31 December 2018, the secured bank borrowing
of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,386,000) (2017: Nil) is secured by two
investment properties of the Group located in the
PRC with fair value of approximately RMB26,121,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$29,742,000) as
disclosed in Note 17. The bank borrowing carried
a fixed interest rate of 6.525% per annum and
repayable within one year.
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BORROWINGS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

()

At 31 December 2018, the Group obtained
unsecured loans of HK$10,000,000 (2017: Nil)
from a financial institution in Hong Kong. The loans
carried interest at fixed rates of 18% per annum and
repayable within one year.

At 31 December 2017, the Group obtained
new loans in the amount of approximately
RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to HK$47,956,000)
from a bank in PRC. The loans carried interest at
fixed rates of 15.6% per annum and are secured by
the Group's seven investment properties located in
the PRC with carrying amount of RMB80,300,000,
(equivalent to HK$96,272,000) as disclosed in Note
17. The other borrowings were repaid during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

At 31 December 2018, the Group obtained a new
loan in the amount of HK$6,000,000 from a financial
institution in Hong Kong. The loan carried interest
at fixed rates of 12% per annum, repayable within
one year and are secured by an investment property
located in Hong Kong with carrying amount of
HK$13,000,000 as disclosed in Note 17.

32.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

32. BORROWINGS (continued) 32. B (&)
Notes: (continued) MizE: (48)
Carrying amount repayable (based on scheduled repayment FEEERIBERE (ERERHETHNTE
dates set out in the loan agreements): FEEZBEHE)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —F R 28,025 48,600
After one year but within two years —EMFE 639 656
After two years but within five years MERF 1,916 2,062
After five years HFLAE 5,036 5,871
35,616 57,189
Carrying amount of borrowings that is BEREHREER —FREEN
repayable within one year from AR BRE(E
the end of the reporting period 27,386 47,956
Carrying amount of borrowings that is BEfREHREREANR—FRER
not repayable within one year from (B8 B fE 2 S8 RIER) BE R
the end of the reporting period but (RRBAEETIIR)MREE
contain a repayment on demand clause
(shown under current liabilities) 8,230 9,233
Amounts shown under current liabilities MEBEIE TN TS 35,616 57,189
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate AREBRERIZHESEHZEMT:

changes is as follows:

2018

S Wy

HK$'000

FHBx

Fixed-rate borrowings TEBER 27,386
Variable-rate borrowings FBER 8,230
35,616
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33.

34.

35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOAN PAYABLE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company obtained a loan in the amount of
HK$20,000,000 from an independent third-party
which was fully settled in 2017. The loan was
unsecured, interest bearing at a fixed rate of 5% per
annum and repayable within two weeks from the date
of loan granted.

MARGIN LOANS PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2018, the margin loans payables
were secured by the listed equity securities placed in
financial institutions as disclosed in Note 21 and 27
(2017: Note 22 and 27) under the margin account,
with fair value of approximately HK$30,504,000
(2017: HK$57,662,000).

The margin loans payables were repayable on demand
as they were subjected to margin call from the
financial institutions and carried a fixed interest rate at
10% (2017: 10%) per annum.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS")
(@) Convertible bonds I

On 13 December 2013, Skyline Top and Mr.
So Pan entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which (i) Mr. So Pan
has agreed to sell to Skyline Top, and Skyline
Top has agreed to purchase from Mr. So Pan
the sale shares of Konson Global Investments
Limited (“Konson”); and (ii) Mr. So Pan has
agreed to assign to Skyline Top, and Skyline
Top has agreed to accept the assignment of,
the sale loan at an aggregate consideration of
HK$40,000,000, of which: (i) HK$20,000,000
shall be satisfied by Skyline Top by cheque or
cashier order upon the completion; and (ii)
HK$20,000,000 shall be satisfied by the Skyline
Top's procuring of the issue of the convertible
bonds (“CB-1") at the conversion price of
HK$0.17 (Note) per conversion share by the
Company to Mr. So Pan upon completion.

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching
to the CB-l, 117,647,058 new shares of the
Company shall be issued.

33.

34,

35.

REMBRERMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS”) (continued)

(a)

Convertible bonds I (continued)

The completion of the acquisition involving the
issue of CB-l as a consideration took place on
31 March 2014.

Transaction costs directly attributable to
issue of the CB-I amounted to approximately
HK$352,000 is allocated to liability and equity
components on initial recognition.

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated
19 February 2014 (the “Circular”), the principal
terms of the CB-I are as follows:

Principal amount HK$20,000,000
of the CB-I
Authorised HK$100,000 each and

denomination
Conversion price
Interest
Maturity date

integral multiples thereof
HK$0.17
3% per annum
31 December 2017

Conversion and
transferability

Without prejudice to
any condition under
the bond instrument,
there shall not be any
transfer, conversion
or redemption of any
principal amount of the
CB-I during the Restricted
Period (as defined in the
Circular), and further, the
bondholder shall not, and
shall not seek to, transfer,
convert or redeem any
principal amount of the
CB-I during the Restricted
Period.

Note:

As a result of the placing of 629,000,000 shares
completed on 2 July 2015, the conversion price of
the CB-l was adjusted from HK$0.188 to HK$0.17
per share.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE B X4+ EFRA A
Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

35. AWwRES ([ARKRES])

(#&)
(a)

MR ES— (&)
HREBETABRRES —EARE
MKEEER -_T—mME=A
=+t—HZEK-

BRI ES W EEERR
5 B 78 #9352,00058 7T Jh R ¥ 56
BRESEZAENRERIT Y -

BOARRARHR T —NF—
RTNBZ@k ([5%38H ] ) Pk
BAMmRES -2 ETEZBRN
T

AR ER—
PN+
EEHRE

20,000,0007%5 70

F17100,000% T )2
HEg

7X1E =]

2
SmH
o
=
o
s

s

w58
o
Sy
w
R

I
[l
Ay
|
l_\_
4:,}

+-A=+—H
ETHERANE
E G 2 1ER
T R RS R
HE(EER %A
) 317 AR AR (B
H—AAreEY
e % Eihk
BO:BE B
BEATA R
SRR R HIHE
B ERYERN
AR ESF—2F
AL

LR
mEEl

B & :

i 7 A f8629,000,0008% 3% 15 2 B &
RIE—RF+AZHZK WA
f& (& FH — 2 AR (B A T A%0.1887 7T
FHEE017ETT e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued)

(a)

Convertible bonds | (continued)
Conversion

No conversion of the CB-l or of the Valid
Principal Amount (as defined in the Circular),
whichever shall be appropriate, shall take place
prior to the expiration of the Restricted Period
or prior to the happening of the Specific Event
(as defined in the Circular) (as the Company
may determine in its sole and absolute
discretion).

Prior to the expiration of the Restricted Period
or prior to the happening of the Specific
Event (as the Company may determine in its
sole and absolute discretion), the Company
shall not, and shall not have to, recognise,
accept, agree or register any conversion of
any principal amount of the CB-Il. In any
event, the Company shall not, and shall not
have recognise, accept, agree or register any
conversion of any Cancelled Principal Amount
(as defined in the Circular), and the bondholder
shall not have any recourse whatsoever against
the Company. The Company shall, and shall
only have recognise, accept, agree or register
any conversion of any Valid Principal Amount,
and the Company shall have sole and absolute
discretion in determining any or all issues on,
over or concerning conversion of the CB-I.

Subject to conditions under the bond
instrument, during the conversion period,
bondholder shall have the right to convert
the whole or any part (in multiples of
HK$100,000.00) of the Valid Principal
amount, whichever shall be appropriate, into
such number of conversion shares as will be
determined by dividing the principal amount
of the CB-l to be converted by the conversion
price (subject to adjustment) in effect on the
date of conversion.

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE
35.
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—N\F+ZA=+—HIFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued)

(a)

Annual Report 2018 =%

Convertible bonds I (continued)
Redemption

Redemption at maturity shall only be limited
and applicable to the Valid Principal Amount.
The Cancelled Principal Amount cannot, and
shall not, be redeemed whatsoever. Subject
to this as well as other conditions in the
bond instrument, the Valid Principal Amount
which has not been redeemed or converted
in accordance with the conditions under the
bond instrument by the maturity date, shall,
at the sole and absolute discretion of the
Company (and regardless of whether or not
the bondholder concerned have requested
for conversion of any principal amount of the
CB-l into conversion shares) but subject to
shareholders’ approval (if required) as well as
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and/
or requirements of regulatory authorities,
either be redeemed by the Company on the
maturity date at a redemption amount equal to
100% of Valid Principal Amount or such part
thereof which is outstanding at that juncture,
or be converted into conversion shares. For
any avoidance of doubt, the Company shall
not, and shall not be required to, redeem
the Cancelled Principal Amount (as defined
above) or any part thereof, and the bondholder
shall not have any recourse or right of action
whatsoever against the Company.

Further details of the issue of CB-l as a
consideration of an acquisition are set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 13
December 2013, 7 March 2014 and 31 March
2014 and the circular of the Company dated 19
February 2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued)

(a)

Convertible bonds | (continued)
Redemption (continued)

The CB-I contains the following components
that are required to be separately accounted
for:

(i) Liability component for the CB-I
represents the present value of the
contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the
rate of interest at the date of issue
with reference to the market rate for
instruments of comparable credit status
taking into account the credit risk of the
Company as well as the amount of the
CB-I without conversion option, plus
allocated transaction costs. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is
17.37%.

(ii) Equity component represents the
difference between the fair value of
the issue of the CB-I and the fair values
assigned to the liability components less
allocated transaction costs.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
68,443,811 ordinary shares of the Company
were converted as a result of conversion of CB-
I. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the equity and liability component of CB-I were
reversed by approximately HK$10,970,000 and
approximately HK$4,194,000 respectively.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT_A=t—AILEE
R ESs ([J8RkEs])
(#%&)
(a) wWwKRES— (&)

()
ABMEESF—BE N NTEBILA
frzBbo

iy TAIBREHF—ABERS
BIRBEITA 2 A RBLE 2
EHBEBERRESRE
B ERE2ZEEMRR
AELBRHNTAZTISH
Wit RARBZEE
R\ B LA J% I 48 £ B 45 A ]
BmRES—HE Bt
EORR KA BEH
D EENER1T.37% °

(i) EmIHIEBITAIRRE
S22 RFEESETE
%%ﬁZ@%@Z%%H

DR G -

HE-_T—+tF+=-A=1+—
B IFFE 68,443,811 A A &)
TEREERTBRRES—M
WEm-HE T —+F+ A
=t+t—BLFE AIBRES—
MiEERBEIS D AIEE LY
10,970,000/ 7T & 434,194,000/
5T 0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS”) (continued)

35.

(b)

Convertible bonds Il and Convertible bonds
1l

On 29 May 2015, Delightful Hope, Yardley
and Rich Best Asia Limited, an entity owned
by the shareholder of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant
to which Rich Best Asia Limited (“Rich Best
Asia”) has agreed to sell and Delightful Hope
has agreed to purchase 1 ordinary share in
China Smart Asia Limited, which representing
100% equity interest, at a consideration of
HK$93,000,000, which shall be settled and
discharged by Delightful Hope in accordance
with the time, mode and manner set out under
the sale and purchase agreement.

The aggregated consideration of
HK$93,000,000, of which (i) HK$46,500,000
shall be satisfied by Delightful Hope and
Yardley by cash or cashier order upon the
completion of acquisition; and (ii) the remaining
balance of the consideration in the sum of
HK$46,500,000 shall be settled and discharged
by the issuance of the Company’s convertible
bonds to the Chinese Strategic Holdings
Limited, the ultimate holding company of Rich
Best Asia, and as follows, (i) the Convertible
bonds A (“CB-Il") in the principal amount
of HK$23,000,000; and (ii) the Convertible
bonds B (“CB-llI") in the principal amount
of HK$23,500,000 upon the completion of
acquisition.

Upon exercise of conversion rights attaching
to the CB-Il and CB-Ill, 92,000,000 and
94,000,000 new shares shall be issued.

The completion of the acquisition involving the
issue of CB-Il and CB-lll as a consideration took
place on 20 August 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued) 35. ABBRELE ([TREE:])
(&)
(b) Convertible bonds Il and Convertible bonds (b) TFHERBEF-_RUBRES=

Il (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016,
transaction costs directly attributable to issue of
the CB-Il and CB-lll amounted to approximately
HK$702,000 are allocated to liability and equity

(&)

HE-_T—XF+=ZA=+—H
WEFE - BITUBRRES &
BRESF =B EERZEAEL
702,000/ 7T 1A ¥ 45 i 3R B &9 i

components on initial recognition. TRENRERRED -

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 27
July 2015 (the “Circular-Il"), the principal terms
of the CB-Il and CB-lIl are as follows:

Principal amount
N

Conversion price
R (B

Interest
IPS)

Maturity date
A

Transferability

AR

HIARBAMAE - FT—hFt
AZttER2z@mk ([@BE=])Fr
WE A RES - R A BARE
FZMEEEFMT

CBII CB-lll
RRES= AR ES=
HK$23,000,000 HK$23,500,000
23,000,000/ 7T 23,500,000/ 7T
HK$0.25 HK$0.25
0.25/87T 0.258 7T

The Convertible Bonds shall not The Convertible Bonds shall not

bear any interest. bear any interest.

A3 IR A& 25 3 AR AT RS o A3 IR A& 25 3 AR AT S o
31 March 2017 30 September 2018
—ET—+tF=A=+—H - N\FHhA=TH

Subject to compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and regulatory
requirements, the convertible bonds may be transferred to any
person provided that where the convertible bonds is intended to be
transferred to a connected person (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) (other than the associates of the holders of the convertible
bonds), such transfer shall comply with the requirements under
the GEM Listing Rules and/or requirements imposed by the Stock
Exchange, if any. Any transfer of the convertible bonds shall be in
respect of the whole or any part (in multiples of HK$500,000) of the
outstanding principal amount of the convertible bonds.
RETGEMETRAREERENERT AIRREFATEETE
AL WRABRRESHREZET REEA L (EERGEMLETR
) (AIREFFHAEAZBEARIN)  BFEAEZEANASGEMLET
RAIZHRE R I XM RE (10F) o AR EH 2 E
FEARARRES W AREO AR 2 EME 5 (500,000 7T
2B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS”) (continued)

35.

(b)

Convertible bonds Il and Convertible bonds
Il (continued)

Conversion

Each holder of the CB-Il and CB-Ill shall have
the right, exercisable during the Conversion
Period (as defined in the Circular-1l) to
convert the whole or any part (in multiples
of HK$500,000) of the outstanding principal
amount of the CB-Il and CB-lll held by such
holder of CB-Il and CB-lll into such number
of conversion shares as will be determined by
dividing the principal amount of the CB-Il and
CB-Ill to be converted by the conversion price
in effect on the date of conversion. No fraction
of a Share shall be issued on conversion of the
CB-Il and CB-lll. The Company shall pay a cash
amount in HK$ equal to such amount of CB-lI
and CB-lll that are not converted.

Redemption

All CB-Il and CB-Ill which have not been
redeemed or converted in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the CB-Il and CB-
Il instruments by their maturity dates shall be
redeemed by the Company on their maturity
dates at a redemption amount equal to 100%
of the principal amount of such CB-Il and CB-lIl.

China Eco-Farming Limited FE B X4+ EFRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS") (continued)

(b)

Convertible bonds Il and Convertible bonds
11l (continued)

Redemption (continued)

The CB-Il & CB-lll contains the following
components that are required to be separately
accounted for:

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

Liability component for the CB-Il &
CB-lll represented the present value of
the contractually determined stream
of future cash flows discounted at the
rate of interest at the date of issue
with reference to the market rate for
instruments of comparable credit status
taking into account the credit risk of
the Company as well as the amount of
the CB-Il & CB-lll without conversion
option, plus allocated transaction costs.
The effective interest rate of the liability
component for CB-Il and CB-lll is 8.82%
and 9.27%, respectively.

Equity component represents the
difference between the fair values of the
CB-II & CB-lll and the fair values assigned
to the liability components less allocated
transaction costs. The fair values of the
entire CB-Il & CB-lll are HK$23,000,000
and HK$23,500,000 respectively, were
valued by Asset Appraisal Limited.

CB-Il was matured on 31 March 2017
and reclassify to other payable with
principal amount of HK$23,000,000 and
accrued penalty interest calculated at the
fixed rate of 5% per annum as agree
with CB-Il bonds holder. Details of which
are set out in Note 29.

CB-Ill was matured on 30 September
2018 and reclassify to other
payable with principal amount of
HK$23,500,000. Details of which are set
out in Note 29.

R MR M
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE
AR ES ([J8RKREs])
(&)
(b) FARREZF-RABKREZR=
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B (4E)
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B 58.82% K 9.27% °

(iy HRIDEATRERES=
MAlgRES =2 AFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE
35.

T N\F+-A=1+—HILFE
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (“CBS”) (continued) 35.

(c)

The movements of the CBs are set out

below:

At 1 January 2017

S

Interest paid ERFLE
Conversion of CB-l (Note (a)) ~ HIAAI B ESH—
(FitEE(@))
Effective interest expense ERA S
(Note 8) (KTzEs)

Lapse of CB-Il
Reclassify to other payable
(Note 29)

At 31 December 2017

Effective interest expense
(Note 9)
Lapse of CB-lll

R ES KR
BB AEMENTE
(KF5E29)

R=B—tF+=A
=+-8
HIRFLB X (Hi30)

AR ER =R

Reclassify to other payable EROBRREMERN
(Note 29) A (FIEE29)
At 31 December 2018 R-B-N\&§
+=A=t-H
Liability component BRI
Classification of convertible — A[¥#RRESH 2 o8 :
bonds:
Current B HR
Non-current JERNHA

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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(%)

(0 TWERREZZSFHIHIMT:

Liability
component
aEHS
HK$'000
FET

51,337
(248)

(10,970)

4,568

(23,000)

21,687

1,813

(23,500)

Equity
component
b
HK$'000
TET

12,847

(4,194)

(2,954)

5,699

(5,699)

2018

—E-N\F

HK$'000
Tz

Total
et
HK$'000
FET

64,184
(248)

(15,164)

4,568
(2,954)

(23,000)

27,386

1,813
(5,699)

(23,500)

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FET

21,687

21,687



36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current
and prior reporting periods:

At 1 January 2017 RZT—tF—H—H
Credited to consolidated FEGaBaERAMEE
statement of profit or loss and hERER
other comprehensive income
for the year
Exchange differences arising from BERELNELEZR

the balances

At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+ZA=+—H
Credited to consolidated FEGABZREMNEE

statement of profit or loss and haiER
other comprehensive income
for the year
Exchange differences arising from BEBEENELZR

the balances

At 31 December 2018 RZB-NF+-_A=+—H

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately HK$143,311,000
(2017: HK$194,297,000) available for offsetting
against future profits. No deferred tax has be
recognised in respect of such losses (2017: Nil) due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$2,775,000 (2017: HK$3,658,000). No deferred tax
asset has be recognised in respect of such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can recognise.

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Hz_Z—N\F+-A=1+—HLEE
iR I B IR
A TRAREPE B EREHE TR
EHARLENIBEEBEREHEED:

Fair value
Accelerated changes of
tax investment
depreciation properties Total
REMEMN
MEBERE ATEED #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TER
772 21,005 21,777
(445) 2) (447)
- 203 203
327 21,206 21,533
(130) 793 663
- (174) (174)
197 21,825 22,022

REMERR AEEHBAIRAER
HAR GO W KRB ABIBEEIR
#9143,311,0008 L (=& — £ F:
194,297,000/ 7T.) ° B 74 7K B2 T8 R R 2R
wEAR M RIEER B SRR
(ZE—tF ) FURER - BEAE
PR B b 4582 o

KSR REEK AR E =
B4 52,775,000 T (& —HF:
3,658,000/ 7T ) © BN K A] GE B FE 2R
Tt 352 1) AT RE R B O] H R T P A= KRR G
D 4 B AT A0 0R B R E R R R R I R TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T
37. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised ordinary shares:
At 1 January 2017,
31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018
Share consolidation (Note f (i))
Share sub-division (Note f (iii))

At 31 December 2018

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares:

At 1 January 2017

Issue of shares upon conversion of
convertible bonds (Note a)

Exercise of share options (Note b)

Issue of shares upon settlement
of contingent consideration
(Note ¢)

At 31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018

Placing of new shares (Note d)

Issue of shares upon settlement
of contingent consideration
(Note ¢

Issue of shares in consideration
for the acquisition of subsidiary
(Note e)

Share consolidation (Note f (i)

Capital reduction (Note f (ii))

At 31 December 2018

Authorised convertible preference
shares:
At 1 January 2017,
31 December 2017,
1 January 2018 and
31 December 2018

Issued and fully paid convertible
preference shares:
At 1 January 2017,
31 December 2017,
at 1 January 2018 and
31 December 2018

258
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—N\F+ZA=+—HIFE

37. BA&
Nominal
value
per share
BREE
HK$
BT
EEL B
m,f +&—-H—8"
—t&+-A=1+—H
f NEFE—A—H 0.02
H@éﬁ(%&@) N/A 73 F
B 4 (HIEEAG)) N/A 7R F
R=—E-NE+=-A=+—H 0.01
BERETRBHRLER:
WZE—+&—A—H 0.02
Tﬁh1%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂh@

(KizEa) 0.02
TR AR (Miib) 0.02
REEIAREBRETRR

(Hf3Ec)

0.02

RZE—tE+=A=+-AR

—Z-\F—H—H 0.02
FREFRG (K3Ed) 0.02
RESSARBEREITRG

(HzEc)

0.02

BARMEAKERBRARZ

RAB (izte)

0.02

B3 A B (BIEER)) N/A R F

RRAEI L B REAC) ) N/A i FR

RZE-N\E+ZHA=+—-H 0.01

ETE AR S

R-E—+F—H—H"
“Z—+%+-B=1+—8"
“E-\F-A-BEk
—“E-N\fE+=ZA=+-H 0.1

BEIREHRETER
BER:

R-_Z—+F&—/[—H"
—F—+F+-R=1+-8"
AN )
~®-\F+=-A=t-H 0.1

Number of
shares

Kt #8 8

9,130,434,785
(8,217,391,307)
17,347,826,092

18,260,869,570

6,000,341,424
68,443,811
30,750,000

4,017,253

6,103,552,488
1,200,000,000

2,771,813

465,000,000
(6,994,191,871)

777,132,430

173,913,043

Amount

&5
HK$'000
;ﬁéﬁ

182,609

182,609

120,007
1,369
615

80

122,071
24,000

55

9,300

(147,655)

1,11

17,391



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@)

(0

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the remaining CB-Il with principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 was converted into 68,443,811
ordinary shares of the Company at par at the
conversion price of HK$0.17 per ordinary shares.
As a result of the conversion, the share capital and
share premium have been increased by approximately
HK$1,369,000 and approximately HK$13,795,000
respectively and the equity component of convertible
bonds has been decreased by approximately
HK$4,194,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
30,750,000 share options had been exercised by the
holders at exercise price of HK$0.11 each for the
issuance of ordinary shares at par. As a result of the
exercise of share options, cash and cash equivalents,
share capital and share premium have been increased
by HK$3,383,000, HK$615,000 and HK$4,153,000
respectively and share options reserves has been
decreased by approximately HK$1,385,000.

On 29 July 2016, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, Treasure Max Investment Holdings
Limited (the "Purchaser”) and Ms. Kwok Shuk Kam
(the "Vendor"”) entered into the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, pursuant to which the Vendor has
agreed to sell the Sale Shares (as defined in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 July 2016)
to the Purchaser and the Purchaser has agreed
to acquire the Sale Shares from the Vendor. The
Consideration in the sum of up to HK$4,212,000
(subject to adjustment) shall be satisfied by cash of
HK$2,600,000 and up to HK$1,612,000 by issue of
not more than 12,400,000 consideration shares at
HK$0.13 per consideration share under the General
Mandate granted to the Directors at the Company's
annual general meeting held on 4 May 2016.

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_T—

NF+ZA=+—BILFE

37. K& (&)

S

(a

TN
|
M

—+F+ZA=+—HLF
& %Ezo,ooo,ooo/%nE@IJﬁ%T
A5 DIRmENRREERY
77 T 568,443,811 1A% K
LBAY - AR IR R AR (D
R 1 11 491,369,0007% 7T K 49
95,000/ 7T LA R AT R AR (B R #E
ﬁm > #94,194,0005 7T

*}

H

Il 58

u-| &5 ]]]#

B SO B W R
=
cm

i 8

Bk &
Dm”\llmm

HEZT—tF+ZA=1+—HLLF
€+ 30,750,000 BB HIFE A
BITEEFR0B TITE AR EE
BTEBR -BARTEERE Be
KB EE BALRKRGHES 55
38 /Nn3,383,0007% 7T * 615,0007% 7T &
4,153,000/ 7T - MmEAREREHD L
491,385,000 7T

R-E— /\iﬁﬁfﬂ'ﬂa’ﬁﬂ
2EWBARIEEREERERA

(FE??J)@E;B/ﬂ%ﬁinaHJ)ET
VEEWH B BFEREME
FHEHEERD (ERAAATHEH
ATE—XNFLAZ+TNBNLDMH)
MEAEREBE A WHEHEERD -
RES X£H% 54,212,000 7T (7]
FHHE)  WIAIR£2,600,000% 7T
A RBIE—REE (RERAA
RZZE—RNFRAMNBRITZREE
FRAELRTES)RERRERD
0.13% L3178 812,400,000/% X
BERH A5 %1,612,00078 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE
37.

—=
—=

—N\F+ZA=+—HIFE

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

()

Annual Report 2018 =%

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Company issued 4,017,253 ordinary shares at par
value of HK$0.02 per share on a pro rata basis to
the Vendor since only 65% of the target profit after
tax have been met. Details are set out in Note 46. As
a result of this transaction, share capital and share
premium have been increased by approximately
HK$80,000 and approximately HK$442,000
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company issued 2,771,813 ordinary shares at par
value of HK$0.02 per share on a pro rata basis to
the Vendor since only 45% of the target profit after
tax have been met. Details are set out in Note 46. As
a result of this transaction, share capital and share
premium have been increased by approximately
HK$55,000 and approximately HK$305,000
respectively.

On 9 March 2018, the Company and Kingston
Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered
into the placing agreement, pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place, through
the Placing Agent, on a best effort basis a maximum
of 1,200,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at
a placing price of HK$0.083 per placing share (the
“2018 Placing”).

The gross proceeds from the 2018 Placing were
HK$99,600,000. The net proceeds after deducting
the placing commission and other related expenses
were approximately HK$96,900,000. The completion
of the 2018 Placing took place on 29 March 2018.
Further details of the 2018 Placing are set out in the
Company's announcements dated 9 March 2018 and
29 March 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(e)

On 27 August 2018, King Noble Holdings Limited
("King Noble"”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company and an independent third party
Mr. Guo Weifu (“Mr. Guo”) entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Guo has
agreed to sell to King Noble 100 ordinary shares of
Max Joint Asia Pacific (China) Limited (“Max Joint"”),
representing 100% of the entire issued share capital
in Max Joint at the consideration of HK$46,500,000,
settled by the issuance of 465,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company to Mr. Guo.

The transaction was completed on 25 October 2018.
Further details of the acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 27 August 2018
and 25 October 2018.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the special
general meeting held on 15 November 2018, the
Company proceed with capital reorganisation (the
"“Capital Reorganisation”) involving, among others,
the following:

i) share consolidation whereby every ten shares
of the Company's issued and unissued shares
with par value of HK$0.02 per share have
been consolidated into one share with par
value of HK$0.2 (the “Consolidation Share”).
The Consolidated Shares rank pari passu in all
respects with each other;

ii) capital reduction whereby the issued share
capital of the Company will be reduced
by cancelling the paid up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.19 on each
of the then issued Consolidated Shares
such that the par value of each issued
Consolidated Share will be reduced from
HK$0.2 to HK$0.01;

iii) share sub-division whereby each of the
authorised but unissued Consolidated Shares
will be divided into twenty adjusted shares of
HK$0.01 each (the "Adjusted Share”);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes: (continued)

37.

(f)

(continued)

iv) Share Premium Reduction whereby the entire
amount standing to the credit of the Share
Premium Account will be reduced to nil; and

V) transfer of all the credits arising from the
Capital Reduction and the Share Premium
Reduction to the contributed surplus account
of the Company.

Further details of the acquisition are set out in the
Company's Circular dated 23 October 2018.

Implementation of the Capital Reorganisation will
not, of itself, alter the underlying assets, business
operations, management or financial position of
the Company or the proportionate interests of the
shareholders, except for the payment of the related
expenses.

On 15 November 2018, all the conditions precedent
of the implementation of the Capital Reorganisation
had been fulfilled and the Capital Reorganisation had
become effective on 16 November 2018.

All new shares rank pari passu with other shares in
issue in all respects.
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debts, which includes amounts due to non-controlling
interests, borrowings, margin loans payables and the
debt component of convertible bonds as disclosed in
Notes 31, 32, 34 and 35 respectively, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital and
reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on the recommendations of
the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debts.

38.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

39. €®TIA

Categories of financial instruments (a)
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables R & EBRIE

(including cash and (BIEAekREEME)

cash equivalents)

Financial assets at FVTPL
— held-for-trading

Available-for-sale investments

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at FVTPL
— contingent consideration
payable

Other financial liabilities
(at amortised cost)
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Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

BAVEAABGZZEHEE

—RBEEE

AfHERE

EAFEFAEMEZEREZ
AR T HE

EREE
BAVESABENEHEE
— BN EARE

HttemaE
(IREHEAKAINE)

ERMITAZER

2018
—E-N\fF
HK$'000
FExT

104,887

20,362
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity instruments at FVTOCI available-for-
sale investments, loans to associates, trade and
other receivables, loan and interest receivables,
financial assets at FVTPL, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, amounts
due to non-controlling interests, borrowings,
margin loans payables, convertible bonds and
contingent consideration payable. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency
risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The Directors manage and monitor these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
The Group has certain subsidiaries
operate in the PRC and Taiwan, and the
functional currency of these subsidiaries
established in the PRC and Taiwan are
RMB and NTD respectively. The RMB
is not freely convertible into other
currencies. However, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through authorised banks to
conduct foreign exchange business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_ZT-\F+-A=+—HIEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

()

Currency risk (continued)

The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:

AR
E

RMB
usb

The Group is mainly exposed to RMB
and USD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

()

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group's
sensitivity to a 5% (2017: 5%) change
in HK$ against the respective foreign
currencies. 5% (2017: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items,
and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% (2017:
5%) change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number below indicates
a decrease in post-tax loss where
HK$ weaken against the respective
foreign currencies. For a 5% (2017:
5%) strengthening of HK$ against the
relevant currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the post-
tax loss and the balances below would
be negative.

BB ERD

Decrease in
post-tax loss
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

39.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate
loan and interest receivables, loans to
associates, borrowings and the liability
component of convertible bonds, as
set out in Notes 25, 26, 32 and 35,
respectively. The Group is also exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its variable-rate bank balances and
borrowings as detailed in Note 28 and
32. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

(i1)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have
been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis points (2017: 100 basis
points) increase or decrease in variable
rate borrowings is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest
rates. Bank balances are excluded from
sensitivity analysis as the Directors
consider that the exposure of cash flow
interest rate risk arising from variable
rate bank balance is insignificant.

If interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2017: 100 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for
the year ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$69,000 (2017:
HK$77,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group's exposure to interest rates
on its variable-rate bank borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE
39.

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(i) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity
price risk through its investments in
equity securities measured at FVTPL
and FVTOCI (2017: available-for-sale
investments). For equity securities
measured at FVTPL (2017: held-for-
trading) quoted in the Stock Exchange,
the management manages this exposure
by maintaining the investments with
appropriate level. In addition, price risk
was monitored by the management of
the Group who will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk at the reporting date,
excluding available-for-sale investments
measured at cost less impairment for
the year ended 31 December 2017.
Sensitivity analyses for unquoted equity
securities with fair value measurement
categorised within Level 3 were
disclosed in Note 39(c). For sensitivity
analysis of equity securities with fair
value measurement categorised within
Level 1, the sensitivity rate is increased
to 10% in 2018 as a result of the

volatile financial market.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(if)

Other price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the price of respective equity
instruments held had been 10% (2017:
10%) higher/lower

- Post-tax loss for the year

would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$1,700,000
(2017: HK$3,367,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of
held for trading investments.

- Investment revaluation reserve

would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,014,000
(2017: HK$1,806,000) for the
Group as a result of the changes
in fair value of equity instruments
at FVTOCI (2017: available-for-
sale investments).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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39.
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—N\F+ZA=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

At 31 December 2018, other than those
financial assets whose carrying amounts best
represent the maximum exposure to credit risk,
the Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables, loan and interest
receivables, loans to associates and bank
balances. The carrying amounts of financia
assets at amortised cost stated in Note 39(a)
represented the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risk associated with its financial
assets, except that the credit risks associated
with loans and interest receivables is mitigated
because they are secured over properties/
securities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts
(including trade and other receivables). In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application
of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model)
on trade balances individually or based on
provision matrix. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’'s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group reassesses lifetime ECL for trade
receivables to ensure that adequate impairment
loss are made for significant increase in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
individual assess. The ECL on trade receivables
are assessed for debtors with significant
balances or collectively using a provision
matrix appropriate groupings. As part of the
Group's credit risk management, the Group use
debtors’ aging to assess with the impairment
for its customers because these customers
consists of a large number of customers which
share common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms. The loss rates are estimated
on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is
updated.
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ZHREFMHEEPHRE AR
ZERFPBEAEEGAFAR
RENEP MZERFBRE
B RIEA MIGRFE BT AL
N BIEEDERERAREH
FHZESLEBRENRMATL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE
39.

—=
—=

—N\F+ZA=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Annual Report 2018 =%

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s
concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong, which
accounted for 99% (2017: 99%) of the total
trade receivables and 49% (2017: 67 %) of the
total loan and interest receivables.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 20% (2017:
16%) and 66% (2017: 50%) of the total
trade receivables were due from the Group’s
largest customer and five largest customers
respectively, all within one-stop value chain
services and trading of grocery food products
(2017: trading of grocery food products).

Other receivables/loan and interest receivables/
loan to associates/bank balances and cash

For loan and interest receivables, the Group's
management manages and analyses the
credit risk for each of their new and existing
customers before standard payment terms
and conditions are offered. The management
assesses the collateral and credit quality of each
customer based on customer’s background
information, financial position, past experience
and relevant factors. The Group also reviews
from time to time the financial position of the
customers.

—NFFHK

39.

TR T A (&)

(b)

TREREERERBE (#)

=B R EF G (&)

‘é’%fé#ﬁmﬁ (#&)

A—E—N\FE+-_A=+—8"
zlx%lhztmln—_u%lJna@EEHM
BEFREE HEFEKFIE
HEER99% (ZF—+F:99% )
K EWE R F B EFER49%
(ZFE—+F:67%)°

RZE—-—N\F+=ZA=+—8H"
MRAEEEFREERRB20%
T —tF:16%) H66%
(ZZE—+F:50% )NEHEI
HBRBHAIREAEBZAE
FRAREF HEHBN—
ANEEERBELAEHRERE S

—E—tF RHERRED)T
%o

B JEY A TE, - JE W B KT
B THERN A RITEBR
B

REKEREFET S  HREH
BREL MR G2/ A&
EEREEEBERROMHAMER
RERFEEMNEERR -E12
BEREFHNERER MR
AR RAEERTEE

AEFEFMERREEER A&
DI N S A SN BN
oo



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Other receivables/loan and interest receivables/
loan to associates/bank balances and cash
(continued)

For loan to associates, the Group’s
management manages and analyses the credit
risk of the associates with high credit rating as
at 31 December 2018 and 2017. As a result,
it was not probable that the associates would
default in repayment of the borrowings.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 26% (2017:
20%) and 73% (2017: 71%) of the total
loan and interest receivables were due from
the Group's largest borrower and five largest
borrowers respectively.

The credit risk on bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks/financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

For all other instruments including other
receivables, loan and interest receivables, loan
to associates, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
based on significant increases in the likelihood
or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition. The Group have assessed and
concluded that the risk of default rate for the
other instruments are steadily based on the
Group assessment of the financial health of the
counterparties.

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

39. & TR (&)

(b)

TREREERERBE ()
EEE R FEFE (&)

HE M ERAETERE L FE
S ERTHE LA IRITAABRR
g (&)

At E R RMEROERN S
AEEEEER T \FL=
Z—+tF+A=+—HEEK
IMEERRERFRNEBE R
AN EERR - FLt - BEAFN
KAl gEHB R EIEfE 3K -

RZE—NFE+=_A=+—8"
rEESEFEERRR26% (=
T—tF:20%) B73% (=%
—tF:71%)MEWE KK F
BHRBENHREARNEEZRAER
ARABKEFKA

HREF 7 ABEREEFEKE
RIRSEEFRZBT 2
BMME SERTEREERRA
BR °

MAABEEMTA (BEEMER
IR R E R F B IA BB K
THERRDME AKEFE
BEREBESN2EARDBEES
B RIFEEERR A A ER
AREZE LT AIRNEEERE
HEHEEBR-EERUAEH
B EEEERRIREB VA
FERR A SR 3% A 32 K9 R0 AT BE 1 S
frFaE LAt fhe NREBE A
IR AEM T B2 ELEER
BRE EDERAEEHRS
HBFMGREHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal credit

rating Description

A EE TR 8

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and does
not have any past-due amounts

e REHUFNENRRBRELYREMOHEHE

Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but usually
settle after due date

BRAE EBARERBES EREGENTER

Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources

*E ABELEFRBIBRRNEHBREERRE
NI HEREBEZEM

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-
impaired

B# RERBETEECHREERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

HisH RERBETERABABRENBERERTEE

WAE AT BRI FRR

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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ERMITA (&)
(b) SREMREEEEREE (&)
=R E B R w81 ()

AEENAFEER
BT DM

AA Fl$ 2& Fl:l: 1$

Other financial
assets

HttemEE

Trade receivables
FEWER
Lifetime ECL 12-month ECL
- not credit-impaired

2HRACEER REARAEEER

-BEERES
Lifetime ECL 12-month ECL
- not credit-impaired
SHRSREEES REABHEESE
-EEERE
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

- not credit-impaired - not credit-impaired

2HEMEERR
—BEERE

2HEMEERR
~EEERE

Lifetime ECL
— credit-impaired
PHEHEEESE

Lifetime ECL
— credit-impaired
PHEHEEES

—EERE -EERE
Amount is Amount is
written off written off
SEEMH SEEMH



39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures
of the Group’'s financial assets, which are
subject to ECL assessment.

External Internal
2018 Note credit rating credit rating
—E-N\f iz SHBEETR s ETAR
Financial assets
at amortised costs
REHERAIIENERERE
Bank balances 28  Aa2-Baa3 N/A
RITEEH 28 Aa2-Baa3 TEA
Trade receivables 24 NIA (Note 1)
B 5 EWFR 24 TEA (BzE1)
Loss
BB
Other receivables 24 NIA (Note 2)
Hib IR 24 TEA i)
Loan and interest receivables 25  NA Low risk
ERERRHME 25 TEA ERR
Doubtful
P
Loss
BB
Loans to associates 26 N/A (Note 2)
MR AELER 26 TEH (BizE2)
Notes:
1) For trade receivables, the Group has applied

the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL.
To measure the ECL, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the historical observed
default rates adjusted by forward looking
estimates.

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

39. & TR (&)

(b) =REREEBEREXE (#)
EEE R FEFE (&)

TRAVAREFLETEAGEE
ERFHZEREEZEER

(& o
AA

12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
T-EASHASEEEE RHAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TEL

12-month ECL 17,870
REABRMEEER

Lifetime ECL (Provision matrix) 2,723
2HRNEEER (BEEE)

Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 322 3,045
THRHGEERE-EERE

12-month ECL 22,309
REABRMEEER

12-month ECL 12,072
RMEARHEEER
Lifetime ECL (not credit- 5,714

impaired)
CHRHEERR

(BEERE)
Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 27,467 45,253
CHRHBEEFE-FERE

Lifetime ECL (not credit- 29,020
impaired)

2HEBEEFSE
(BEERAE)

1 REZERUGRIEMNS - AEH
EEABEAMBREENSE
Ot Z BT AT B2 TR
EEERZERBE RFTE
BEMEERR REXEREE
R AE KB E B R B R E
HE - e ATRE A EHR -
HESEM N RIEETAME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

39.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

1

(continued)

As part of the Group's credit risk
management, the Group uses debtors’ aging
to assess the impairment for its customers
in relation to its businesses of trading of
consumables and agricultural products,
trading of grocery food products and
provision of financial services operation. Their
customers consist of a large number of small
customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’
abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The following
table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
which are assessed based on provision matrix
as at 31 December 2018 within lifetime
ECL (not credit impaired). Trade receivable
of HK$322,000 was credit-impaired as at
31 December 2018 and have been assessed
individually.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

39.

ERIA (#)
TREREERERBE (#)

(b)

=B R E G (&)

B e (&)

1

(%)

ERAEEEERRERE
—E55  AEBEFEREBAD
IR EREERERRE
EmES RARMESHRIE
HEBRFEBNE A -
REEBZEFBRERE/N
NEE HEAGHENRAR
FHE - REBPBRIEA LDIER
S ETERERIB S - T
R BEHE SR FKERN
FERBER HRZZ—N
F+-_A=+—HBEZHHE
HEEBE (BEERE)AN
RREEEETHE R T
—N\F+-—A=+—H &5
JiE Ut F 7B 322,000 T HHIRE
BRE EEERT G-



39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

39. & TR (&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

1) (continued)

Gross carrying amount

Trading of consumables and
agricultural product
Current to 30 days past due

Trading of grocery food products

Current to 30 days past due
Over 90 days past due

Provision of financial services

operation
Current to 30 days past due
Over 90 days past due

(b) <crEREEEEREE(EH)
EERE R B E G ()
MisE: (&)
1) (&)
HARE
Estimated Trade
loss rate receivables
fEEEEE BESZERNE
HK$'000
FET
EREGREERES
B ATZ308 NEHA 0.59% 451
BHERES
BRI ZE308 W2 H 0.59% 971
90H LA _E EI|Hf 5.76% 570
REHSBREER
BRI =308 W3 H 0.15% 170
90H LA EEIHA 2.13% 561

The estimated loss rates are estimated based

on industry credit benchmarking studies on
the industry-wide probability of default term
structure over the expected life with forward

looking adjustment that is available without

undue cost or effort and empirical study on

loss given default rate.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group provided HK$53,000 impairment
allowance for trade receivables, based on the

provision matrix.

HETBEENEF DERE
AIEBBZRARBNINE
HEHATANEITRED
HIRBEMITREEEEMR
K (EHATIEIEFRE) RE L

BAENEERR-

BHE2E-_ZT—-N\F+=A
=+—BIEFE FAEEIBER
BIBEME S EKKIEE
tH153,0007% 7T # 3l 18 7 1 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and (b)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

2)

ERIA (#)
TREREERERBE (#)

=B R EF G (&)

BiaE : (&)

For the purposes of internal credit risk 2)
management, the Group uses past due
information to assess whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial

recognition.

Other receivables

Loan and interest receivables

Loans to associates

Past due

)i

HK$'000

FTET

Hi YR -
W ERRAE 33,181

A& DR EHER =

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

HRABEERRERME &
SEERIMEMTIEEE
2 S B VIR R IARAK

CEDIE

Not past
due/No

fixed
repayment
terms

REE/
EEEHEAR
HK$'000

TR

22,309
12,072
29,020

Total

EH
HK$'000
TAL

22,309
45,253
29,020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

39.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. 2@ T A (&)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) L2EEBEEBEREE (&)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EEREBEHEFFE (&)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) sk (4&)
a) The following tables show reconciliation of a) TERARABEE S ERK
loss allowances that has been recognised for TERER AR EBE SR

trade receivables:

Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit- ECL (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HFEH 2 HITEH
FEER FEER
(BEEHE) (EERE) Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2017 WR=-Z—t&F+=H4
under HKAS 39 =+—HIRE
BB R AR 3958 - 302 302
Adjustment upon FER BB B WS £
application of HKFRS 9 FOTR B P 23 83 106
As at 1 January 2018 — RZZ—N\F
As restated —A—HB-&&Eit 23 385 408
Changes due to financial R—H —B#ER &/
instruments recognised T AifmEHEE
as at 1 January:
— Impairment losses —HERREESE
recognised 11 - 11
— Impairment losses —RBREREEE
reversed (26) (38) (64)
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZT—N\F+= A
=q = 8 347 355
China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA 281
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

TR T A (&)

TREREERFERBEK (&

=B R EF G (&)

BiaE : (&)

b) The following tables show reconciliation of b) TR PR Bk E A FE UERE
loss allowances that has been recognised for TR EERELER:
other receivables:
Lifetime ECL
12-month (credit-
ECL impaired) Total
1288 2HEHEERE
BHEEER (FERE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THT
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=1+—-A
under HKAS 39 RIEFBGERE395 - 1,006 1,006
Adjustment upon application JERE B B iRE LR
of HKFRS 9 FOREELEE 34 - 34
As at 1 January 2018 - RZE-N\F-A-B-F&1
As restated 34 1,006 1,040
Changes due to financial instruments R —A—BHERERIAM
recognised as at 1 January: HRED:
— Impairment losses recognised -BRRESE 27 - 27
- Write-offs — = (1,006) (1,006)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+ZA=+—-H 61 - 61

Changes in the loss allowance for other
receivables are mainly due to:

No realistic prospect of
recovery of an other receivable

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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B4 B B 1B
BHTER M

2018
Decrease in
lifetime ECL

(credit-
impaired)
—E-N\F
ZHEHEE
BB
(EERE)
HK$'000
FHET

Uit B0 EL A FE WK IR T ) B

1,006



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

39.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. €®I A (&)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) SREREEEEREE(H)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EERERBEFFE (&)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) MisE: (&)
0) The following tables show reconciliation of 0 TR BT R A B E M E R K A
loss allowances that has been recognised for BERERNEBEEELYE:

loan and interest receivables:

Lifetime Lifetime
12-month ECL (not credit- ECL (credit-
ECL impaired) impaired) Total
2HEE 2HEH
1218A EEER FEBR
BHEEEE (BiEEHE) (EEHE) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FTHT FTHT
As at 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+=R
under HKAS 39 =+-AREER
B ERIE395 - - 4,149 4,149
Adjustment upon application B AR 1R 5 A
of HKFRS 9 FORB LR 211 3,154 7,053 10,418
As at 1 January 2018 - RZZ-N\F
As restated —A—HB-KL&Ei 211 3,154 11,202 14,567
Changes due to finandial R—A—-BERLRIA
instruments recognised MmitRE
as at 1 January:
— Transfer to credit- -BEEERA
impaired = (3,154) 3,154 =
— Impairment losses -BRREESR
recognised i - 1,711 1,722
- Impairment losses —BEREFSE
reversed (39) - (1,063) (1,102)
— Write-offs —Hi 85 - = (4,149) (4,149)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F
+=-A=1+—H 183 - 10,855 11,038

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—/\F+-_A=t+—HLEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. @I A(E)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) L£HREMETEEEREE (&)

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

o}

(continued) Q)

Changes in the loss allowance for loan and
interest receivables are mainly due to:

BiaE : (&)

(%)

2018

=B R EF G (&)

R R L A
BEERER

Increase (decrease) in lifetime ECL

—B-N\F

PHEMGESEENAY)

Increase

(decrease)

in 12-month

ECL

NEAREEE

BEEMCAD)

HK$'000

THL
Loans defaulted and CREONERRER

transferred to credit- FEREER

impaired loans -
Further impairment made for REEREERELN

credit-impaired loans E—FRE -
Settlement received WEERERANEE

from loan debtors (22)
Settlement in full of EREBANEZELE

a loan debtor (17)
No realistic prospect of WEEKERTNER

recovery of a loan receivable -

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B £ 4£REHRA A
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Not credit-
impaired

REERE
HK$'000
T

Credit-impaired

RERE
HK$'000
TR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. @I A(E)
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and (b) L£HREMEEEEREE (&)

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

=B R EF G (&)

B aE - (&)

TRFR A A S A R
B D SRR B

d) The following tables show reconciliation of d)
loss allowances that has been recognised for

loans to associates:

Increase
(decrease)
in lifetime ECL
12-month (not credit-
ECL impaired) Total
2HEH
FEF#R
128 AR H (B=8RE)
FEER 80 (HD) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TR FEL
As at 31 December 2017 under RZE—+F+=R
HKAS 39 =t+-AREEE
SEERIE39% - - -
Adjustment upon application of ERERRBERELER
HKFRS 9 FORMELAE 31 123 435
As at 1 January 2018 - RZE-NF-HA—H
As restated —R&Eit 312 123 435
Changes due to financial R—A—BRRAERBIAM
instruments recognised HEREZE:
as at 1 January:
— Transfer to lifetime ECL (not ~EZ2HRHEEERE
credit-impaired) (BREEERAE) (312) 312 =
— Impairment losses recognised - BRRERE 721 721
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F
+=A=+-H - 1,156 1,156

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

39.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
Directors to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk as the
Group had continuously incurring operating
losses. The liquidity of the Group primarily
depends on the future funding being available
and the ability of the Group to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due. Details of
which are set out in Note 2.

The following table details the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank borrowings and margin loans paybles
with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks and the financial
institutions choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

39.

TR T A (&)

(b)

TREREERERBE (#)

BB LR
ERBETRBREETE A&
BEEREREERRBEEZ
REMREFEKF UREAE
BeERTES WAKRESR
ME) 2

HRAEEFERFELEE
BASEERADETRAR A
SENRPHE ST BEURNAK
S E & AR AR B2 HIR
BITHMBEEENGE S - GRE
BENMIEE2

TRANAEEEBBEZRT
BRHR -ZRDREBESREAE
ZIFFT RN MEN AL B 7] 5E
BTUAXNZ&EBHHGE A
BMs RAERBREREXH
RITERRENRE S ERTIE
ARPERBLE mAwRTR
TR EEEITEEEN AR R
M- HIETES A BENEH
BIERBEEEASR-



39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate curve at the end of
the reporting period.

Weighted
average
interest rate
miE
Fi9F=
2018 —B-0\E

Trade and other payables 2o REMERTE -

Amounts due to [EEERRRERHE
non-controlling interests =
Borrowings CES 5%
Margin loans payables ERHRESER 10%

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

39. & TR (&)

(b)

Within

1 year
oron
demand
—FR
RERHE
HK$'000
TER

31,051
2,995

37,315
18,199

89,560

TREREERERBE ()

mBELmE (&)

ZRBERNERASRERS
Bo-WMERERTEE B
ARG RS PR 2 P REF

H o
B

More than ~ More than

oneyear  two years Total
less than less than  undiscounted Carrying

twoyears  fiveyears  cash flows amounts

SR-F  SRWF E3:3)

BIRME EIREE RERLE RAEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET  FER  FER AR

= = 31,051 31,051
= = 2,995 2,995
= = 37,315 35,616
= = 18,199 18,199
- - 89,560 87,861

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Weighted
average
interest rate
g
THH=
2017 ZE-tF
Non-derivative FTESRER:
financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables 25 REMERTE -
Amounts due to JERT IR IR IR R s 5UR
non-controlling interests -
Borrowings &% 4%
Margin loans payables ERRESER 10%
Convertible bonds RkES -

Bank borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause is included in the “within 1
year or on demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2018
and 2017, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of the bank borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$8,231,000 and
HK$9,233,000 respectively. Taking into account
the Group's financial position, the Directors do
not believe that it is probable that the bank will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be settled in
accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements. At that
time, the aggregate principal and interest
cash outflows will amount to approximately
HK$13,598,000 (2017: HK$20,449,000).
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39. €@ TR (&)

(b)

Within

1 year
oron
demand
—ER%
BREXEE
HK$'000
TR

35,801

2,995
59,469
30,077
23,500

151,842

TREREERERBE (#)

REBELTEE (&)
More than More than

one year two years Total

less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
two years five years cash flows amounts

C2N S JNTES T

ESRmE  EIREF HERLR REE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TATL TR TEL

- - 35,801 35,746
- - 2,995 2,995
- - 59,469 57,189
- - 30,077 30,077
- - 23,500 21,687
- - 151,842 147,694

A BERERENRBXHWRITE
Rt A L@ B BT —F
NI ER| HERSEE - N =
E-NEFEEZFT—tF+ A
=+—H RITERORBRA
TR B #) 48,231,00078 7T K
9,233,000 7T - & E R A KL B &Y
B ARR  EE W TG |/IT
HITEE B EREZRARER -
ESEE ZERITERTIER
EXBEAENE T ERBEE
B @R AeBBERMERER
% #9 513,598,0008 T (= F
—-+4F 120,449,000/ 7T ) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for variable
interest rate instruments are subject to change
if changes in variable interest rates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

This note provides information about how
the Group determines fair values of various
financial instruments.

Some of the Group's financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The Board is responsible to determine
the appropriate valuation technique and inputs
for fair value measurement.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
Board works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

RE MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-T—\FT_A=t—AILEE
39. 2@ T A (&)
(b) c2EEKREEREEEREE (H)

mBELmE (&)

i) B M) o 2 B B A R 7 HA ORI
EEMMANEERAR AL
XS EEFBNETANGHE
gTUNER-

© SWMIANATENE
AR HERAEE AR SR
TABTAFENTEZ AR

AREEHEE D & B T AR H
TEMRATFEAE-EFEERH
BEFTAFEMEZEEGHER
T M 8 AR

W&t A ER  ARERAA
ROTHEABRBE - HE R
WABEBIAR AEERESE
=HEERMGEMETHE-E
EeESERINEMAEMER W
B B EE BETERREAD
B A BUE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—\F+_A=+—HLLFE
39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(0 Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that

are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets

and financial liabilities are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives

information about how the fair values
of these financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined (in particular,

the valuation technical(s) and inputs

used).

Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEABENEREE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI &2 FEFF AR M2 ERE

MiEmIA
AFS AftihE
Financial liabilities SHRAE
Contingent consideration ~ [EfSLAR(E
payable
290 China Eco-Farming Limited FE B X4+ EFRA A
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39. €@ TR (&)

(0
(i)
Level 1
-4
2018 2017
ZE-N\E ZT—t%
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRRL FAT
20,362 40,328
10,142 -
- 18,064
30,504 58,392

ERMTANDVETE (&)

AEFZLEEEEL L FE
BLHEERTHMAEEAFHE

AEENH eREENERAET
MNEREPERFELATEFE T
REHNETERZEEMEER
ERABEZAHE (FRRMERZ
BEXMEBARE) 2EF -

2 FlERF
Level 3 Total
E=R st
2018 2017 2018 2017

“B-N\f ZT-—tfF ZB-NF ZT—«F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FEL TER TAR

_ - 20,362 40328
21,842 = 31,984 -
_ - - 18,064
21,882 = 52,346 58,392
- 512 = 512
- 512 = 512



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(0 Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

0

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (continued)

Fair value as
Financial assets at 31 December 2018
RZB-NE
LREE +-A=t-HZAVE
Listed equity securities at FVTPL HK$20,362,000
(2017: HK$40,328,000)
BATEF ABRZ LARAES 20,362,000/
(ZZ—+%: 40,328,0007)
Listed equity securities at FVTOCI HK$10,142,000
(2017: HK$Nil)
RATEFAR ARG 2 ETREAES 10,142,000
(=337
Unlisted equity investments at FVTOC HK$21,843,000
(Note) (2017: HK$Nil)
RTEFARMEEREZFLFRARE 21,843,000
GBS (ZE—t&:THn)
Listed equity securities classified as AFS HKSNil
(2017: HK$18,064,000)
ARERIRMEZ LTHRAES THEL

(ZF—+%:18,064,000%T)

Note: An increase in price-to-book value
multiple used in isolation would
result in an increase in fair value
measurement of the unlisted
equity investments at FVTOCI,
and vice versa. For the year ended
31 March 2018, a 10% increase/
decrease in price-to-book value
multiple and holding all other
variables constant would increase/
decrease the carrying amount of
the unlisted equity investments at
FVTOCI HK$1,919,000/HK$1,919,000
respectively.

An increase in discount for lack
of marketability used in isolation
would result in a decrease in fair
value measurement of the unlisted
equity investments at FVTOCI, and
vice versa. For the year ended 31
December 2018, a 1% increase/
decrease in discount for lack of
marketability and holding all other
variables constant would decrease/
increase the carrying amount of
the unlisted equity investments at
FVTOCI by HK$211,000/HK$211,000
respectively.

RE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BH=E

“E-N\F+ZA=t+—HILFE

30. €@I R (&)

(o)

Fair value
hierarchy

NTERR

Level 1

Level 1

F-&

ﬁﬁﬂlﬂml_\$@—|—5 (%8)

() FEEZEEZMEEUR
FEAEZEHEERE
AE &L FE ()

Valuation technique(s) Significant

and key inputs unobservable inputs

fREXGRBREALE EXFTRERANE

Quoted closing prices in N/A
an active market
REERTSLNEE TR
Quoted closing prices in N/A
an active market
RAERMS LHRE TR
Market approach Price-to-book value
multiple

Discount of lack of
marketability

[iikoyS THREEH
BETERBLTE

Quoted closing prices in N/A
an active market
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE
39.

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

()

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, contingent
consideration payable was resulted
from the acquisition of Inno-Bag
Limited. The fair value of the contingent
consideration arrangement of Inno-Bag
Limited was approximately HK$512,000
as at 31 December 2017 which was
estimated by applying the income
approach. The fair value estimates are
based on the volatility of the Company’s
shares ranged from 45.8% to 46.1%
and assumed that Inno-Bag Limited has
reached the profit after tax of not less
than HK$1,200,000 for each of the two
years ending 31 March 2017 and 2018
respectively. This is a level 3 fair value
measurement.

During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Company issued 2,771,813
(2017: 4,017,253) ordinary shares at
par value of HK$0.02 per share at a
conversion price of HK$0.13 per share
on a pro rata basis to the Vendor since
45% (2017: 65%) of the target profit
after tax have been met. Details are set
out in Note 46.

There were no transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy during the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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39.

TR T A (&)

(c)

(i)

ERMTANDVETE (&)

AEFZLEEEEL L FE
BCoHMEERTHMEELFHE
(#&)

N_FE—tF+_HA=+—8"
FERT S AR E T E WK 2 IR
RELEERAREELE-R_ZT
—+F+-A=+—H KYR
REGEBR ARG IARELH
KA AL A512,0008 7T 0 it 5
AW EMEET - AP EMEE
RAR G IR K E T F45.8%
£46.1% WIRBRK BIRRBDZE
BRAFTNEBEE-_E—+tF A=
- NFE+-_A=+—HILME
FREEZFHRTE RN TER
1,200,000/ T o It BHE =R N F
BEitEeo

HE-_ZT—-N\F+=ZA=+—H
IEFE AR FIRL B AR AR E
BRE7H.13E L FAEBEER
0.02% 7T (A1 & 5 #172,771,813
BR((ZE—+1%F:4,017,253)
L@l AEER4% (ZF
—tF:65%)MKRTE B IFH
F o FIBEERMTEL6 o

BE_T-/\F+-_A=1+—H
LEE - R ERE K 2R EE

o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(o) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

()

Fair value of the Group’s financial (i)
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements of financial instruments

on recurring basis:

At 1 January 2017

Fair value changes

Issue of shares upon settlement
(Note 37(c))

At 31 December 2017

Adjustment upon application of
HKFRS 9

At 1 January 2018

Addition in relation to
acquisition of Max Joint

Disposal

Fair value changes

Issue of shares upon settlement
(Note 37(c))

Exchange adjustment

At 31 December 2018

39. & TR (&)

(0 EMIBNAFETE(H)

(&)

TEFEZHE:

Assets-

Unlisted

equity

securities at

FVTOCI

BE-

RATETA

Hih 2 E K=

Z¥ L

% A 3% 35

HK$'000

FET

W—ZE—+F—HF—AH -

NEBEEE -
REEREITRG

(FH5E37(c)) =
RZF—+F+=A

=+—H -

JE & B i s 22 A

BT VE L A 32,837

RZZE—-N\F—H—AH 32,837
EHAKBEEEIARE

30,138

He (30,221)

NEBEEE (9,736)
REEREITRG

(FH5E37(c)) =

b 5 2 (1,176)
RZZE-NF+H

=+—H 21,842

AEFZLEEEEL L FE
BLHEERTHMEELFHE

KEMRENSRTAEE=ZAA

Liabilities-
Contingent
consideration
payable

&fE-
PES =
RILE
HK$'000
TAT

2,976
(1,942)

(522)

512

512

(152)

(360)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE
39.

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (continued)

()

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (continued)

Of the total gains or losses for the year
included in profit or loss, HK$152,000
(2017: HK$1,942,000) relates to change
in fair value of contingent consideration
payable at the end of the year ended 31
December 2018.

Included in other comprehensive
income is an amount of approximately
HK$9,736,000 fair value loss relating to
the unlisted equity securities classified as
equity instruments at FVTOCI held at the
end of the current reporting period and
is reported as changes of “investment
revaluation reserve”.

The Directors consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their values.
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39.

TR T A (&)

(c)

(i)

ERMTANDVETE (&)

AEFZLEEEEL L FE
BCoHMEERTHMEELFHE
(#&)

REF AIBEMAFE WK E
#EEEHR 152,000 T (ZF—+
F:1,942,0008 ) BHEEZ T
—N\E+ZA=+—HLFEX
ENSIAERZAFEEEHE
228

RARERRIFTEDEREAT
Bt AL 2EWEMIEETR
KEH 2 N FERIEXI9,736,000
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40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Commitments under operating lease

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due
as follows:

—FNR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are
negotiated for terms of one to three years (2017: one
to three years) and rentals are fixed over the terms of
the leases.

SO MBRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE
40. FEHNEE
REBOET 2&KE
AEBERABA
RBEIBR REERENIA TR
Bz TR R E AN AR K Z &ZIEH

SFRIEAENT
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
3,847 4,491
F_EFLF (BHREERTF) = 4,437
3,847 8,928

REBONFERRAEEAEE T
NREVEEN 2B - BOBREHRD
—E=F(ZE—tEF —E=F)M
HERNHHARNEETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

S
40.

41.

Annual Report 2018 =%

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)
Commitments under operating lease (continued)
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately HK$5,153,000 (2017: HK$3,919,000).
The properties generated recognised rental yields
of 3.0% (2017: 2.3%) on an on-going basis. The
properties leased out have committed tenants for the
next two years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

—FNR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
24 January 2002 (the “Scheme 2002"). Pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 6 May 2011, the
Scheme 2002 was terminated and a new share option
scheme (the “Scheme 2011") was adopted.

Under the Scheme 2002, the Company may only grant
share options to the Directors or any person who is an
employee of members of the Group or any entity in
which the Group holds any equity interests. However,
the Scheme 2011 provides a broadened basis of and
scope of eligible participation and enables the Group
to reward the employees, the Directors and other
selected participants for their contributions to the
Group. The Scheme 2002 was expired on 23 January
2012 and the Directors consider that it is appropriate
to adopt the new scheme.

—NFFHK

E_EFERF (R

40. RKREHOFRE (&)
KRERNET 2 &IE (E)
AEFEBHBEA
FR FHREBZWEHERAL A
5,153,000 70 (ZZ&—+4 3,919,000
BIL) ZEMERFEER30%N (=ZF
—+F23% ) ZEHRHAERHE-
EREMERNRKMEHERS-
RBESR AEBEER N7 HBERKIE
HemmEHEBEATL:

2018 2017
—EBE-NE —ZE—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAETT
4,201 6,276
BIEEEME) 3,397 11,622
7,598 17,898
41. BRE

ARBN-_FE-_F— A - THBEERMN
BREAS(ZTT_F538]) R
BRARRE-Z——FRANAERTT
BRRBFAG LRBHNETRRER —
TE_FFHE DRI M BERETE
(=T ——FF8]) BBR®R-

BE_TT_F58 AQFEA MR
’EEIEJZ,EJA?IK%I%ﬁ%EE’JEES
ZEERTMEERLERE - AN =
T——FiEREEKBERBHERET
MEMKEE FAEETEEES -
BEENHEMSETLEE URG BZ%%
HASEMER - —TT_F5EIE
ZE—ZHF—AZFT=-HERm MES
REBRNFTTEI B EE -

9,&



41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The purpose of the Scheme 2002 and Scheme 2011
is to enable the Company to grant options to selected
employees to subscribe for shares of the Company
as incentives or rewards for their contributions to
the Group. The board of directors of the Company
may, at its discretion, invite any full-time or part-time
employees of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive and non-executive
directors of the Company, advisors and consultants
of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company
to take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The total number of shares of the Company
available for issue under the Scheme 2002 and
Scheme 2011 was initially 10% of the issued share
capital as at the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme.

The total number of shares of the Company available
for issue under the Scheme 2002 and Scheme 2011
(including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue from time to time.
An option may be exercised at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by the Board to
each participant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
employee should pay HK$1.00 to the Company by
way of consideration for the grant. The subscription
price for the shares of the Company will be a price to
be determined by the Board and will be the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares on the GEM as stated
on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of granting of the options; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares on the GEM as stated on the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of granting of
the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

41.

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Hz_Z—N\F+-A=1+—HLEE
B E (&)
—EECFFER T —F5EER
FEARBELARERRGRN 2 BR
ETRBERE UERBREHAEE
EH BRI BB B - KRR EFE
ARERFEARRRAEEBEAKER
Az ERE2BISERBES (BREEMAE
NAMITEFIERITES ARAK
RARMEMMEB AR Z BB RZBAAN)
BEMBERE URBARRRMD AR
ARBE T _Firg T ——F5t
2R T EITZ R BB SRR E
I EIE B 22 EITRA10% -

BE-—ET _F5rE8 kT ——F5tEl
(BEBRITE REARITERFEARRE) o]
FEITHAR B IRG B S PER21E
REIR T SHBAARRR TR EITRG
1% BRETNESSETINE S
SE 7 R ABERTE - TEEANBR
TR B BZAMAR R X 1.0078 T
RERBREZRE RAATRNZR
BESHESSET WA ORMHRN
BRERLEAEBIMEERERL
FTOIRGEMZ T & : (DRI B
RiERHEBMARIS BEBIME
HRER LFHIRGEMZ FH U FE ;
i mAE=EF RS E-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

S
41.

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

41.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
437,000,000 share options had been granted under
the Scheme 2011. The Group recognised the total
expense of approximately HK$2,526,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$9,255,000) in
relations to share options granted by the Company.

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Date of grant Vesting period
REBH FREE
Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 -
~T-—#itd “FR -
AATZA
Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 1 year
~3-—Fit “2-R 17
nA+ZH
Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 2 years
—F-— i e 2%
NA+Z=H

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Date of grant Vesting period
REBE BREH
Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 -
—E-—%5E “ERF -
NA+ZH
Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 1 year
i “B-RE 1%
AATZH
Scheme 2011 12/9/2016 2 years
—F——FitHl —ENE 2%
AATZA

The estimated fair value of the options lapsed during
the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
HK$6,737,000 which has been transferred from
share options reserve to accumulated losses (2017:
HK$2,211,000).
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B RE (&)
BHE-_Z—X"F+=-A=+—HLHF
B ARABIRE -_T——FHEKRLE
fi% #437,000,00017 ° 7~ & B 5L A~ A 7]
REMEREREE_ZT—N\F+=
A=+ AL FERRAIBELY
2,526,000/ 7T (== —+4 : 9,255,000
BIT) o

BRENRERAIFEDT

BE-Z-\F+-A=+—-BLEFE

Exercise period Exercise price

TESRE THEER

(Note)

(H3E)

HK$

BT

13/9/2016-12/9/2019 1.10

“E-RFNAT=HZE 1.1
“2-NFNA+ZH

13/9/2017-12/9/2019 1.10

“EZ—+FNAT=HE 1.10
“E-AFNA+ZH

13/9/2018-12/9/2019 1.10

“E2-N\ERAT=HE 1.1
“Z-AFAA+ZH

BE-2—tHF+-A=1T—-HLHFE

Exercise period Exercise price

TEHE THEER

HK$

BT

13/9/2016-12/9/2019 0.110

“E-XFAAT=HEZE 0.110
—E-NAEAATZH

13/9/2017-12/9/2019 0.110

“2—+FNAT=RZE 0.110
“E-NEAATZH

13/9/2018-12/9/2019 0.110

“Z-\FNAt=HZE 0.110
“Z-AFENA+TZH

REBEE=-FT—-—N\F+_A=+—AHL
FEERASUEREGMTLATENR
6,737,000 (=& —+4% :2,211,000
BIL) HE BERERBERZEZRRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Hz_Z—N\F+-A=1+—HLEE

SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 41. BR#E (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE=-ZE—-—N\E+=-A=+—HLEEE
The following table discloses the movement of the TREZESE BERNREENFANEFTA
Company’s share options held by the Directors, B 2NN T BE AR R

consultants and employees during the year:

Outstanding at Adjustment  Outstanding at
1 January Lapsed Exercised  due toshare 31 December
Grantees Option grant date 2018 during the year during the year  consolidation 2018
RZB-N\& RZB-N\%
—-A-H BRAEH +=-A=t+-AH
ERA BRERTAH i R AT REAXHK RERTTHE AR o R AT
(Note)
(BE)
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
T4 T4 T4 T4 T4
Directors 13 July 2015
= “Z-RFtA+T=H 32,375 (32,375) - - -
12 September 2016
ZE-AFNATZH 141,000 (34,000) - (96,300) 10,700
Consultants 13 July 2015
g —Z-nF+AT=H - - - - -
12 September 2016
ZE-REFNATZH 76,250 - - (68,625) 7,625
Employees 13 July 2015
&8 “Z-I¥tA+=H - - - - -
12 September 2016
“Z-R"FNATZH 154,000 (34,000) - (108,000) 12,000
Total
Fobr 403,625 (100,375) - (272,925) 30,325
Exercisable at the end
of the year
RERA{THE 30,325
Weighted average exercise
price (HK$ per share) N/A N/A
MEFHTEE (BTER) 0.124 0.143 TEA TEA 1.100
Note: MisT -
Following the Capital Reorganisation on 16 November R-E—NE+—A+NBETHRAEZELA
2018, the exercise price of the outstanding share options BRI EREZITEEXRA0IE
was adjusted from HK$0.11 to HK$1.10. The numbers TEHEEE1.108 7T o 14 R 17167 19 B8 PR hE &%
of outstanding share options were also adjusted from B 7rE A% AN E 40 303,250,000/ S E
303,250,000 shares to 30,325,000 as a result of the Capital 30,325,0000% o
Reorganisation.
299
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

41. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 41. BBIRFE (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE—_E—+tH&E+-B=1+—HLEE
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 January Lapsed Reclassified Exercised 31 December
Grantees Option grant date 2017 during the year  during the year  during the year 2017
RZZ—+F RZZ—t#
—-A—-H RER +=ZR=+-8
ERA SRR 1 B AT RERKR ENHE REARTR AT
'000 '000 '000 ‘000 '000
T TH Tip T T
Directors 13 July 2015
= “Z-RF+At+=H 51,800 (19,425) - - 32,375
12 September 2016
ZZ-R"ENATZH 187,000 - (28,000) (18,000) 141,000
Consultants 13 July 2015
Eg —E-h¥tAT=A - - - - -
12 September 2016
ZZ-R"FENATZAH 55,000 - 28,000 (6,750) 76,250
Employees 13 July 2015
E8 “Z-I¥tA+=H - - - -
12 September 2016
“Z-R"FENATZH 195,000 (35,000) - (6,000 154,000
Total
st 488,800 (54,425) - (30,750) 403,625

Exercisable at the end
of the year

WNERATE 218,500

Weighted average exercise price
(HK$ per share)

mEFHTER (BTEkR) 0.123 0.146 0.110 0.110 0.124
During the year ended 31 December 2016, HE—_Z—XREF+-_A=+—8HIFF
437,000,000 share options were granted on 12 € 437,000,00017 BB R HERS = — /R F
September 2016. The estimated fair value of the NAT-—BHERL -REE BB RE
options granted on this grant date is approximately T hEr AFE(E L 520,146,048 7T

HK$20,146,048.

300 China Eco-Farming Limited FE B X4+ EFRA A
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41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
The fair value was calculated using the Binomial
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Maturity date: 12/9/2019
Weighted average share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility

Expected life

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

Maturity date: 12/9/2019
Weighted average share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility

Expected life

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

Maturity date: 12/9/2019
Weighted average share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility

Expected life

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the previous 4 years. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Hz_Z—N\F+-A=1+—HLEE

41. BB HE (4E)
ARREWE bR B Y B
WABIEOT

NP - =2E-NAEFEHLA+=H

HNHE 49 AR (B
1T B
8 51K 15
T8 £ PR £
5 B )
78 AR .6 47 R

FHE . —E—-NFEAA+=H

P 49 AR (B
17 B 15
78 H % 1R
8 #4955 i
. R =K
TE AR 5.0 4R K

HPEZE-NEAATZ=H

INHE 19 B (B
TTIEER
EHPR
T A

5 L )
BHA B @R

exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options
are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value

of an option varies with different variables of certain SN

subjective assumptions.

HK$0.110/%8 7T
HK$0.1107% 7T
65.88%

3 years F
0.608%

Nil =

HK$0.110/% 7T
HK$0.1107 7T
65.88%

2 years F
0.608%

Nil =

HK$0.110/ 7T
HK$0.110/% 7T
65.88%

1 year
0.608%

Nil =

TEHR IR JOER A A R B IR (E R B F
SRR TIAKEE - 2B RA 2’
A R FHEREBEEREE 2 KEMF
WL AR TTRER G RITARE
ZEEELHE-

B R B R (AR 2 2
TE-SEBREATERANEDR
BRIERE BB RN
EEEEETIHBRNTALEMA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

S
42.

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a MPF for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs capped at HK$1,500
(2017: HK$1,500) per month to MPF, in which the
contribution is matched by employees.

Pursuant to the regulation of the relevant authorities
in the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group in this
country participate in respective government
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of the
eligible employees. Contribution made to the Schemes
is calculated base on the certain percentages of
the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities
of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the Schemes
is to pay the ongoing required contribution under the
Schemes.

Under the Labor Pension Act of Taiwan, Employees
may choose a scheme where the rate of contribution
by an employer should not be less than 6% of the
employees’ monthly salaries and the employees may
also voluntarily contribute up to 6% of the monthly
salaries to the provision fund account under the Labor
Pension Act of Taiwan.

The total expense recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of approximately HK$737,000 (2017:
HK$657,000) represents contribution payable to
MPF and the Schemes by the Group in respect of the
current financial year.
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43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION
OF SUBSIDIARIES

Max Joint Asia Pacific (China) Limited (“Max
Joint")

On 27 August 2018, King Noble Holdings Limited
("King Noble”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, the Company and Mr. Guo Weifu
(an independent third party) entered into a sales
and purchase agreement pursuant to which Mr.
Guo Weifu had agreed to sell and King Noble had
agreed to purchase 100 ordinary shares in Max Joint,
representing 100% of the entire issued share capital
of Max Joint, at a consideration of HK$46,500,000,
which shall be satisfied by issue of 465,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.10 per
share (the “Max Joint Acquisition”). The Max Joint
Acquisition was completed on 25 October 2018.

Max Joint is an investment holding company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability,
which holds 15% equity interest in Bengbu Higreen
Agricultural Product Logistics Company Limited*
(HFREBHFERERWRABRAF) ("Higreen
Agricultural”). Higreen Agricultural operates a large-
scale agricultural products logistics center in Bengbu
of Anhui Province, PRC for wholesale of agricultural
products, which also handles processing, packaging,
storage, direct selling, delivery, auction, e-commerce,
food safety testing and central settlement.

43,

RE MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-T—\F+-A=+—RILFE

ERWENMBARWEEE
BEDA(HE)BRAA ([ERE])

W =—Z— )\"F/\ A —++H 'King Noble
Holdings Limited ([King Noble ] * &2
A—EEAE2ENBLAR) AR
REMERGEE (BYE=ZR)FIVEE
ek BRI - EP R £ B R E & kKing
Noble2 [F] & 15 B 100/ B [£ 1) Z @ -
HEREE2IEEITRAL100%
K18 /746,500,000 JT + H # A B 17
465,000,0000% 74~ A &) & % E {B0.1078
TZEBRR ARG ([BRERKES
B BEREFEEN_T—/\F+
AZ+HABREK-

BES—RNEBEMA L WREER
BERAR HEHEEEERERYR
BERAR(BEERER])HI15%MK
B-BEERERNTBELZHE HERL
E—EARLRERMATOAETRE
mEVHEEE - HNEIENT B 2
HEERHEHE XN HE BEFEK Rm
RERARPRESR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

43. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION 43, ZBWEKEBASIWBSE (&)
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Max Joint Asia Pacific (China) Limited (“Max BRETA(PE)EBREAR (TEE])
Joint”) (continued) (&)
The assets acquired and liabilities assumed did not PrUNBEEE RFTEAEA BT TEKETS
constitute a business combination as defined in B REER EIRE LS HTRATEN
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations and therefore, the ERAH - EHI WEEBE/EAEE
acquisition was accounted for as assets acquisition. U B A BE o
The assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the PURE HEIPT NS B E M PTAIEa &N
date of acquisition as follows: T
HK$'000
FAT
Equity instruments at fair value through other BEATESFAHMEEKES 2
comprehensive income o T A 30,138
Other receivables H b fE UK 3
Bank balances and cash IR1T4 ﬁ?&fﬁi 4
Trade and other payables B 5 & E A FE A /I8 (7,825)
Fair value of net assets acquired FrE#EE 2 A FE 22,320
Total consideration satisfied by: BRBRIATES:
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration shares (Note) RERMD (K1) 22,320
Note: MisE -
The fair value of the 465,000,000 ordinary shares of the N A §]465,000,000 % X 38 A% 1 FA 5 Uk B
Company, determined using the published price available at A EEEHIRERETZATLEAS
the date of the acquisition, amounted to HK$22,320,000. 22,320,000 7T °
304 China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION 43, ZBWEKBASIWEBSE (&)
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Max Joint Asia Pacific (China) Limited (“Max BREDA(RPE)EBREAR (TERE])
Joint”) (continued) (&)
Net cash inflow on acquisition of Max Joint BRI INBEEIR IS AR
Acquisition:
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration RERE -
Less: Bank balances and cash acquired B RITEER R FTINEIR & 4
4
Details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s T HHEBEHAANATB#H AT — N\F
announcements dated 27 August 2018 and 25 NAZ++EHAER=ZZE—N\F+A=-+A
October 2018. HzR%Ee
China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

S
44.

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

China AF Corporate Finance Limited (“Formerly
known as Royal Excalibur Corporate Finance
Limited”) (“CAFCF")

On 5 September 2017, Award Fortune Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, the
Company and Mr. Chan Ka Leung Kevin (an
independent third party) entered into a sales and
purchase agreement pursuant to which Mr. Chan Ka
Leung Kevin had agreed to sell and Award Fortune
Limited had agreed to purchase 700,000 ordinary
shares in CAFCF, representing 70% of the entire
issued share capital of CAFCF, at a consideration of
HK$1,700,000 which was paid during the year ended
31 December 2016 and included in deposits as at 31
December 2016.

This acquisition has been accounted for using the
acquisition method. The amount of goodwill arising
as a result of the acquisition was approximately
HK$775,000.

CAFCF is principally engaged in provision of financial
services. The Group has acquired CAFCF so as to
expand to this new market segment.

Consideration transferred:
Cash

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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=1)

N—_E—tFNLARB - ARAEE
Bt /A B]Award Fortune Limited 24N 22
AERRRAEE(—RBBILE=F7)FT
VEEBZ BURRXRAELEERE
& & - MAward Fortune Limited2 & &
41,700,000/ 7T (X & 1) 1 Bl 2 E 88 A
700,000 & @A - P ERER BB %
TIRAT0%  HREEZT—RF+=
A=+—BLFEINER=ZZ—XRF
TZA=F+—HitARS-

WEEERRBEETEEE AW
BmELMNEESFEL Q775000787
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HK$'000
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44,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
China AF Corporate Finance Limited (“Formerly
known as Royal Excalibur Corporate Finance
Limited”) (“CAFCF") (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE
a8, WESHIB AT ()
TEREVHRERARAR (AIBAE
RREVMHEEBERAAE) ([FEE
=1) (&)
B R ENWE B EIRERE A BRI & E

of CAFCF recognised as at the date of acquisition were LEERAFEENT:
as follows:

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
W s R R SR Y
AN¥E
HK$'000
FET
Plant and equipment 5= K 5% 4
Trade and other receivables B 5 ME W GRIE 1,195
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 363
Income tax payable JE 1~ PSR (140)
Trade and other payables B MEMENFRIE (100)
Net assets BEFHE 1,322

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4L EFRA 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

44. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 44. WEMHEB LT (&)
China AF Corporate Finance Limited (“Formerly hEHECHEERERAE (AIBAE
known as Royal Excalibur Corporate Finance REEVMBRERAERLAR) ([HEE
Limited”) (“CAFCF”) (continued) =1 (&)
The fair value of trade and other receivables at the RIWERS B REMERZIEY A
date of acquisition amounted to approximately SEE X A1,195,00058 7T c AU EE B H
HK$1,195,000. The gross contractual amounts of ZEQWEEZE S L EMEWRIENZ
those trade and other receivables acquired amounted A S EEL A1,195,0007% 7T o R UEE A
to approximately HK$1,195,000 at the date of H - m R E A 4R e R
acquisition. No uncollectible contractual cash flows
were expected at the acquisition date.
HK$'000
THETT
Goodwill arising on acquisition: W EEREE:
Consideration transferred EEERE 1,700
Plus: non-controlling interests o EPERR IR R R A
(30% in CAFCF) (RPBEREEF30%) 397
Less: net assets acquired W PTUER A (1,322)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEEENEE 775

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is
expected to be taxable for tax purposes.

The non-controlling interest in CAFCF recognised at
acquisition date was measured by their proportionate
share of net assets acquired.

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
China AF Corporate Finance Limited (“Formerly
known as Royal Excalibur Corporate Finance
Limited”) (“CAFCF") (continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition because the cost
of combination included a control premium. In
addition, the consideration paid for the combination
effectively included amounts in relation to the benefits
of expected synergies, revenue growth and future
market development of CAFCF. These benefits were
not recognised separately from goodwill because they
did not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets.

Net cash inflow on acquisition of CAFCF
Cash consideration
Less: Bank balances and cash acquired

Included in the loss for the year was profit of
approximately HK$69,000 attributable to the
additional business generated by CAFCF. Revenue
for the year includes approximately HK$709,000
generated from CAFCF.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2017, total revenue of the Group for the year would
have been approximately HK$66,693,000, and
loss for the year would have been approximately
HK$96,527,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 January 2017, nor is
it intended to be a projection of future results.

RE MR
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE
44, WEHMEBLF (&)
TEREVHRERARAR (AIBAE
RREVMHEEBERAAE) ([FEE
=1) (&)
HEREWBTELDN AR
IR E - N BREHNHRE
B 61 B B R E TR AR 15 A s
WA R RARKRTISERBENSE-
ZEMR W AREFEDHER BET
RArBRELEENERRLE

HK$'000
FHE T

WEEP B2 EMIRE R AT
HeRE -
o IRITE R R TN EEIR & 363
363

FEBERIETRE GRS EBIE
A B #969,0008 TTiE ) - FEE WS B3
AR B 1 BT E A RV 49709,000/8 7T °

WEBER —_ET—tF—A—HZEK"
Bl AN 55 B 4 5 48 Wt 25 ) 566,693,000/%5
7T MEEE1E4/596,527,00078 7T « 1
EERTEHSPRAR BT —EhAE
WHEEER -_T—+tF—A—HZEXMm
REBERERETR W RSEHEE
IS MEBEARRESLE ZTEA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

S
45.

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 29 November 2018, the Group disposed of the
entire issued share capital of its indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary — Shenzhen City Jintaiyuan Investment
Development Company Limited* (“Shenzhen City
Jintaiyuan”), at cash consideration of RMB21,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$23,635,000). The
disposal was completed on 29 November 2018.
Shenzhen City Jintaiyuan is an investment holding
company which holds 15% equity interest in Higreen
Agricultural.

Analysis of asset and liabilities over which control was
lost:

Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Other receivables HAth & YR IR
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREIRE
Other payables H i & 1~ 5RIA
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE
Cash received ERE

Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE
Gain on disposal & W

* English name for identification only
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& Bt B 2 A
RZZE—-NF+—A=Z+hB ~EE
HEEMEZENBAR —FIIMmEH
EiE#ERARAA (DFRYMERE])
ZEHEBRTREA REREHVAAR
#21,000,0007T (#8557 4923,635,000
B HEER=_Z—NF+—A
—tHhBEK - FYTEEE AR
BERAR HBEEEEEEREMISY%
AR HE -

RRZGIRZEERBEDT:

HK$'000
TET

e TR A S A2 E RS K0S TR

30,221
2
2

(7,655)

22,570

HK$'000
TAT

23,635
(22,570)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued) 45, HEMB AT (&)
HK$'000
FHET
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: PEEEMBRESRAFRE:
Cash consideration received (Note) EWIRERE (W) 15,757
Less: bank balance and cash disposed of B RITTEBRTHERS )
15,755
Note: RMB14,000,000 (equivalent to approximately Mz : AR ®14,000,000T (FEERLY
HK$15,757,000) has been received during the 15,757,000 T) E R E 2 =T — N\
year ended 31 December 2018. The final payment E+-_A=+—HI-FEEKH- &
of RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to approximately 1 AF A R #7,000,0007T (FBE R
HK$7,970,000) (Note 24(a)) has been included in 7,970,000/ 7T) (MiEE24(a)) B EFA
other receivables and to be settled by 13 June 2019. HiEWZBI RN —_E—LENA
+=HA&EE-
Detail of the transaction are set out in the Company's RHNHBHRALRFBRBHA-ZZT—N
announcements dated 29 November 2018 and 14 F+—AZtTARAKRZZE-—N\F+=A

December 2018. +IBZ A e
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_ZT-\F+-A=+—HIEFE
46. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(a) YIHE Group
The contingent consideration arrangement has
the following requirements:

()

(ii)

(iii)

the Group will allot and issue the
118,320,000 Company’s shares to
Hexin if the net profit of YIHE Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016
is higher than HK$7,000,000 or if the
net profit of the YIHE Group is less than
HK$7,000,000, the shares to be allotted
and issued will be reduced on a pro-rata
basis. No allotment and issuance will
take place if the YIHE Group suffers loss
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

the Group will allot and issue the
118,320,000 Company's shares to Hexin
if the net profit of the YIHE Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017 is
higher than HK$7,000,000 or if the net
profit of the YIHE Group is less than
HK$7,000,000, the shares to be allotted
and issued will be reduced on a pro-rata
basis. No allotment and issuance will
take place if the YIHE Group suffers loss
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

the Group will allot and issue the
118,320,000 Company's shares to Hexin
if the net profit of the YIHE Group for
the year ended 31 December 2016,
31 December 2017 and 31 December
2018 respectively is higher than
HK$7,000,000 or if the net profit of the
YIHE Group is less than HK$7,000,000,
the shares to be allotted and issued
will be reduced on a pro-rata basis. No
allotment and issuance will take place if
the YIHE Group suffers loss for the year
ended 31 December 2018.
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(a) EE&KH
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(continued)

(a)

(b)

YIHE Group (continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of
contingent consideration arrangement of
approximately HK$1,839,000 which was
estimated by the income approach. The fair
value estimates are based on the volatility of
the Company’s shares ranged from 36.8%
to 41.3% and assumed that the YIHE Group
has reached the net profit of less than
HK$7,000,000 for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018
respectively. This is classified as a level 3 fair
value measurement. As at 31 December
2017, due to the ceasation of business,
the contingent consideration payable was
not fulfilled and the respective contingent
consideration payable of approximately
HK$1,839,000 was written back and
recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income during the year ended 31 December
2017.

Inno-Bag Limited
The contingent consideration arrangement has
the following requirements:

(i) the Group will allot and issue the
6,200,000 Company's shares to the
Vendor if the profit after tax of Inno-Bag
Limited for the year ended 31 March
2017 is higher than HK$1,200,000 or if
the profit after tax of Inno-Bag Limited
is less than HK$1,200,000, the shares to
be allotted and issued will be reduced
on a pro-rata basis. No allotment and
issuance will take place if Inno-Bag
Limited suffers loss for the year ended
31 March 2017.

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018

H=E

—T-N\F+A=T—HILFE

46. BEANIAKE (&)

(a)

(b)

HEEE (&)
RZZE-—RFT+HA=+—8"
IARAREBELZHNAFELD A
1,839,000/ 7T+ Jy LAUE A VA 1l
e AFEMETTIEREARFR
BN F36.8%F41.3% ) WEH
BEAEBREE_T— X%
T—+tFERZF-NEF+=
AZ+—BLHZ=ZAFEZFHN
45 F) > 747,000,000 7T © Ut &
PHEARE=-MANAFEFTE-
RZE—+tF+HA=+—8"
HREBKEIL  BRIARER
BEMN HEEMTIARELD
1,839,000 LEREEZE T —+
F+ZA=Z+—HUEFERDW
RéreEREEMEERZER P
R o

HERRREXZERQF
HARRELHEBEATHRE:

(i) MK EBRREZEEBRA
ARBEZZT—+tF=A
=t+—HLEFEZKRH
1% & F & 71,200,000
T ASE KB KRBT
6,200,000f8 AR B f& (9 T
B RZMEKEBRIRE
TEBRARZHREE R
# 4>$1,200,0007% 7t + A
S TEERETIRMNE
12 bE 51 38 ORK o fid A B IR R
REOEFRABIREE
T—+F=A=+—HIE
FERXEBE AREER
BT T T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
(continued)

46.

(b)

Inno-Bag Limited (continued)

(i) the Group will allot and issue the
6,200,000 Company's shares to the
Vendor if the profit after tax of Inno-Bag
Limited for the year ended 31 March
2018 is higher than HK$1,200,000 or if
the profit after tax of Inno-Bag Limited
is less than HK$1,200,000, the shares to
be allotted and issued will be reduced
on a pro-rata basis. No allotment and
issuance will take place if Inno-Bag
Limited suffers loss for the year ended
31 March 2018.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of
the contingent consideration arrangement of
approximately HK$512,000 was estimated
by applying the income approach. The fair
value estimates are based on the volatility of
the Company's shares ranged from 45.8% to
46.1% and assumed that Inno-Bag Limited
has reached the profit after tax of less than
HK$1,200,000 for each of the two years ended
31 March 2017 and 2018 respectively. This is
classified as a level 3 fair value measurement.

For the contingent consideration of Inno-Bag
Limited, as of 31 December 2017, there was
no fair value change recognised in profit or
loss. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of contingent consideration payable is
approximately HK$512,000.

The contingent consideration payable was
not fulfilled and the respective contingent
consideration payable of approximately
HK$301,000 (2017: HK$103,000) was written
back and recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss and other comprehensive income.

Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

46.

EARAKRE (&)

(b)

RERRIVOCEERQT (&)

(i) THKERRXGEBRA
AREBE—_Z—N\E=A
=+ —HEFEZBRH
1% %% ) = 51,200,000%
T AN G E G B B N B AT
6,200,000 A&~ &1 f% 10 F
BEH RZMKEBIRIRE
TEBERRARZHBRIE R
F 781,200,000 7T - &Il
BFERBERETZRNE
1% L ) F8 R o 8 K 23R R
ROERRARNEE
T-—N\F=ZA=1+—HIt
FERZEE BIREE R
BT T T

RZE—tF+=ZA=+—
H AR ELHNRFELD
512,000 T DR AW AE ERT o
DN EGETDERERRBRRMDN
F45.8% Z46.1% 8 )% 18 I R =%
RERRRCEBRATREE
TE—+ERE—NEFE=A
= t+t—HALEMEFESFHRRM
1%5% F L 121,200,000 Tt © Itk 1
PERE=RINATFEFTE-

RRERRRBREEBER AN
HZAREMS BEZZE—LF
+-A=+—H8 BENIBRE
ROAFEEEYH N_T—tF
+—A=Z+—H8 EANRARE
R BR B 49 A512,000/8 7T ©

JENSAREBAREEN mMAHE
JEF S SARIE #9301,00058 7 ( —
T —+ 4 :103,000/ 7T) & & [
PR A R REMEE ST
TR e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

46. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE 46. ENHIAKE (E)

(continued)

(b)  Inno-Bag Limited (continued) (b) RERRIDLEFRQT (F)
Movement of the contingent consideration N-E—NEFEF—_ZE—+F+—
payable for 31 December 2018 and 2017 are B=+—BrEMSAREE
as below: m

Inno-Bag
YIHE Group imited Total
RERRE
HEEE (EERAT @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF5—-H—H 1,839 1,137 2,976
Fair value changes NEEED (1,839) (103) (1,942)
Issue of shares upon settlement HEREITRND
(Note 37(c)) (M#37(0) - (522) (522)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+_H
=+—H - 512 512
Fair value changes NEEES - (152) (152)
Issue of shares upon settlement HEEREETRGD
(Note 37(c)) (P EE37(0) - (360) (360)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-NF
+=ZA=+-H - = -
China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA 315
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018

S
47.

T N\Ft+A=1T—HILFE

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN A
SUBSIDIARY

Disposal of interest in a subsidiary without loss
of control

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement in
regarding to the disposal of 100% equity interest in a
subsidiary, Glory Delights Investment Limited (“Glory
Delights”) to a non-wholly owned subsidiary, Wider
Profit Investment Limited with nil consideration. The
transaction was completed on 10 April 2017. This
resulted in a decrease in the Group's equity interest
in Glory Delights from 100% to 50%. Approximately
HK$764,000 representing the amounts of the interest
disposed of Glory Delights was recognised in other
reserve.

A schedule of the effect of disposal of interest is in a
subsidiary without loss of control is as follow:

Carrying amount of the interest disposed
Less: disposal interest

Difference recognised in other reserves
within equity

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

47.

SRS MR E (E
R e R

MEBARERESE
HENE QR RS T K LEHE

HE-_ZT—+tF+-A=1+—RHLF
E AEEREE—BHNBARERAR
BEBRAF ([E8F]1)100%KETIEE
BEWNBARIEEIEEBRAGELER
E REBEAT -ZXHIR_T—+tF
A+ RN FEASEEREANRE
F100% [ & £50% ° 49764,0007% T
I ERA RN HEMmEERERZ

TR

HENNSFE
REMBFER T

B B R A AR R AR

2017
—EF—+F
HK$'000
FET

(1,528)
764

EREDANE MR EREZR

(764)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated (a)
financial statements, the Group has entered

into the following significant transactions with

related parties during the year:

Name of company

AR

Au Yeung Po Leung (Note a)
iz E R (MizEa)

Beijing HX (Note b)
ItREE (MiEb)

Bright Kingdom International
Limited (Note ¢)
EEEBEARLIF (MaEc)

Chan Kee Holdings Limited
(“Chan Kee") (Note d)

PREEEEBR AT ([FR])
(BftzEd)

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

48. BEALRS

BRERE B mERMETEEIN K
SEFANEBEEALTIILATE
AR5 :
Nature of transaction 2018 2017
REME —E-N§F —Z=T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Loan interest income received - (192)
EREFA B WA
Loan interest income received (4,478) (1,552)
EREFA B WA
Consultancy fee paid
600 600
ENEREA
Purchases of grocery food
products 3,769 4,816
EEREHRMm
Deposit paid 333 688
BEfNEE
Consultancy fee paid 318 318
ETERER
Interest income (282) (358)

FEHA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 48. BEALTXRZ (&)
(a)  (continued) (@) (&)
Notes: BeE:
(a) Au Yeung Po Leung had been a director of (a) BSEREE_E—+tFh
the Company until 30 September 2017. R=THE&REANRES-
(b) Beijing HX is an associate of the Group. (b) LtREEAANEB 2HEA
+.
(c) Bright Kingdom International Limited is (© ERERERAFEARRA
connected with a director of the Company. EEHEE-
(d) On 4 February 2016, Maxford Wealth (d) R-ZE—XRF-_A/WIAH-

Limited ("Maxford Wealth”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, formed an entity
named Right Ocean Asia Limited (“Right
Ocean”) with an independent third party, Ms.
Yoo (the spouse of Mr. Chan), and which Mr.
Chan is the substantial shareholder of Chan
Kee. Pursuant to the agreement entered into
by Right Ocean and Mr. Chan, Ms. Yoo and
Mr. Chan shall procure Chan Kee to enter
into the trademark licence agreement and
the sole distributorship agreement with Right
Ocean, for the sole and exclusive sale and
distribution of the grocery food products and
right to use the trademark granted by Chan
Kee at nil consideration within Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan.

Upon the formation of Right Ocean, the
equity of Right Ocean is held as to 51%
by Maxford Wealth and 49% by Ms. Yoo.
Therefore, Right Ocean became a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a
shareholder loan agreement was entered into
between Maxford Wealth and Right Ocean,
pursuant to which Maxford Wealth has
agreed to lend a loan of HK$11,000,000 to
Right Ocean, with a fixed interest rate of 5%
per annum and repayable on demand.

Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

Maxford Wealth Limited
([Maxford Wealth ]) (A2
AE2EMBAR)BBILE
ZhHeE T (REEZERB)
(REEARRTHEZRR)
RILEBBAEEESEMNERR
A (TEUVE M ER R
BRI a1
4= R [BR A ZE R {55 R B0 B K
BRI BTG R E
—HHEEREARETRER
BB RFAREEE-RER
HERDHEEHRRM A E
FRABREAREOEE-

FEKEEE BB EmA
Maxford Wealth# H551% &
RETZE1#5H49% - ALt B/
BRAARRNTIEZERBR
S8

BE-_Z—-—~"F+=A
=+ —H1EFE  Maxford
Wealth£2 58 5] 37 ik R B 5K
5 &% * #% Itk Maxford Wealth
EREMEEGRHER
11,000,000/ 7T + &5 F 7| &
5% BEREKEE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)
Notes: (continued)
(d) (continued)

Another loan agreement was entered
into between Right Ocean and Chan Kee,
pursuant to which Right Ocean has agreed
to lend a loan of HK$6,000,000 to Chan
Kee, with Mr, Chan’s personal guarantee,
a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum,
repayable within 36 months after the date of
drawdown for business operation. Details are
disclosed in Note 25.

Details are set out in the announcement
of the Company’s announcement dated 4
February 2016.

Compensation of key management
personnel
The remuneration of Directors and other

e B BRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

48. BEALXRZ (&)

(@) (&)
MizE: ()
(d) (&)

BSERREIYR —HER
e BULEUEE R E R
(LABREEMBEAER) B
— % B 36,000,000 7T *
FEFEMEET%  BARIRI
EE % 2 B #i1&361E A
RIEE - BRI B E BRI
25 o

EZHBEARARFRAHR
ZE-RFZAMBZ DM

(b) FEEEASHMH

FARRREENTIZEEEH

members of key management during the year B 2 H BT
was as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Short-term benefits 55 HR 4B A 6,324 6,433
Share-based payments LARR 17 73 B R AN 3R 614 4,653
Post-employment benefits e A ER1E R T 85 340
7,023 11,426

The remuneration of the Directors and other
members of key management is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

EERTIE2EEECHMKEZ
HINmFINE B S REMERA
ITHRBALTHBEMETE -

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE £ EER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBEWRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Non-current asset
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables
Amounts due from
subsidiaries
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Convertible bonds

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

RBEE
Ho Al & YK IR
JEUS M B 1 B 5R0R

RITESR LIRS

RBEE
Hh FE 1 3R
FEASS B I8 2 A 5R0R
AIAE 2R

RBEEFE
EERME
EXRREE
&N
ff# 178

HrER

49,

AR BT R

2018

—E2-N\F

Note HK$'000
B 7 THET

135

302

355,992
54

356,348

24,090
41,344

65,434

290,914

291,049

7,771
(a) 283,278

291,049

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
FHE T

135

331

270,638
374

271,343

27,409
43,978
21,687

93,074

178,269

178,404

122,071
56,333

178,404



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4L EFRA 7
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49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 49. AN TIBERRE (FE)
COMPANY (continued)
(a) Reserves (a) 4
Equity
component
Share  of convertible  Share options Special Other Accumulated
premium bonds reserve reserve reserve losses Total
THRBES
RER RS2 BRERR HRIRE Hitfat Byl EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tix FiEn TiEn Tix Fign TiEn Tix
(Note 35)
(Fit3E35)
At 1 January 2017 R=F—+5-A-8 398,019 12,847 13,168 28,769 - (389,362) 63,441
Loss for the year, representing ~ AFEFE MAREE
total comprehensive expense EMIBE
for the year - - - - - (25,456) (25,456)
Issue of shares upon conversion S AT IRE H & B TR (D
of convertible bonds (M3#37)
(Note 37(a)) 13,795 (4,194) - - - - 9,601
Expiration of conversion option AT AMREH KM
of convertible bonds - (2,954) - - - - (2,954)
Issue of shares upon settlement & E AR BEETRY
of contingent consideration (H#370)
(Note 37(c)) 442 - - - - - 442
Exercise of share options T RERRE (M37(0))
(Note 37(b)) 4,153 - (1,385) - - - 2,768
Recognition of equity-settled BANEREERARD A
share based payments EREOR R (K1)
(Note 41) - - 9,255 - - - 9,255
Change in ownership interestin -~ R ER AN EBEEHHE
a subsidiary that do not result N BUK KL (F5E47)
in loss of control (Note 47) - - - - (764) - (764)
Share option lapsed RERBRER (Hi41)
during the year (Note 41) - - (2,211) - - 2211 -
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t%+=-A=1+-H 416,409 5,699 18,827 28,769 (764) (412,607) 56,333
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-\¥-A-H 416,409 5,699 18,827 28,769 (764) (412,607) 56,333
Loss for the year, representing ~ AFEBE BAFEE
total comprehensive expense bt
for the year - - - - = (9.470) (9,470)
Placing of new shares B 3k (F3237(d))
(Note 37(d)) 75,600 - - - - - 75,600
Placing expenses in relation o BRIEITRAEORER
the issuance of shares (2,691) - - - - = (2,691)
Issue of shares upon settlement & B HARBEETRE
of contingent consideration (BI#37(0)
(Note 37(c)) 305 o o = - _ 305
Expiration of conversion option A R (& # A & 2 H
of convertible bonds - (5,699) - - - 5,699 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary R B F (F5E44)
(Note 44) 13,020 - - - - - 13,020
Recognition of equity-settled WA EREEHRH R
share based payments (Bizka1)
(Note 41) - - 2,526 - - - 2,526
Share option lapsed during the 9B K SUBRRRZ (F13E41)
year (Note 41) - - (6,737) - - 6,737 -
Capital reorganisation AREM (H13E37()
(Note 37(f)) (502,643) - - - - 650,298 147,655
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E¥+=A=1+-H - - 14,616 28,769 (764) 240,657 283,278
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_ZT-\&+-_A=+—HIFE
PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

50.

Name of subsidiary

b Pkt

Kama Business Holdings Limited
Kama Business Holdings Limited

Anson Development Limited
EERRARAR

Hoi Fan Investment Limited

HAREEERAR
Goodlink Corporation Limited
EEERAA

Grand Protection Holdings Li'mited

ERERERLR

Kaley Development Limited
FERRARAA

Cyberpress Limited
FHERAA

Wide Graceful Holdings Limited
Wide Graceful Holdings Limited

Joy Gold Trading Enterprises Limited
Joy Gold Trading Enterprises Limited

Ever Chance Management Limited
EEERARAR

King Health Trading Limited
REESERAR

Ease Chance Investment Limited

EEREARAR

Sky Success International Investments
Limited

REEABREARLT

Skyline Best Limited
REEBRA

Legal form
of entity
1337

Limited liability
BREELT

Limited liabilty
BRERAR

Limited liabilty
BREELA

Limited liability
BREELA

Limited liability
BRELLT

Limited liabilty
BREELA

Limited liability
BREELA

Limited liability
BREELT

Limited liability
BREELA

Limited liability
BREELA

Limited liability
BREELT

Limited liability
BRELLT
Limited liabilty
BREELT

Limited liabilty
BREELA

Place of
incorporation/
operations

HRAL/ ERhE

B
RERIHS

Hong Kong
35

BV
RERAES

Hong Kong
(3

B
RERIHS

BV
RERAES

Hong Kong
(3

BV
RERIHS

BV
RERAES

Hong Kong
(3

Hong Kong
3

Hong Kong
3
Hong Kong
3

BV
RERAES

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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Paid-up/issued
registered capital

47/ BROZRRE

Ordinary shares of US$1
(E3a 313

Ordinary shares of
HK$100
100872 &Rk

Ordinary shares of US§ 1
1ETERR

Ordinary shares of HK$1
BT ERR

Ordinary share of US$1
[E3a 313

Ordinary share of US§1
1ETERR

Ordinary shares of
HK$100
100%72 S8l

Ordinary shares of US$1
1ZT2 SR

Ordinary shares of US§1
1ETERR

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000
10000702 £8i%

Ordinary shares of HK$1
BT BBk

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000
1000072 & B

Ordinary shares of
HK$100
100872 E Rk

Ordinary share of US§1
1ETERR

50. BB AFE
Proportion of ownership interest
held by the Company
ARRRERARERRLA
Directly Indirectly
E# B

2018 2017 2018 2017
Z8-N\F ZF-tE —8-N\F i 3
100% 100% - -
100% 100% - -
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
100% 100% - -
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
100% 100% - -
100% 100% - -
- = 100% 100%
- = 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
100% 100% - -

Principal Activities

IERE

Investment holding

REBR
Inactive
2K

Inactive

EXH
One-stop value
chain services

~LABEERH

Investment holding

Inactive

EXH
Inactive
EXH

Securities holding

AHRE

Investment holding

RERR
Group administration
EFER

AEBR

Trading of consumables

HEmES
Investment holding
Investment holding

Investment holding

RARK



50.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

HELREB

Wise Success Holdings Limited

Wise Success Holdings Limited

King Noble Holdings Limited

King Noble Holdings Limited

Max Joint (Note ¢)

BETA (PE)ERAR (Hite)

Shenzhen City Chengqj Enterprise
Consultancy Management
Company Limited (note e and h)

RTERLERHER
BRAR (HiteRh)

Shenzhen City Jintaiyuan Investment
Development Company Limitec*
(Notes e and f)

AT REREERERAA
(IfteRt)

Fine Champion Holdings Limited

Fine Champion Holdings Limited

On Good Investment Limited

BRREERAR

Glory Delights Investment Limited

RAREERAA

Total Famous Investment Limited

2RREBRAA

All Ready Holdings Limited
All Ready Holdings Limited

Luster Shine Limited
Luster Shine Limited

Legal form
of entity
[1-¥¥37%4

Limited liability
BREALA
Limited liability
BREALA
Limited liability
BREALA

Limited liability

Limited liability
BRARLT

Limited liability
BRERLA

Place of
incorporation/
operations

HRAL/ ER0E

BV
RERAEE
BV
RERAEE
HK

BB

PRC

e

PRC

e

BV
RERABE
HK

BE

HK

BE

HK

BE

BV
RERIHS

BV
RERAES

* English name for identification only

Paid-up/issued
registered capital

4R/BROZRRE

Ordinary share of
550,000
50,0007 £ R

Ordinary share of
550,000
50,0007 £ R

Ordinary share of
HK$100
100%72 S8l

Paid up capital of
RMB10,000,000

AR#1000000072
i e

Ordinary share of
550,000
50,000% 72 ERR

Ordinary share of
HK$10,000
10,0007 2 £8MR

Ordinary share of
HK$10,000
10,0007 2 S8R

Ordinary share of
HK$10,000
10,0007 2 £8M

Ordinary shares of US$1
ETLERR

Ordinary shares of US§1
1ET ERR

50. FMIBRFFE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

held by the Company
ARARERERELS
Directly Indirectly
E# B

2018 2017 2018 2017
Z8-0\F ZE4E Z8-0\F ZF-tE
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% -
- - 100% -
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%

100% 100% -

100% 100% =

Principal Activities

IERE

Investment holding
RERR
Investment holding
RERR
Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

REBR

Investment holding

REBR

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

REBR

Investment holding

RARRK

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4L EFRA 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_ZT-\&+-_A=+—HIFE
50.  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Legal form
Name of subsidiary of entity
WEAEAE EREENA
Skyline Top Limited Limited liability
REEERAF BRERAR
(Great Hero Global Limited Limited liabilty
ERERERAR BREELA

Global Brands Management Limited Limited liability

RRRHRERERAA BREELA
Splendor Health Holdings Limited Limited liability
YRERERLA ARERAR
Konson Global Investment Limited Limited liabilty
RERRREABRAA ARERAR
Union World International Group Limited liabilty
Holdings Limited
BHNERARERAA ARERAR
Top Yield Properties Limited Limited liabilty
HRE$ERAA BREELA

ERBNRESERAAGHART  Limited liabity

o

BARNREXARATALART  ARRELT

BRARRARRAA Limited liabity
BRARRARRAA BRERAT

BERERN (RN ERAA Limited liability

EERERH (R ERAT BREELR

RITEEAEHHERERDAT  Limited labilty
(Formerly known as JBE R &3
(RINERLRA)
MITEAEHNERERAR  AREELR
(MRABERERA ()
BRAR)

Place of
incorporation/
operations

HRAL/ ER0E

BV
RERIHS

BV
RERAES

Hong Kong
3

BV
RERIHS

BV
AERLES
Hong Kong
3

Hong Kong
3

Taiwan

T
=0}

PRC

Gk

PRC

TE

PRC

ke

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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Paid-up/issued
registered capital

47/ BROZRRE

Ordinary shares of US$1
1ZT2 SR

Ordinary shares of US§1
1ETERR

Ordinary shares of
HK$500,000
500,000 T2 £

Ordinary shares of US$1
1ZT2 SR

Ordinary shares of
US§50,000
50000572 Lk

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000
10,000%72 & B

Ordinary shares of HK$1
1R ERR

Ordinary shares of
NTD1,000,000
#2%1,000,000T2
Lk

Paid up capital of
RMB50,000,000
ARE50,0000007.2
HRER

Paid up capital of
RMB3,283,453
AR¥3,28345312
YRER

Paid up capital of
RMB100,000

ARE10000072
HRAR

50. MtEARIFE (&)
Proportion of ownership interest
held by the Company
ARRERAERRLA
Directly Indirectly
E# B
2018 2017 2018 2017
Z8-N\F i 3 —8-N\F ZE4E
100% 100% - -
100% 100% - -
- - 51% 51%
100% 100% - -
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- = 100% 100%
- - 50% 50%

Principal Activities

IERE

Investment holding

RARR

Investment holding

RERR
Inactive
EXH

Investment holding

REBR
Investment holding
REBR
Investment holding
REBR

Investment holding

RERR
Property holding

nEnE

Property holding

RENE

Investment holding

RARK

Property holding (Note b)

wEhE (Mith)



50.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

HELREB

RERERH (R ARAT
RERERH (R ARAT

ERXTEHBRERNERAT

RERREEMRREROBRAA

Delightful Hope Limited
FHERAR

China Smart Asia Limited

EATHERAR

Shenzhen Shengshi Fugiang
Technology Co., Ltd*

RmEEEEHRARDA

Main Supreme Limited

#EERAA
China AF Financial Limited
HEEENBARLR

Harmony Alliance Holdings Limited
Harmony Alliance Holdings Limited

Kingtop Asia Investment Limited

BEREERAR
Glory Luck Holdings Limited
HEEEARAR

Gold Goal International Limited
Gold Goal International Limited

Success Royal Investment Limited

EXREARAR

Legal form
of entity
[1-¥¥37%4

Limited liability

BREELR

Limited liability

BRELLA

Limited liability
BREELA

Limited liability
BREELA

Limited liability
BREELA

Limited liability
BREELA

Limited liability
BREFLA

Limited liability
BRAELT

Limited liability
BREFLA

Limited liability
BREFLA

Limited liability
BRAELT

Limited liability
BREELA

Place of

incorporation/

operations

HRAL/ ER0E

PRC

Gl

Taiwan

o>

BV
RERAEE

HK
BE

PRC
ke

BV
RERAEE

HK
BE

BV
RERIHS

HK
BE

HK
BE

BV
RERIHS

HK
EE

*  English name for identification only

Paid-up/issued
registered capital

4R/BROZRRE

Paid up capital of
RMB100,000

AR 10000072
HRER

Ordinary shares of
NTD7,230,000
Ha87.30000m2

Ordinary share of
Us$100
100572 £i8i

Ordinary shares of HK$ 1
BT ERR

Ordinary share of
595,000,000
5,000,000% 2 Bk

Ordinary shares of US§ 1
1ETERR

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000
10,0007 2 £8MR
Ordinary shares of US$1
ETLERR
Ordinary shares of HK$1
&2 SRk

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000
10,0007 2 S8R

Ordinary shares of US$1
ETLERR

Ordinary shares of HK$1
1R ERR

50. FMIBRFFE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

held by the Company
ARARERERELS
Directly Indirectly
E# B

2018 2017 2018 2017
Z8-0\F i 3 Z8-0\F ZF-tE
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- - 50% 50%
- - 50% 50%
- - 50% 50%
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
100% 100% - -
- - 100% 100%
- - 51% 51%
100% 100% - -
- - 100% 100%

Principal Activities

IERE

Inactive

XK

Trading of agricultural
products

BERRA

Investment holding (Note ¢)

RERR (M)

Investment holding (Note ¢)

RERR (M)
Property holding (Note ¢)
FEME (Miko)

Investment holding

RERR
Money lending services
HiERHE

Investment holding

REBR

Inactive

E2%

Trading of agricultural
products
BERRA

Investment holding

REBR

Property holding
#ENZ

China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4L EFRA 7
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

HELREB

Fantastic Alliance Investments Limited
Fantastic Alliance Investments Limited

Sino Eco Green Limited

TRRRERLA

YIHE Enterprise Holding Limited
ERLEERERLT

Huge Famous Corporation Limited
HEERLT

Maxford Wealth Limited
Maxford Wealth Limited

Kingview Master Limited
Kingview Master Limited

Udog Petechnology Company Limited
EHREHEARLT

Treasure Yield Investment Limited

BEREARLR

Right Ocean Asia Limited
FEENERAR

Wider Profit Investment Limited
BERAERAR

Excelso Limited
Excelso Limited

Balini Limited
Balini Limited

Supreme Faith Investment Limited

EERAERLR

Treasure Max Investment
Holdings Limited
EXRAERARAR

Legal form
of entity
[1-¥¥37%

Limited liability
BRELLA

Limited liabilty
BREELA

Limited liability
BREMLA
Limited liability
BREMLA

Limited liability
BRELLA

Limited liabilty
BREELA

Limited liability
BRELLA

Limited liabilty
BREELA

Limited liability
BREMLA
Limited liability
BREMLA

Limited liability
BRELLT

Limited liability
BREELA

Limited liability
BRELLT

Limited liability

BREMLA

Place of
incorporation/
operations

HRAL/ ER0E

BV
RERIHS

HK
BB

BV
RERAES
HK

BB

BV
RERIHS

BV
RERAES

HK
BE

Hk
e

HK
BE
HK

BE

HK
BE

HK
BE

HK
BE

BvI

AEREES

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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Paid-up/issued
registered capital

47/ BROZRRE

Ordinary shares of US$1
1ZT2 SR

Ordinary shares of HK$1
&2 SRk
Ordinary shares of
550,000
50,000% 72 £ R
Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000
10000702 £8i%

Ordinary shares of US$1
1ZT2 SR

Ordinary shares of US§1
1ETERR

Ordinary shares of HK$1
BT SR

Ordinary shares of HK$1
BT ERR

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000
10000702 £8i%
Ordinary shares of HK$1
&2 SRk

Ordinary shares of HK$1
BT SR

Ordinary shares of HK$1
BT ERR

Ordinary shares of HK$1
BT BBk

Ordinary shares of US§1

[E3P4:5:1)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

50. MtEARIFE (&)
Proportion of ownership interest
held by the Company
ARRERAERRLA
Directly Indirectly
E# B

2018 2017 2018 2017
Z8-N\F i 3 —8-N\F ZE4E
100% 100% - -
- - 100% 100%
- - 0% 70%
- - 0% 70%
100% 100% - -
100% 100% - -
- - 100% 100%
- - 100% 100%
- S 51% 51%
- S 50% 50%
- S 50% 50%
- - 50% 50%
100% 100% - S
100% 100% - -

Principal Activities

IERE

Investment holding

RARR

Inactive

X1
Investment holding
RERR

Trading of grocery food
products
EARGES

Investment holding

Investment holding

RARK

Inactive

BRI

Inactive

XI5

Trading of grocery food
products

EARGES

Investment holding
(Note d)

RERR (Wikd)

Inactive (Note d)
B2 (Mitd)

Inactive (Note d)

57 (i)

Securities holding

FEER
Investment holding

RARR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RERME

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 50. MIEBA TS (&)
Place of
Legal form incorporation/ Paid-up/issued Proportion of ownership interest
Name of subsidiary of entity operations registered capital held by the Company Principal Activities
KEAEER EREENA HMAL/EE8Y  HE/CROERRA FRRERRERRLA IBEK
Directly Indirectly
E# B
2018 2017 2018 2017

“2-Nf CRtF ZE-NE CFLF

Inno-Bag Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 60% 60%  Trading of recycle bag
HK$2,000
REBRECEERAA BREALA 3 2000872 £k RREES
Alied Realty Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Allied Realty Limited BREALH ARERES (E3a:3:1s REBR
Champion Front Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US§1 100% 100% - - Inactive
Champion Front Limited BREFAE ABRSEE 1ETZEBR ¥R
China Agricultural Finance Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
Group Limited
HEERRERERAA BREALA ERRRNE 34351 RERR
Powerline Gain Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US$1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Powerline Gain Limited BRERAT ARERES (E3a 31 REBR
China AF Securities Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Inactive
HK$5,000,000
HERETSRRAR BREELA 20 5,000,000 7.2 ZiBR 5%
Luxury Regal Limited Limited liabilty BVI Ordinary shares of US$1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Luxury Regal Limited BREALH ZBRLES Erz LBk RERR
China AF Asset Management Limited ~ Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Asset management
(Note ) HK$2,800,000
(2017: HK$1,900,000)
PEEEEEERARLNE (M) ARERLE B 2,800,007 BEER
(Z3-t%:
1,900,000/ 7T)
ZERR
CAFCF (Note a) Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 18.57% 7857%  Advising on corporate
HK$1,400,000 finance
HEEF (Hia) BREELR 3 1,400,000 70 LEBAER
LiaR
Award Fortune Limited Limited liability BVI Ordinary shares of US$1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Award Fortune Limited BREALR ZBRUES 1Erz LBk RERR
Success Future Holdings Limited Limited liability BV Ordinary shares of US$1 - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Success Future Holdings Limited BREAAR ARESES 1ZT2 BBk REBR
China AF Capital Limited Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 100% 100%  Inactive
HK$1,000,000
EREERERAR BRERLA 20 1,000,000 72 £ Bl EXH
Allied Wisdorn Investment Limited liability BVl Ordinary shares of US§1 - - 100% 100%  Inactive
Holdings Limited
RERAERARAR BRAELT ABRAES ETLERR 5%
SL Financial Technology Company Limited liability HK Ordinary shares of - - 100% - Inactive
Limited (Note ) HK$10,000
REBERURERLA (Mite)  AREEAR 20 10,0007 2 REER EXH
None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities REZMmEFEER HEMNBARDET
at the end of both years. FAEHES -
China Eco-Farming Limited FEIBE 4L EFRA 7 327
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE
PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

50.

Notes:

(a)

Being the subsidiaries acquired or incorporated
during the year ended 31 December 2017. For
acquisition of a subsidiary, details are disclosed in
Note 44.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group has disposed of its equity interest in Glory
Delights Investment Limited and its subsidiary Z I/
JESEE AT IR AR A B without loss of control.
Details are set out in Note 47.

The Group owns 50% equity shares in Delightful
Hope, Smart Asia and Shenzhen Shengshi Fugiang
Technology Co., Limited (the “Delightful Hope
Group”) respectively. However, based on the
shareholder’s agreement between the Group and
other investors, the Group has the power to appoint
2 out of 3 directors of the board of directors of the
Delightful Hope Group. The relevant activities of the
Group are determined by the board of directors of
the Delightful Hope Group based on simple majority
votes. Therefore, the Director’s concluded that the
Group has control over the Delightful Hope Group
and accordingly, they are classified as subsidiaries.

The Group owns 50% equity shares in Wider Profit
Investment, Excelso and Balini Limited (the “Wider
Profit Group”) respectively. However, based on the
shareholder’s agreement between the Group and
other investors, the Group has the power to appoint
3 out of 5 directors of the board of directors of the
Wider Profit Group. The relevant activities of the
Group are determined by the board of directors of
the Wider Profit Group based on simple majority
votes. Therefore, the directors of the Company
concluded that the Group has control over the Wider
Profit Group and accordingly, they are classified as
subsidiaries.

Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

50.

MEARFE (&)

S

(a

HE-Z—+HF+-A=+—HIF
[E UL B S M A L OB B A B - B 7S
URE KT A R IB BN M 5544 -

HE-_ZT—tF+-_A=1+—HLLF
£ REEE HE EMGlory Delights
Investment Limited & ELFff & 2 &) /& I
MEZCEZAETEERARMR
e - A A 2 IR AR o BT B EU AR AT
47 °

ARERFBR EFARRI DAL S
B ARAR ([FaKE]) D5
BAS0%MAE - AMERANREEHE
xR EE OB R B AREH
RZIFMEEESET -REFT
MMAEER - AEERBEBHEFE
SEEETENGERZHESTX
EE Rl EEEmASECIES
HaEE mMEARESBAMER
o

AN E B EE R & - Excelso&Balini
Limited ([T&E&£E ) 5 5% H50%
fRiE - AMER RN EEEEMTEE
2R RpHE A EEBEEZAEEE
ErESEMRAEESTIN=-FE
F - AKEEBAEHHBEER 2 E
ERREERZHUEETE AL K
NEIERFEER ASBEHEEE
EEAESIE - mEAEES EAN
NS



50.

51.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(e)

Those subsidiaries are acquired or incorporated during
the year ended 31 December 2018. For acquisition of
subsidiaries, details are set out in Note 44.

It was subsequently disposed of during the year
ended 31 December 2018. Details are set out in Note
45.

On 3 September 2018, it has passed a resolution
to allot 900,000 ordinary shares to its immediate
holding Company Luxury Regal Limited, and the
share capital increased from HK$1,900,000 to
HK$2,800,000.

The registered capital of HK$100,000 has not been
paid up at 31 December 2018.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(0)

(e)

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
convertible bonds incurred an imputed interest
of approximately HK$1,813,000 (2017:
HK$4,568,000).

During the year 31 December 2018,
convertible bonds of HK$23,500,000 (2017:
HK$23,000,000) was reclassified to other
payables. Details are disclosed in Note 29.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
2,771,813 shares (2017: 4,017,253 shares) of
the Company with par value of HK$0.02 each
were issued as the consideration shares for the
settlement of the contingent consideration.
Details are disclosed in Note 37(c).

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
convertible bonds with liability component
and equity component of approximately
HK$10,970,000 and HK$4,194,000 respectively
were converted into approximately 68,443,811
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.17
each. Details are disclosed in Note 37(a).

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
30,750,000 share options of the Company with
par value of HK$0,02 each were exercised.
Details are disclosed in Note 37(b).

50.

51.

H=E

mE M BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2018
—E-NFT+A=T—HLFE

MEARFE (&)

B & :

(e)

&)

EHMBRARRBE—ZE—N\F+=
+— B 1R 2 H R A R SO

MM

ERZEMB AR KBEFER

15T44

o> R
= o
=F

ZEMBRRIBERNBE—F—\F
+_H_+ EiJJ:EJ*,HHFEJﬁE =f
TE# DI 5E45 ©

RZZE-NFEALA=ZR" EE%E%B
—HERABR MAEEEKRAR
Luxury Legal L|m|ted§’*1‘r900 OOOHQ

AR - AR AN 1,900,000/ TTHE 2
2,800,000/%7'5 °

RZB—NE+=A=+—01 =
& ZK100,00078 7T &) A B 1 o

TEFRERF

(a)

(e)

BE-FT-N\F+-_A=+—
HIEFE AR EHFELREA
B #91,813,00008 70 (ZF—+
£F 1 4,568,0007% 7T ) °

R-ZE—NF+=_A=+—8"
A 2 j% (& %23,500,00058 7T ( —
T —44F : 23,000,000/ C) 28
FoEAEMEMAFIE-FER
M 3E299 B2 o

HE-_ZT—-N\F+-_A=+—H
HFEE - RQRIE 172,771,813

B (—Z—+t4:4,017,2530%)
FRREE0.028 T 2 AR RIS
EEBREBERDAEE S RRE-
BRI FE37(EE

HEz-_Z—+F+=-_A=+—
HIEFE BEH LEREE
9 B4 A10,970,000 T &
4,194,ooo,arcm‘fmx1,ﬁa
B ARNBEFRONTE T 2L
68,443,81 1% I B A% - 515 MY
F37(a)IWEE ©

Hz_2—+F+=-A=+—8H
Jtﬁf‘ ZIS AR EE0.02)8
JCH930,750,00017 BB AR #E B 11T
o BN M FE37(0)IFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

52. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILIIES ARISING FROM 52. RIEEEHESHNEEYE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's TRIRAEBREEBELENBEER
liabilities arising from financing activities, both g BERESRIIERSET B EHE
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from SHEEARSRETARAKRESREMN
financing activities are those which cash flows were, EANEE HENAEBLZEARER
of future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's EXRTESBAAMEETTNEESRE -

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flow
from financing activities.

Liability
component
Margin of
Loan loans  convertible
Borrowings payable payables bonds Total
B WRRES
[T ENER HKRELER WHEEIS Foy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—tF—HF—H 19,181 20,000 16,768 51,337 107,286
Financing cash flows MERERE 37,229 (20,000) 13,309 - 30,538
Non-cash changes B
Foreign exchange movement  JMNE% B) 779 - - - 779
Reclassify to other payables EFHBEAHBENTE - - = (23,000) (23,000)
Conversion of convertible BRARRES
bonds - - - (10,970) (10,970)
Imputed interest FERHH2 - - - 4,320 4,320
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF
+=-B=+—8 57,189 - 30,077 21,687 108,953
Financing cash flows BERERE (21,235) = (11,878) = (33,113)
Non-cash changes HBE L #
Foreign exchange movement ~ /NE# (338) - - - (338)
Reclassify to other payables EFHBEAHMBENTE - - = (23,500) (23,500)
Imputed interest FEEHH S - - - 1,813 1,813
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N\&E
+=A=+—H 35,616 - 18,199 - 53,815
330 China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
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53.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, for
enhancing the relevance of the presentation of the
consolidated financial statements, reclassifications
have been made to certain comparative figures
presented in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the prior year to achieve comparability
with the current year’s presentation. As a result, the
following line items regarding comparative figures
have been amended and adjusted, together with
the related notes to conform to the current year's
presentations:

Consolidated financial statement of GERBRRE
position

Deposit paid for acquisition of ERRE-ENBRG R
a subsidiary

Trade and other receivables B o KA M EKFIE

Trade and other payables B5 R EMEMFIE

Borrowings EE

Margin loans payables ERRERER

53.

HAMIERRME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE
LB EE
HE_ZT-N\F+_A=+—HL*F
B RIESHEEMBHRRMEINERD
B EHEFEEMBHRRMAET
BE THREFEFHFHE  EHEFER
FEMZINNER EMELLLE - Et - A
THEBLLREUENIER - EREENE
DEET AR UFEERFENZ
-

Previous As
reported Reclassification restated
RRIZR ENOE (&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TER

- 20,000 20,000

53,428 (20,000) 33,428
35,801 (55) 35,746
67,189 (10,000) 57,189
20,022 10,055 30,077

Annual Report 2018 —Z — )\ FE &£}
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE_Z—/\G+-_A=1+—HLFE

54. TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING 54, EAFEBRBREERZETHNLS

INTERESTS

As disclosed in Note 23, the DHL Acquisition is
a transaction with non-controlling interests. The
details of DHL Acquisition were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 17 July 2017,
31 July 2017, 17 January 2018 and 14 January 2019.

55. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Capital expenditure in respect of
the acquisition of a subsidiary
contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial
statements

China Eco-Farming Limited FEI B4 REHRA A
Annual Report 2018 = — \FF ik

THHBZ A e
55. BEAEIE
2018
—g2-N\F
HK$'000
TR
BRAKE -RETHER KRR
REMBRmETIREED
MEBARZEARFRX
20,000

HANKIEE23F B H B =B I
BB RERR S HiRBEEE
BRERAARIEH R —_T—tFtA
tT+tR —T—+FtA=1+—HB =
E-N\EF-AttAERZZE-NF—H

2017
—E—F
HK$'000
FHET

35,000



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

56. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

(c)

Strategic cooperation agreement with
Jinan Rongchao Financial Services Limited
(“Jinan Rongchao”) and Gulfstream Capital
Limited (“Gulfstream Capital”)

On 13 January 2019, China Agricultural
Finance Group Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
strategic cooperation agreement with Jinan
Rongchao and Gulfstream Capital Limited
(collectively, the “Parties”). To promote the
comprehensive cooperation among the Parties
in the financial sector, the Parties propose
to cooperate strategically to establish a
nationwide integrated financial services system
platform for micro and small-sized enterprises
in the PRC by fully utilising their respective
advantages in various aspects such as resources
and teams of experts.

Variation to terms of DHL Acquisition

As disclosed in Note 23, on 19 March 2019,
Skyline Top and Yardley entered into a the
supplemental agreement, pursuant to which
the deadline of the completion of DHL
Acquisition has been extended from 17 January
2019 to 31 March 2020 and Skyline Top shall
pay interest to Yardley at 8% per annum on
the remaining balance payment during the
period from 18 January 2018 to the date of
completion. The detail of the variation to terms
was disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 14 January 2019.

Renewal of trademark licence agreement
and sole distributorship agreement

On 25 March 2019, Right Ocean and Chan Kee
renewed the trademark licence agreement and
the sole distributorship agreement (see Note
48(a)) for a period of 3 years. Details of the
renewal was disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 25 March 2019.

SO MBRERME
For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE-_Z— )/ \+_A=1+—HLFE
56. WEHREER
() HEFEMEBESEMREERAIA
(MEEmE]) REREXRERD
B ([EBREX]) 2BEEET=R

R-ZF-AF-A+=0 A2
Az2EWMBRARTRERESH
SEAR A B E 7R R MR
BEXRERAA (HEAIEFTAN
7RI BB & 1R - e i
BRI RERAZINEEE
1 BRI RETTRRAE &
DHAEEAENERNEXE
5 RESTNES EFEITE
2N/ NMIEREEE 2 BRT
ERFEa-

(b) FEBBSEKAREE
WA 23T TR - R =T — 1
FZA+AB RESEEFF
ST R A
EEMNTREZEEHAE=-Z—A
F—HAt++REE-_T-_TF=
A=Z+—H8 mMXBEeER=-Z
—N\F—A+N\BREZKBH
LIEEARI SR TR RE S S A& A 2
R B FHE A% - BRIER
BECHABEERRRARBEA
ZE-NF-RTMHBZAMH-

(0 EFFREHFHIERE-—2HRE
7E
RZZE-NAF=AZ+HB" &
B R EE AR AT ek R B
— DR (RKEE48()) - E
BHIRAIF - AHEEZHIFR
BRARBABMAR-_T-NF=
AZ+HEBZ R
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

The following is a summary of the published results and
assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial
years prepared on the basis set out in the notes below.

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
THT
Continuing operations HEREER
Turnover EEB 51,417
Loss before taxation BREAER (59,522)
Taxation B (984)
Loss after tax from continuing R EHBL 2 EBMBRH%Z
operations B8 (60,506)
Discontinued operations BRIEREER
Loss after tax from discontinued R 5 B 48 1F @& £ 751
operations BRFiEER -
Loss for the year FRER (60,506)
Non-controlling interests BRI RER 7,922
Loss attributable to KRR ERHEARLER
equity shareholders of
the Company (68,428)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS
2018
—E-N\E
HK$'000
Tz
Total asset BEE 449,419
Total liabilities Baf (112,446)
Non-controlling interest JEE R R (36,616)
Equity attributable to AARHEEAEEER
owners of the Company 300,357

The summary above does not form part of the audited
financial statements.
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-R=1+—-HLEE
2017 2016 2015
“2—+& 2% 1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TET FEL
63,028 72,470 59,748
(77,347) (34,357) (55,837)
(365) 308 (2,863)
(77,712) (34,049) (58,700)
- - (1,051)
(77,712) (34,049) (59,751)
6,064 4,094 537
(71,648) (29,955) (59,214)

EE BENRFERBRRES

Year ended 31 December

BEZ+t-A=t+-HLEE

2017 2016 2015
“T—+tF X% C—E-1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT TAT

490,881 517,906 387,399
(170,648) (155,779) (113,534)
(35,582) (43,998) (46,235)
284,651 318,129 227,630

2014
—2-mF
HK$'000
T

45,541

(28,799)
(48)

(28,847)

(28,847)
1,454

(27,393)

2014
—E-MmF
HK$'000
TBT

164,701
(29,655)
1,448

136,494

AEBMBIL B EXT B RERN—ED -



Location Type
Hb B BEE

Hong Kong

&

Unit 8D, TML Tower, 3 Hoi Shing Road, Industrial
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong

BB AL EBEREIRTMLESSDE T

PRC
H

Commercial and
Residential

Fulong Garden, Houhai Village,
Baigi Country, Quanzhou
Taiwanese Impediment Zone,
Fujian Province comprising
flats 3005 to 3012 of
commercial and

residential building

No.1 and flat 2905

of commercial and

residential building No.3
FEEREERMNEERER EE
BlEMEENEEER R EE
30052301258 8 &

3R B E1829055% B AL

Unit 104, Block 4, Shijimingzhu, No.245 Residential
Hualin Road, Chayuan Sub-district, Jin'an

District, Fuzhou City,Fujian Province, PRC.
PREREEERNTELYR *=

RE BB EMEE 24558

40 B R4I2 1048 7T

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
BREW=

At 31 December 2018
RZE—N\F+=-A=+—H

Lease Term Effective held
HEH BERESE
medium-term lease 100%
H HA 100%
long-term lease 100%
K Hf 100%
long-term 100%
K 100%
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY
BEYE

At 31 December 2018
RZE—NF+=-A=+—H

Location

i B

Suites A to H on the 33rd Floor of
Shidai-Caifu Building, Futian District,
Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC

FEEREFITEAR

KBS KE3EAZHE

House on Land Lot No. G17102-16
Shuitousha Village, Nanao Town,
Longgang District, Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC

o BB R AR YT BR i [
R EEK R A
G17102-165R 30 5% 2 71| 2

Taiwan

=) |

Flat A3, 12th Floor, Block A with two car
parking spaces in the building numbered 166
and 167 at Zenith City, Lane 235, Jingmaoer
Road, Nangang District, Taipei City, Taiwan
altmmEBRELER2358 A AEXNE

ATRA3F12#E @ b N 21E166 ~ 167E L
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Type
BE

Commercial

[GES

Residential

Residential

x=E

Lease Term

HEH

medium-term lease

A

medium-term lease

8

free hold

KA

Effective held
BERESE

50%

50%

50%

50%

100%

100%
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